
 

North Liberty City Council 
Regular Session 

May 14, 2024 



 

City Administrator Memo   



 

To Mayor and City Council 
From Ryan Heiar, City Administrator 
Date May 10, 2024 
Re City Council Agenda May 14, 2024 

Consent Agenda 
The following items are on the consent agenda and 
included in the packet: 

 City Council Minutes (04/23/24) 
 Pay Application #1, West Penn Street Project, PCI 

Inc., $106,397.25 
 Liquor Licenses 

o Paradise Indian Grill 
o Mexican Lindo  

 Claims 

FY25 Budget 
The first of two required public hearings for the FY25 budget was held at the April 9 
Council meeting. The second hearing and resolution of approval were supposed to be on 
the April 23 agenda; however, the Cedar Rapids Gazette failed to publish the public 
hearing notice timely. As a result, staff filed and the state approved a budget extension. 
This agenda includes a public hearing and resolution approving the FY25 budget. The 
budget model and Capital Improvements Plan are included in the packet. Staff 
recommends approval of the FY25 budget.  

Water Tower Place – Lot 1 Preliminary Site Plan 
This preliminary site plan – northeast corner of North Madison Ave and Tower Drive – 
proposes 14 four-unit and one two-unit dwellings (58 units total) on approximately 5.45 
acres. The site plan achieves consistency with zoning and design requirements. The 
Planning Commission unanimously approved the request at its May 7 meeting. Staff also 
recommends approval of the site plan. 

Solomon’s Landing – Part 5 Preliminary Plat 
This preliminary plat request by Pratt Real Estate Management Inc. – west side of North 
Jones Boulevard approximately 625 feet south of 240th Street – would facilitate 
development of the property as a 49 lots on 11.28 acres. This would revise a previously 
approved preliminary plat, which depicted 40 lots. The revision would allow smaller lots 
for an age-restricted community with one of the lots being a private park with a 

Meetings & Events 
 
Tuesday, May 14 at 4:30p.m. 
City Hall Open House 
 
Tuesday, May 14 at 6:30p.m. 
City Council 
 
Monday, May 20 at 7:00p.m. 
Library Board 
 
Tuesday, May 28 at 6:30p.m. 
City Council 
 



clubhouse. Otherwise, the proposed plat is similar in design to the previous plat. The 
Planning Commission unanimously recommended approval at its May 7 meeting. Staff 
recommends approval as well. 

North Liberty Community Pantry 
At the April 23 meeting, the City Council discussed the idea of contributing $100k of the 
City’s ARPA funds to the North Liberty Community Pantry building project. Included in 
the packet is an agreement with the NLCP memorializing the $100k contribution. In 
addition, the agreement states that the Pantry’s existing freezer, which the City helped 
fund 12 years ago, can be sold and proceeds used for the construction project.  

  

Recreation Fees 
Staff is recommending an update to recreation fees, which were last adjusted in 2018. 
Increases are proposed to the daily entrance fee and various rental spaces. Monthly and 
annual membership rates are recommended to remain the same. Staff is also 
recommending that programming fees be evaluated annually and adjusted by staff if 
actual costs of programming necessitate an increase. Recreation Director Shelly 
Simpson, who will be in attendance Tuesday, has provided a memo detailing the 
proposed adjustments. Staff recommends approval of the rate structure resolution. 

T L & L Inc. Easement Agreement 
The City acquired right-of-way for the Forevergreen Road Signalization Project subject 
to an existing private easement held by Linn County REC. Linn County REC has 
voluntarily vacated that portion of their easement which conflicts with the acquired right-



of-way, but they must be made whole for that portion of their easement they have lost. 
The City has negotiated the purchase of an alternative easement with the property 
owner, T L & L, Inc., for the benefit of Linn County REC and other public utilities. Linn 
County REC agrees that the alternative easement is satisfactory to their needs. Staff 
recommends approval. 

Saratoga Lane 
Part of the Developer’s Agreement for Solomon’s Landing Part One provided that the 
developer would build Saratoga Way, and install traffic signals and other necessary 
improvements, and dedicate them to the City before additional development activity 
would be permitted within the subdivision. The City has confirmed that the public 
improvements associated with Saratoga Drive are substantially complete, and the 
Developer has provided staff with satisfactory assurance of the imminent completion of 
some minor punch list items. Staff recommends approval of the acceptance and 
dedication of Saratoga Way and its associated improvements. 

Nuisance Abatement Assessment Resolution 
Earlier this month, staff enforced a nuisance abatement at 210 West Penn Street, by 
hiring and authorizing a company to remove junk from the property. The work has been 
completed and now staff is seeking approval to assess the property owner’s taxes to 
collect the fees. 

2024 Urban Renewal Plan Update & Bond Sale 
Annually, the City borrows funds to 
pay for projects that have been or 
are nearing completion. Because the 
City’s cash position is solid, it has the 
ability to borrow after the fact, which 
saves money on interest and 
eliminates uncertainty of identifying exact project costs prior to the completion of the 
project. Tuesday’s agenda includes a resolution setting a public hearing for May 28 for 
the purpose of entering into General Obligation Loan Agreements for the above noted 
projects and amounts. 
 
Also on the agenda is a resolution approving a minor amendment to the City’s existing 
Urban Renewal Plan. Previously, the City adopted a plan that referenced the Westside 
Community Park when in fact it should have been labeled Northside. Staff recommends 
approval of the plan, which will correct the labeling error. 
 

Northside Park Land Acquisition $2,700,000
Penn Meadows Parking Lot $2,100,000

City Hall [B] $4,250,000
$9,050,000

2024A Bond Issuance



Northridge Rezoning 
Northridge 2-4, LLC is requesting a zoning map amendment from ID Interim 
Development to RS-4 Single-Unit Residence District on 5.36 – northeast corner of North 
Liberty Road and Oak Lane NE – to facilitate development of 2 single-unit home sites. 
Notably, the Iowa City Development Board unanimously approved annexation of this 
property at its April 10, 2024 meeting. This annexation becomes effective after the 30-
day appeal period, which would be prior to the City Council’s third consideration of the 
rezoning ordinance. Due to access restrictions, a single driveway access is planned on 
North Liberty Road for both home sites. Oak Lane NE is not planned as an access due to 
it being a private road, which would necessitate the granting of a waiver from the 
Subdivision Ordinance. A virtual good neighbor meeting was held on March 12, 2024. No 
one outside of City staff and the applicant attended the meeting. Although outside the 
normal notification boundary, staff contacted representatives of the Fjords North 
Subdivision and informed them of the request and the meeting. There are no objections 
to the request. The Planning Commission unanimously recommended approval of the 
rezoning at its April 2 meeting. Staff also recommends approval. 



 

Agenda  



 

City of North Liberty – 2024  Updated May 10, 2024, 2:00 p.m. 
Page: 1 

CITY COUNCIL 
May 14, 2024 

6:30 p.m. 
Regular Session 

Council Chambers 
360 N. Main Street 

1. Call to order   
 

2. Roll call 
 

3. Approval of the Agenda 
 

4. Consent Agenda 
A. City Council Minutes, Regular Session, April 23, 2024 
B. Liquor License Application, Paradise Indian Grill  
C. Liquor License Application, Mexico Lindo  
D. West Penn Street Improvements Project, Peterson Contractors, Inc., Pay 

Application Number 1, $106,397.25 
E. Claims  

 
5. Public Comment 

 
6. Engineer Report  

 
7. City Administrator Report  

 
8. Mayor Report 

 
9. Council Reports  

 
10. FY 25 Budget 
A. Public Hearing  
B. Resolution Number 2024-46, A Resolution adopting the Annual Budget and 

Capital Improvements Plan for the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2025 for the 
City of North Liberty, Iowa  

 
11. Lot 1 Water Tower Place Site Plan 
A. Staff and Commission Recommendations 
B. Applicant Presentation  
C. Resolution Number 2024-47, A Resolution approving the Preliminary Site 

Plan for Lot 1 Water Tower Place, North Liberty, Iowa  
 



City of North Liberty – 2024  Updated May 10, 2024, 2:00 p.m. 
Page: 2 

12. Solomon’s Landing – Part Five Preliminary Plat  
A. Staff and Commission Recommendations 
B. Applicant Presentation  
C. Resolution Number 2024-48, A Resolution approving the Preliminary Plat for 

Solomons Landing – Part Five, North Liberty, Iowa  
13. North Liberty Community Pantry 
A. Resolution Number 2024-49, A Resolution approving the Agreement 

between the City of North Liberty and the North Liberty Community Pantry 
 

14. Recreation Fees 
A. Resolution Number 2024-50, A Resolution approving the Recreation Fee 

Structure 
 

15. TL&L Easement Agreement 
A. Resolution 2024-51, A Resolution approving the acquisition of a Permanent 

Utility Easement for the Forevergreen Road Signalization Project  
 

16. Saratoga Place  
A. Resolution Number 2024-52,  A Resolution accepting public improvements 

for and dedication of Saratoga Place, in Solomon’s Landing Part One in North 
Liberty, Iowa  

 
17. Assessment Resolution 
A. Resolution Number 2024-53, A Resolution assessing amounts owed to the 

City of North Liberty, Iowa to individual property taxes  
 

18. 2024A Bond Sale 
A. Resolution Number 2024-54, A Resolution setting the date for public 

hearings on proposals to enter into General Obligation Loan Agreements 
B. Resolution Number 2024-55, A Resolution to Approve Urban Renewal Plan 

Amendment for the North Liberty Urban Renewal Area 
 

19. North Ridge Part Four Rezoning 
A. Second consideration of Ordinance Number 2024-03, First Consideration of 

an Ordinance amending the Zoning Map District Designation for Certain 
Property located in North Liberty, Iowa from ID Interim Development District 
to RS-4 Single-Unit Residence District  

20. Old Business 
 
21. New Business 

 
22. Adjournment  



 

Consent Agenda  



 

City of North Liberty – 2024 
Page: 1 

City Council 
April 23, 2024 

Regular Session 
 
Call to order   
Mayor Hoffman called the April 23, 2024, Regular Session of the North Liberty City Council to 
order at 6:30 p.m. in Council Chambers at 1 Quail Creek Circle. Councilors present:  Brian Leibold, 
Erek Sittig, Brent Smith, and Brian Wayson; absent: Paul Park.  
 
Others present: Ryan Heiar, Tracey Mulcahey, Grant Lientz, Ryan Rusnak, Josiah Bilskemper, Ryan 
Bobst, Bob Downer, and other interested parties. 
 
Approval of the Agenda 
Sittig moved; Wayson seconded to approve the agenda. The vote was all ayes. Agenda approved.  
 
Consent Agenda 
Sittig moved, Wayson seconded to approve the Consent Agenda including the City Council 
Minutes, Special Session, April 9, 2024; City Council Minutes, Regular Session, April 9, 2024; City 
Council Minutes, Special Session, April 11, 2024; City Hall Project Change Order #4, City 
Construction, $25,118.00; Streets Interior Remodel Project, Pay Application Number 3, Peak 
Construction, $110,624.33; and the attached list of Claims.  The vote was all ayes. Consent Agenda 
approved.  
 
Public Comment 
No public comment was offered.  
 
City Engineer Report 
City Engineer Bilskemper reported on the West Penn Street Project, the Fox Run Pond Trail 
Project, the Street and Maintenance Facility Remodel Project and the City Hall Project.  
 
City Administrator Report  
City Administrator Heiar reported on City Hall Moving Day, City Clean Up Day, and Open House at 
new City Hall.  Heiar reported that new stormwater rates are on this month’s bill. He encouraged 
residents to call City Hall with questions. Council discussed the report with Heiar.  
 
Mayor Report 
Mayor Hoffman proclaimed Arbor Day.  Met with 8th grade class from Heritage Christian School at 
new City Hall.  Last City Council meeting here in this location.  Thanked Steve Epley for all the 
effort for this building.  15 City Council members and 5 Mayors in this location.  

 
Council Reports 



City of North Liberty – 2024 
Page: 2 

Councilor Leibold attended Herky on Parade event. He reported that tomorrow is Administrative 
Professional’s Day and recognized efforts of all those staff. Councilor Smith announced May 4 is 
Gran Gable starting and finishing at Field Day.  He congratulated Councilor Park on his nuptials.  
Councilor Sittig attended North Liberty Lunch Connections at Andale and the Herky on Parade 
Open House.  

 
North Liberty Community Pantry 
Ryan Bobst, North Liberty Community Pantry presented information regarding proposed new 
facility. Council discussed the proposed facility with Bobst and staff.  

 

North Ridge Part Four Rezoning 
Mayor Hoffman opened the public hearing at 6:53 p.m. No oral or written comments were 
received. The public hearing was closed at 6:53 p.m.  
 
Heiar presented additional information on the rezoning. Staff and the Planning Commission 
recommend approval of the application with no conditions.  
 
Bob Downer was present on behalf of the applicant and offered additional information.  
  
Sittig moved, Smith seconded to approve the first consideration of Ordinance Number 2024-03, 
First Consideration of an Ordinance amending the Zoning Map District Designation for Certain 
Property located in North Liberty, Iowa from ID Interim Development District to RS-4 Single-Unit 
Residence District.  The vote was: ayes - Smith, Leibold, Wayson, Sittig; nays – none; absent - Park. 
Motion carried.  
 
Centennial Park Event Complex Phase 1 
Mayor Hoffman opened the public hearing regarding proposed plans, specifications, and estimate 
of cost at 6:57 p.m. No oral or written comments were received. The public hearing was closed at 
6:57 p.m.  
 
Sittig moved, Wayson seconded to approve Resolution Number 2024-41, A Resolution finally 
approving and confirming plans, specifications, and estimate of cost for the Centennial Park Event 
Complex Project, Phase 1. The vote was: ayes – Smith, Wayson, Leibold, Sittig; nays – none; absent 
- Park. Motion carried.   
 
Greenbelt Trail Subdivision 
Wayson moved, Sittig seconded to approve Resolution Number 2024-42, A Resolution approving 
the Developer’s Agreement for Greenbelt Trail Subdivision, Part Three, North Liberty, Iowa.  The 
vote was: ayes – Sittig, Smith, Leibold, Wayson; nays – none; absent – Park. Motion carried.  
 
Sittig moved, Wayson seconded to approve Resolution Number 2024-43, A Resolution approving 
the Developer’s Agreement for Greenbelt Trail Subdivision, Part Four, North Liberty, Iowa.  The 
vote was: ayes – Smith, Leibold, Sittig, Wayson; nays – none; absent - Park. Motion carried.   



City of North Liberty – 2024 
Page: 3 

SEATS Same Day On Demand Transit Services 
Wayson moved, Sittig seconded to approve Resolution Number 2024-44, A Resolution approving 
the Contract for Same-Day On-Demand Transit Services between Johnson County SEATS and 
the City of North Liberty. The vote was: ayes – Wayson, Leibold, Sittig, Smith; nays – none; absent 
- Park. Motion carried.   
 
FY 25 Budget 
Sittig moved, Leibold seconded to approve Resolution Number 2024-45, A Resolution setting the 
Time and Place for a Public Hearing for the Purpose of considering the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 
Budget. After discussion, the vote was: ayes – Sittig, Leibold, Smith, Wayson; nays – none; absent 
- Park. Motion carried.  
 
Micromobility Devices (E-Scooter) Ordinance  
Wayson moved, Sittig seconded to approve the third consideration and adoption of Ordinance 
2024-02, An Ordinance amending Chapter 76 of the North Liberty Code of Ordinances 
concerning the operation of electric personal assistive and micromobility devices. After 
discussion, the vote was: ayes – Leibold, Sittig, Smith, Wayson; nays -none; absent - Park. Motion 
carried.   
 
Old Business 
No old business was presented. 
 
New Business 
No new business was presented.   
 
Adjournment 
Wayson moved; Smith seconded to adjourn at 7:03 p.m. The vote was all ayes. Meeting adjourned.    
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY 
 
 
By:  __________________________ 

Chris Hoffman, Mayor  
 

Attest: ________________________ 
Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk 



Page 1 of 2

Applicant

NAME OF LEGAL ENTITY

MEXICO LINDO III, INC

NAME OF BUSINESS(DBA)

MEXICO LINDO III

BUSINESS

(319) 331-4645

ADDRESS OF PREMISES

40 Sugar Creek LaneWickham

PREMISES SUITE/APT NUMBER CITY

North Liberty

COUNTY

Johnson

ZIP

52317

MAILING ADDRESS

40 Sugar Creek LaneWickham

CITY

North Liberty

STATE

Iowa

ZIP

52317

Contact Person

NAME

ROCIO CORREA

PHONE

(319) 331-4645

EMAIL

rociomata10@gmail.com

License Information

LICENSE NUMBER LICENSE/PERMIT TYPE

Class C Retail Alcohol License

TERM

12 Month

STATUS

Submitted
to Local
Authority

TENTATIVE EFFECTIVE DATE

May 1, 2024

TENTATIVE EXPIRATION DATE

Apr 30, 2025

LAST DAY OF BUSINESS

SUB-PERMITS

Class C Retail Alcohol License

PRIVILEGES



Page 2 of 2

Status of Business

BUSINESS TYPE

Corporation

Ownership

Individual Owners

NAME CITY STATE ZIP POSITION
% OF
OWNERSHIP

U.S.
CITIZEN

ROCIO CORREA
MATA

North
Liberty

Iowa 52317 PRESIDENT 100.00 Yes

Insurance Company Information

INSURANCE COMPANY

Auto Owners Insurance Company

POLICY EFFECTIVE DATE

Apr 16, 2024

POLICY EXPIRATION DATE

Apr 16, 2025

DRAM CANCEL DATE OUTDOOR SERVICE EFFECTIVE
DATE

OUTDOOR SERVICE EXPIRATION
DATE

BOND EFFECTIVE DATE TEMP TRANSFER EFFECTIVE
DATE

TEMP TRANSFER EXPIRATION
DATE



North Liberty Fire
Department

Liquor License Fire Inspection Results
Inspection Status Inspected by Completed at
Completed with fail Bryan E Hardin 04/25/2024 11:30 AM

ORDER TO COMPLY: You must correct the violations noted upon receipt of this notice.
An inspection to determine compliance with this Notice will be conducted on or after 30
days from the date of inspection. This initial and the first re-inspection are at no charge. If
subsequent re-inspections are needed to ensure compliance, you will be charged in
accordance with the current adopted fee schedule.  If you fail to comply with this notice,
you may be liable for the penalties provided for by law for such violations.

Address Suite City State Zip
40 SUGAR CREEK
LN

#6 NORTH LIBERTY IA 52317

Business Name
Mexico Lindo Grill & Cantina

Assembly Occupancies:

Fail

ITEM: Occupant Load Posted

REMARK: 

Post occupant load sign near main entrance.

CODE: IFC - 1004.9 - Posting of occupant load. - Every room or space that is an assembly occupancy
shall have the occupant load of the room or space posted in a conspicuous place, near the main exit or
exit access doorway from the room or space, for the intended configurations. Posted signs shall be of an
approved legible permanent design and shall be maintained by the owner or the owner's authorized
agent. Occupant load signs can be obtained for the City of North Liberty Building Department.

                                      1 / 6

Inspection #NLFD-2024-0000019



Fire Extinguishers:

Fail

ITEM: Fire Extinguisher Mounted (Not more than 5' above the floor)

REMARK: 

Remount all fire extinguishers, no higher than 5' to the top of the fire extinguisher.

CODE: IFC - 906.9.1 - Extinguishers weighing 40 pounds or less. - Portable fire extinguishers having a
gross weight not exceeding 40 pounds shall be installed so that their tops are not more than 5 feet
above the floor.

Emergency Lights & Exit Signs:

Fail

ITEM: Emergency Lighting – Illumination

REMARK: 

Remount emergency light by bar.

CODE: IFC - 1008.3.4 - Duration. - The emergency power system shall provide power for a duration of
not less than 90 minutes and shall consist of storage batteries, unit equipment or an on-site generator.
The installation of the emergency power system shall be in accordance with Section 2702 of the
International Building Code.

Fail

ITEM: Exit Signs – Illumination

REMARK: 

Kitchen, remove exit sign and place cover over electrical box opening.

CODE: IFC - 1013.5 - Internally illuminated exit signs. - Electrically powered, self-luminous and
photoluminescent exit signs shall be listed and labeled in accordance with UL 294 and shall be installed
in accordance with the manufacturer's instructions and Section 1203. Exit signs shall be illuminated at all
times.

Electrical :

Fail

ITEM: Electrical Panels, Junction Boxes & Outlet Boxes - No Openings or Exposed Wiring

REMARK: 

                                      2 / 6

Inspection #NLFD-2024-0000019



1) Replace painted outlet receptacles.

2) Replace outlet covers after painting.

CODE: IFC - 603.2.2 - Open electrical terminations. - Open junction boxes and open-wiring splices shall
be prohibited. Approved covers shall be provided for all switch and electrical outlet boxes.

Cooking Operations:

Fail

ITEM: Kitchen Hood Suppression System – All Required Cooking Appliances Properly Protected

REMARK: 

Due to kitchen cooking lineup change, suppression permit will be needed. Contact your kitchen hood
suppression company to submit permit.

CODE: IFC - 904.13.5.1 - Existing automatic fire-extinguishing systems. - Where changes in the cooking
media, positioning of cooking equipment or replacement of cooking equipment occur in existing
commercial cooking systems, the automatic fire-extinguishing system shall be required to comply with
the applicable provisions of Sections 904.13 through 904.13.4.

Fail

ITEM: Kitchen Hood and Duct Clean - Current Inspection

REMARK: 

Kitchen hood exhaust system is due for bi-annual cleaning.

CODE: IFC - 606.3.3.1 - Inspection. - Hoods, grease-removal devices, fans, ducts and other
appurtenances shall be inspected at intervals specified in Table 606.3.3.1 or as approved by the fire
code official.
Table 606.3.3.1:
- High-volume cooking operations such as 24-hour cooking, charbroiling or wok cooking, Every 3
Months.
- Low-volume cooking operations such as places of religious worship, seasonal businesses and senior
centers, Every 12 Months.
- Cooking operations utilizing solid fuel-burning cooking appliances, Every 1 Month.
- All other cooking operations, Every 6 Months.

A current inspection record shall be on file with the Fire Department using The Compliance Engine and
inspection tag on or near the Kitchen Exhaust Hood. All deficiencies noted during the kitchen hood
exhaust inspection shall be corrected. If the inspection has been completed, contact your service
provider and have them submit the inspection report to www.thecomplianceengine.com.

                                      3 / 6

Inspection #NLFD-2024-0000019



Fail

ITEM: Cooking Equipment - Not less than 6” from Edge of Hood

REMARK: 

Building department will verify if the oven needs to be completely inside the perimeter of the kitchen
exhaust hood.

CODE: IMC - 507.4.1 - Canopy size and location. - The inside lower edge of canopy-type Type I and II
commercial hoods shall overhang or extend a horizontal distance of not less than 6 inches beyond the
edge of the top horizontal surface of the appliance on all open sides. The vertical distance between the
front lower lip of the hood and such surface shall not exceed 4 feet. Exception: The hood shall be
permitted to be flush with the outer edge of the cooking surface where the hood is closed to
the appliance side by a noncombustible wall or panel.

Fail

ITEM: Cooking Equipment with Casters - Approved Flexible Gas Connector, Cable & Floor Mounted
Restraining Device

REMARK: 

Fire Department will email requirements.

CODE: IFC - 606.4 - Appliance connection to building piping. - Gas-fired commercial cooking appliances
installed on casters and appliances that are moved for cleaning and sanitation purposes shall be
connected to the piping system with an appliance connector listed as complying with ANSI Z21.69/CSA
6.16. The commercial cooking appliance connector installation shall be configured in accordance with
the manufacturer's installation instructions. Movement of new and existing cooking appliances with
caster(s) under a Type I hood shall be limited by an approved floor mounted restraining device installed
in accordance with the connector and appliance manufacturer’s instructions.

Fail

ITEM: Rags/Towels Used for Cleaning Stored in Approved Container

REMARK: 

Provide non-combustible (metal) container & lid for kitchen rags.

CODE: IFC - 304.3.1 - Spontaneous ignition. - Materials susceptible to spontaneous ignition, such as
oily rags, shall be stored in a listed disposal container. Contents of such containers shall be removed
and disposed of daily. metal UL-listed rag storage container that is equipped with a self-closing lid and
listed/approved for such use.

	Interior Finish/Flame Spread:

                                      4 / 6

Inspection #NLFD-2024-0000019



Fail

ITEM: Interior Finish Maintained

REMARK: 

1) Replace all missing ceiling tiles.

2) Replace ceiling tiles that have openings

CODE: IFC - 803.16 - Maintenance. - The interior finish of buildings shall be maintained in accordance
with the conditions of original approval. Any change to the interior finish that is regulated by the
provisions of this code, or the building code shall be made in accordance with all applicable
requirements.

Combustible, General & Outside Storage:

Fail

ITEM: Proper Ceiling Clearance - 18" (Sprinklered)/24" (Non-Sprinklered)

REMARK: 

Ensure there is no storage on top of the freezer/cooler in kitchen.

CODE: IFC - 315.3.1 - Ceiling clearance. - Storage shall be maintained 2 feet or more below the ceiling
in non-sprinklered areas of buildings or not less than 18 inches below sprinkler head deflectors in
sprinklered areas of buildings.
Exceptions:
1. The 2-foot ceiling clearance is not required for storage along walls in non-sprinklered areas of
buildings.
2.The 18-inch ceiling clearance is not required for storage along walls in areas of buildings equipped
with an automatic sprinkler system in accordance with Section 903.3.1.1, 903.3.1.2 or 903.3.1.3.

Compressed Gas Cylinders / LPG:

Fail

ITEM: Compressed Gas Cylinders Secured or Chained

REMARK: 

If using CO2 cylinders, ensure all cylinders are chained with two points of contact. If installing an 
insulated liquid carbon dioxide systems with more than 100 pounds of carbon dioxide, a permit will be
needed prior to installation.

CODE: IFC - 5303.5.3 - Securing compressed gas containers, cylinders and tanks. - Compressed gas
containers, cylinders and tanks shall be secured to prevent falling caused by contact, vibration or

                                      5 / 6

Inspection #NLFD-2024-0000019



seismic activity. Securing of compressed gas containers, cylinders and tanks shall be by one of the
following methods: 1.Securing containers, cylinders and tanks to a fixed object with one or more
restraints. 2.Securing containers, cylinders and tanks on a cart or other mobile device designed for the
movement of compressed gas containers, cylinders or tanks. 3.Nesting of compressed gas containers,
cylinders and tanks at container filling or servicing facilities or in sellers' warehouses not open to the
public. Nesting shall be allowed provided that the nested containers, cylinders or tanks, if dislodged, do
not obstruct the required means of egress. 4.Securing of compressed gas containers, cylinders and
tanks to or within a rack, framework, cabinet or similar assembly designed for such use. Exception:
Compressed gas containers, cylinders and tanks in the process of examination, filling, transport or
servicing.

Other:

ITEM: No Other Unsafe Conditions

RESULT: N/A

CODE: IFC - 114.7 - Summary abatement. - Where conditions exist that are deemed hazardous to life
and property, the fire code official or fire department official in charge of the incident is authorized to
abate summarily such hazardous conditions that are in violation of this code.

Re-Inspection scheduled to be conducted on or after Will Call.

Inspection Signatures
Occupancy Contact Signature Inspector Signature

Unable to sign:

N/A

__________________________ __________________________

Rocio Correa
Business Owner

Rociomata10@gmail.com

Bryan E Hardin
Fire Marshal

Assistant Chief
319-626-5709

bhardin@northlibertyiowa.org

Powered by TCPDF (www.tcpdf.org)

                                      6 / 6

Inspection #NLFD-2024-0000019

http://www.tcpdf.org


 
 
   

    
 

              State of Iowa ABD approval statement from the following county department 
 
 

 
Legal Name of Applicant:  

 
Name of Business (DBA):       

 
Address of Business: _______________________________________________ 
 
 
Business Phone:  
 
 
Email:                                        _______________________________________________                         
 
 
State of Iowa ABD License #: ______________________________________________ 

 
 
 

 
  
 
 

Johnson County Health Department: 
 

The above referenced business possesses a valid Johnson County Public Health food license. 
 
 
 
 
Name: ___________________________________________________________________ 
 
Title: _____________________________________________  Date: _________________ 
 
Signature: _______________________________________________________________ 
 
 

 
 
 

  









Page 1 of 2

Applicant

NAME OF LEGAL ENTITY

DELICIOUS FOODS, LLC

NAME OF BUSINESS(DBA)

PARADISE INDIAN GRILL

BUSINESS

ADDRESS OF PREMISES

555 HIGHWAY 965 S

PREMISES SUITE/APT NUMBER

UNIT E

CITY

NORTH
LIBERTY

COUNTY

JOHNSON

ZIP

52317

MAILING ADDRESS

162 S STEART ST

CITY

NORTH LIBERTY

STATE

Iowa

ZIP

523170000

Contact Person

NAME

KRISHNA MANGAMURI

PHONE

3195940665

EMAIL

mailboxkris@gmail.com

License Information

LICENSE NUMBER LICENSE/PERMIT TYPE

Class C Retail Alcohol License

TERM

12 Month

STATUS

Pending
Dramshop
Review

TENTATIVE EFFECTIVE DATE

Apr 15, 2024

TENTATIVE EXPIRATION DATE

Apr 14, 2025

LAST DAY OF BUSINESS

SUB-PERMITS

Class C Retail Alcohol License



Page 2 of 2

PRIVILEGES

Catering

Status of Business

BUSINESS TYPE

Limited Liability Company

Ownership

Individual Owners

NAME CITY STATE ZIP POSITION % OF
OWNERSHIP

U.S.
CITIZEN

KRISHNA
MANGAMURI

NORTH
LIBERTY

Iowa 523178708 Owner 100.00 No

Insurance Company Information

INSURANCE COMPANY

Illinois Casualty Co

POLICY EFFECTIVE DATE POLICY EXPIRATION DATE

DRAM CANCEL DATE OUTDOOR SERVICE EFFECTIVE
DATE

OUTDOOR SERVICE EXPIRATION
DATE

BOND EFFECTIVE DATE TEMP TRANSFER EFFECTIVE
DATE

TEMP TRANSFER EXPIRATION
DATE







North Liberty Police Department
    340 N Main St•PO Box 77•North Liberty, Iowa•52317•(319) 626-5724/Fax: 5743

April 15, 2024

Liquor License Check

Business: Paradise Indian Grill
555 S Hwy 965 Ste E
North Liberty, IA  52317

Owners:
1.      Krishna Mangamuri (DOB: 1981)               

The North Liberty Police Department does not have any documented contacts with the 
owners or premise in conflict with their liquor license.

I recommend the license be granted.

This record check was conducted by Sergeant Mitch Seymour.   



Delicious Foods, LLC

Paradise Indian Grill

555 S Highway 965 Unit E North Liberty, IA 52317

319-594-0665

mailboxkris@gmail.com

app-198266

Rob Thul
EHM 6/6/2024



 

FY 25 Budget   



��������	�
������������������	�������������������������	�������	
����������������������	������� !�"#�$�����
�%����	
�������"&' !��()�$�����%������������*"+ �*��'$�,�' �-�*�&+"'�(*"+ �"'.�����
�/"0& �"'$�,�' �-�*�&+"'�(*"+ �"'.����1�0"2�/�3'�*�4�- �#��/� �( � ����� !��"&'4�0��"'� ���*( ��/ ( �*�(1"5���0(2#&00!�(++-"5�*� ���'()�*�-�/"0& �"'�(*"+ �'3�(�1&*3� �#"-�'�6 �#�/4(0�!�(-��(//&))(-�7�*�"'� ��/�('*� ���/&++"- �'3�+(3�/8�  (4��*��/��"'3���-)���1 ��4��*&0���"-)�9���2��4��0�/ /�('!�('*�(00�"#� ���*�1 �/�-5�4��"10�3( �"'/�"#� ����� !8:� ���(/�;�	0�4 -�4 :� �"& ��(/�;�	0�4 -�4<=>?@AB CA DEDFCEFGHEFGI CJ DEDGKELKDEGIFMNOP�QN<RSTN LA DELCDELDUEULK LJ DELDFEUCCEVCVW>�XAYZ IA CECVLEUGG �� !��&)1�-$�����[��(/ ��##�4�(0���'/&/$�����9\�"'/"0�*( �*���'�-(0��&'*���5!��(04&0( �"'�����](6�
( � �����](6��"00(-/ �"'������(6(10��2̂��;	 �(6(10���-"2 ��_���������&*3� ��( ( H̀DUUUU HEHCLEUHC DEUHVECFVEIGL F̀KI��)� ( �"'���-4�' (3� L�����](6�
( � �����](6��"00(-/ 
�5�'&���-"2 ��_](6��00"2�*��������#"-�������� K̀HFIUH VEDILECID L̀FL���	���	a�	��"*���48 �"00(-���)� �&-+"/� NbPN<�cS<NMSQP<STP<WPN�ONXde ,�.���
�f&�/ 2� ��� �0� !
�+0(4�)�' ,�.���-"+�- !�(6�/���5��* ,�.���
( �LHÌD K̀HFIUHTgYhg@iZAj=Z�k=Y=BA@�c?YZ G VEDILECID VEDUDEFFC IL K̀HFIUH�"'�a" �*�� ��-���-)�//�10����5��/LHÌDClDm ÙVGUUUdnB�o�pAiYj�n?J@iq@r�gsY=Z�PBAYhij K U U IG ÙUUUUULHÌDClCm ÙCKUUUWtiAjigY�W?jugBijr�l?YZ=B�h=q̀LLUẀDGm DD U U IV ÙUUUUULHÌDClLm Wvj�b=qXiAJi@ijrE�nBgn=Bjr�o�h=@w�iYh?BAYq=�qghjh DI CKIECVI CKLEUIK GC ÙCLGVCLHÌDClGm Wvj�b=qQ?nngBj�gw�A�XgqA@�Nv=B>̀p>vj̀Tgvv̀ IFC U U IFG ÙUUUUUa" �*�� ��-���-)�//�10����5��/CHǸCC D̀GUUUUxYiwi=Z�XAs�NYwgBq=v=Yj CI U U FC ÙUUUUU�" (0���'�-(0��&'*�
�3&0(-���5��/�,�� �-&���. CG VEIDKEGLG VELKIEKUVLHÌD L̀UULKGW>�XAYZ CF FEHHH FEHHH FL L̀UULKG�" (0���'�-(0��&'*��(6���5��/�,���y��z. CK VEICIEICL VELHDEGVK �"��" �**�+�4�(0�
�5�'&����5��/LHÌF Wvj�b=q{g@iq=�o�ciB=�<=jiB=v=Yj CV U U ÙUUUUUWvj�b=qcSTW�o�S{N<Q�liw�>=Y=BA@�w?YZ�Aj�@=tr�@ivijm LU DELKLEGDV DELFKECKC D̀DHDLF<?@=h Wvj�b=qdju=B�Nvn@gr==�O=Y=wijh LD DECHVEKGG DECHLEHVG D̀DUVLC�&1 " (0�	)+0"!�����'�#� ���5!�,�\�����. LC CEFFLECKI CEFGDEDFK FG C̀CVUFHa(0&( �"'LHF �/�
�f :� ���(/�;�	0�4 :� �"& �(/�;	0�4QQpSM�D||lWm UlOm U LI U FF ÙUUUUUQQpSM�C||lWm UlOm U LG U FK ÙUUUUUQQpSM�L||lWm UlOm U LF U FH ÙUUUUUQQpSM�I||lWm UlOm U LK U FV ÙUUUUUQQpSM�G||lWm UlOm U GGG U GFG ÙUUUUUQQpSM�F||lWm UlOm U GGF U GFF ÙUUUUUQQpSM�K||lWm UlOm UDDKK UDDKV ÙUUUUUQQpSM�H||lWm UlOm UDDHG UDDHK ÙUUUUU�" (0��+�4�(0�
�5�'&����5��/ LV CEFFLECKI CEFGDEDFKLHÌI Wvj�b=q��1 ���-5�4����5!�9z8�,z. IU DECVGEFIF DECVUEIFF KU ÙVHUGHLHÌK ÙFKGUU�(+� (0��-"}�4 /�,�(+� (0��)+-"58�
�/�-5�. ID U KD ÙUUUUU�" (0��-"+�- !��(6�/�,�9y�\y��y�. IC DLELHLELIL DLELCLECLU KC DD̀LKDCF�������������
�����4�- �#!� ���1&*3� ��/��'�4")+0�('4��2� ������ ���#"00"2�'3$��&*3� /� �( ��������)�� ����� ���4-� �-�(�1�0"2�(-��'" �/ ( & "-�0!�4")+0�(' ;�)&/ �1��-� &-'�*� "� ���4� !�#"-�4"--�4 �"'8l�Tijr�<=nB=h=YjAjit=�m l�MAj=�m l�Tg?Yjr�W?ZijgB�m l�MAj=�m



��������	
��������	��� �����	�����������	������������������������	������������	������	���������	�������������� !�"�#$�%&%'��� !(��)&$�%&%* �����+
�*%�',*�-����."��/!(����0�����/(1!�.���2!3����-����(4�/(�.-��2�/2/��1���������������."�2�/2��."�.�5���6"����7/��/0�
���.�(4���.�
����'898%&%'�������.�(4���:�
����&;
&&����������.�(4��/��.�/(
����#�<!��������=��������.�.-��2!3����-����(4��("�����1�(.�/��.�52�"���:�"�2����(.�/3>��.�/(��./$�/����4!:�(.���(�7�6/��/7�.-��2�/2/��1�.�5���6"?��7.���.-��-����(4�/7�.-��2�/2/��1�.�5��6"$�.-����."��/!(����0����2!3���-�(/.�����(1�-/�1���-����(4�/(�.-��2�/2/��1���."�3!14�.?@ABC�DEFGABE�HAI�JKJALJFLEMNOPBQLAFEPBCAORJSOPT � @ABC�UELEVQONE�WXYFEPHZ[\M�]̂]_̀abb�/0����2��.:�(.�/7���(�4�:�(. �!���(.�����������.�7��1����/2��."���5��%&%)���%&%' �!14�.�������	77��.�6����/2��."���5���%&%'���%&%* �!14�.���������/2/��1�����/2��."��5���%&%'���%&%*UJcJFLE�dJLXJBAONG�IOP�WON_eEFB�fEPKAgE [hbijĥ\ih\bj [h[̀ahZa[h̀j] [h[̀ahZa[h̀j]@ONGOLAkJBEk�lENEPJL�mXNk ihaîhî[ ihaîhî[ \h[b[h]]̂nVEPJBAON�o�pJANBENJNgE�OI�qXFLAg�UPJNGAB b b brKAJBAON�rXBQOPABC b b bsAJFALABCh�qPOVEPBC�o�fELI�tNGXPJNgE b b âZhbjafXVVOPB�OI�sOgJL�uYEPTENgC�pTYBS�@OYYS b b bvNAIAEk�sJR�uNIOPgEYENB b b bqOLAgE�o�mAPE�wEBAPEYENB b b bmt@r�o�tquwf�HtI�JB�lENEPJL�mXNk�sAYABM [ĥi\ĥ̀ Z [ĥi\ĥ̀ Z [hZ]aĥânBQEP�uYVLOCEE�xENEIABG [h[bjh\ZZ [h[bjh\ZZ [ĥiZhi\̀@JVABJL�qPOyEgBG�H@JVABJL�tYVPOKS�wEGEPKEM b b bUJcJFLE�dJLXE�IOP�eEFB�fEPKAgE [ĥjahiZih]iZ [hZ[]hb̂ ĥ\̂\ [hZ[]hb̂ ĥ\̂\eEFB�fEPKAgE [hĵaĥ]̀ [hĵaĥ]̀ [ĥ\bhj]]@tUz�wulvsrw�UnUrs�qwnquwUz�Ur{ [̂h]bjĥâ [̂h]bjĥâ [ZhZ[]hZĵ@tUz�wulvsrw�Ur{�wrUu [[Sj̀[ij [bSaj[a] [[SZa[̂]UJcJFLE�dJLXE�IOP�@ABC�rT�sJNk ĥĵ ĥ̀]̀ ĥ̂\Zhb̀` ĥ̂\Zhb̀`rT�sJNk aĥaa aĥaa ]hiii@tUz�rl�srWe�Ur{�wrUu ZSbbZà ZS[aZ̀b ZSbbZà��5���.���/:2����/(��!���(.���?���/2/��1wEGAkENBAJL�VPOVEPBC�RABQ�JN���rgBXJL|rGGEGGEk�dJLXE�OI}[bbhbbb �!���(.�����������.�7��1��%&%)8%&%' �!14�.����������/2/��1��%&%'8%&%* �����(.����-�(4�@ABC�wETXLJP�wEGAkENBAJL ]̂] `̂a _[̀Si[@OYYEPgAJL�VPOVEPBC�RABQ�JN���rgBXJL|rGGEGGEk�dJLXE�OI}[bbhbbb �!���(.�����������.�7��1��%&%)8%&%' �!14�.����������/2/��1��%&%'8%&%* �����(.����-�(4�@ABC�wETXLJP�@OYYEPgAJL ]̂] `̂a _[̀Si[WOBE~�rgBXJL|rGGEGGEk�dJLXJBAON�AG�YXLBAVLAEk�FC�J�wOLLFJg��qEPgENBJTE�BO�TEB�BO�BQE�UJcJFLE�dJLXJBAON�BO�gJLgXLJBE�qPOVEPBC�UJcEGS�wEGAkENBAJL�JNk�@OYYEPgAJL�VPOVEPBAEGQJKE�BQE�GJYE�wOLLFJg��qEPgENBJTE�JB�}[bbhbbb�rgBXJL|rGGEGGEk�dJLXJBAONS����/(��7/��.�5��(��������7�2�/2/��1��5���1��.-���!���(.
UPJNGABAONANT�IPOY�J�KOLXNBEEP�BO�QCFPAk�VJAk�GBJII�IAPE�kEVJPBYENBS�tNGXPJNgEh�DOP�EP�G�@OYVh�RJTEGh�JNk�OBQEP�FENEIABG�gONBANXE�BO�gOGB�YOPE�JNk�JPE�NEEkEk�BO�YJANBJANBQE�gXPPENB�LEKEL�OI�GEPKAgEGS�qPOVEPBC�tNGXPJNgE�gOGBG�ANgPEJGANT�[b���[̀�S�@OYYOkABAEG�ANgPEJGANT�FC�LJPTE�VEPgENBJTEGS



����������	
 	���������������������
���������������������� ! "�#���$��%!�� ! &'
�
��� ()
	����
*
��
( ����()
	����
*
��
( �
��(
�*�	
 	�)����)���
	�( )
�+��
�� �����'�*
��+
�� )��)��
���� '����������$$������,-������ ! %./0122120�3425�.67628/�947:�; ;;<=>?@=A?; A=B@A=C>> A=BAA=<@< A=A@>=B;D EB=??@=;AF > ;A=C>D=;;F B=BF>=A@? A>=DFD=<D<G8H467�I/J/24/K�LM8/NH�./0�.67628/ AA;=@B>=A<B @=CD?=FAB @=B>D=<B@ B=FDD=D>F ;B=;?A=;FA > FF=?C<=?CF ;C=?DB=A@? BF=BD;=;@<G8H467�LMN/251H4O/K�LM8/NH�L25�.67628/ <A>=AD<=FD< @=D;F=C<< @=F?<=C>A B=F@B=@F> ;;=A<;=?>> > @?=A@A=D@? ;F=>FD=B?B D<=ACC=@<FL25120�3425�.67628/�942/�<> @;@=AC>=CFF <=>CF=@C@ A=?@@=?;F A=AFC=?B; E;=C<<=BB< > A>=FFB=<DA ;A=FD>=B>C <<=;;?=>B;��#
�������P���� ! "./0122120�3425�.67628/ F;@=AC>=CFF <=>CF=@C@ A=?@@=?;F A=AFC=?B; E;=C<<=BB< > A>=FFB=<DA ;A=FD>=B>C <<=;;?=>B;I/ELKH�I/J/24/K D;?=;<>=C@C F=>C?=<@> @=F@A=C>B D=B;F=B;B A;=C?F=;BC > FD=@B<=>CA ;F=;F?=D;A B;=D<;=B>@I/ELKH�LMN/251H4O/K B;C=<<@=D<D @=?A>=F<B @=D?F=ADA B=FDF=A;F AA=BC?=>>> > FC=A><=DF> ;F=BB>=@?; B@=CB@=;<;L25120�3425�.67628/ ?;<=>?B=AD? <=<B<=ACB A=B>A=@D> ;=@;>=<B< EA=B@D=FC@ > ;B=?AD=?>@ ;;=C@?=?@> AC=BBF=D@@��PQ������ ! &./0122120�3425�.67628/ C;<=>?B=AD? <=<B<=ACB A=B>A=@D> ;=@;>=<B< EA=B@D=FC@ > ;B=?AD=?>@ ;;=C@?=?@> AC=BBF=D@@I/J/24/K ;>A>=;>D=@D; F=<@D=>A< @=FA;=?>? B=>CA=>D> ;B=;<D=>DB > F@=A>A=@;C ;F=BAD=?>B DC=CAC=AADLMN/251H4O/K ;;A>=C>D=>>< F=F<D=CC< @=DCB=>@? B=DDB=C@D ;D=DF>=>>> > FF=@FB=CC> ;F=?>F=B?D B;=AD<=BBDL25120�3425�.67628/ ;A;A=A?B=BAD <=;?A=<AB A=FAB=AA> ?<@=@?B EA=AD>=FAB > ;D=FB;=A<< ;;=?DC=?D; A?=@@;=>C@



�����������	

��� ������������������������������������������ !�"#"$�%���&��'#!�"#"(���)�*+,�,�&��*-���*,������*&�'.$/ "!���0����*&�""!�������������+���1����*�&��&���������&���))*���*2����*��������3�&�����&�3���&���*����*&/��&��,,�*&��*��1��&,+,������+�!�����3�&�����&�3���&��*����*&���))*����������*�0��&���,�,����)����*2��1��4�&�������&,���+�/��*-���*,������*&�"5�/ 6!���0����*&�(���������1����&����))*���2�*�������*���*�&���������0����)����������)*���,�*&���7��������&�������,0���1���*�&������������/��&)����1����*�&��*2�4�&�������&,���+����8������*�0�����,�2*����))*���*2��&�����3�&�����&�3���&���*����*&/��1���*����0��*-�-�����2������1���*������*�&��*2�����3�&�����&�3���&��*����*&���))*���)�*+,�,�0���1�����/��8�����-�1�	�������)������&� 
�*)�������7�����+�,9:;<=:>�:?�@A>A;BC�DE>F�GAHI�JKAF�?:;�LMA;NO�PNM<O�Q:MMO RSETT:;<�:?�B�G:UBC�LMA;NOPNM<OQ:MMO R RVWVXG�DWY�DZ�[R[\ R R



�����������	
����	������
����	���
����
� ����
����



����
���������� �!
���"
#$!�
�%
&'&(
�
#$)�
('%
&'&*��+�����
����+�����
���, ������ ���������+��� ���
���������+���� 	������+��� ����������#���� �����������������������������	&'&* ������&'&(������
������-./012
3245678297:;6082
-62<2970.9 = >?@AB?ACD >?@AB?ACD >?A@C?ADCE50/ F C CG826H291I
J595H28297 > >C?>CC >C?>CC FF?BD=K/..L
;.976./ B C CK062
3245678297 D =?DAB?=@@ =?DAB?=@@ =?DAB?A@=M8NO/5912 A C CPO0/L09H
Q9R42170.9R @ DB=?=S> DB=?=S> DCD?SCDJ0R12//592.OR
-6.72170<2
T26<012R U C CM9085/
;.976./ S >U?FAB >U?FAB D?B>=V7W26
-ON/01
T5X27I =C C CYVYMZ
[/092R
=
\
=C] == D?S>U?D>S C C D?S>U?D>S D?@AS?=CU������
̂��_�.̀5LR?
P60LH2R?
a
T0L2b5/cR =F BF=?@=S =?BCS?D@A =?U>=?FSD @?@>D?DUU-56c09H
\
J2726
59L
VXX\T76227 => C CT76227
Z0HW709H =B SA?CCC SA?CCC @=?DCCY65XX01
;.976./
59L
T5X27I =D BU?B>A =>C?CCC =@U?B>A =>S?@SUT9.b
̀28.<5/ =A C =@C?CCC =@C?CCC =UU?@@Ud0HWb5I
G9H0922609H =@ C CT76227
;/25909H =U C CM064.67
[0X
9.7
G9726460R2] =S C Ce56N5H2
[0X
9.7
G9726460R2] FC F?CFA?CCC F?CFA?CCC =?D=@?SSFV7W26
-ON/01
f.6cR F= =@D?CCC =@D?CCC =AD?DSAYVYMZ
[/092R
=F
\
F=] FF F?A@=?=DD =?UCD?D@A C B?B@A?@>= S?U=S?FDF������
g
������
���+����f2/X562
MRR0R75912 F> C C;07I
d.R4075/ FB C C-5I8297R
7.
-60<572
d.R4075/R FD C Cd25/7W
̀2HO/570.9
59L
Q9R42170.9 FA C Cf5726?
M06?
59L
J.RhO07.
;.976./ F@ C C;.88O907I
J2975/
d25/7W FU C CV7W26
d25/7W
59L
T.105/
T26<012R FS =DD?CCC =DD?CCC =@A?F>DYVYMZ
[/092R
F>
\
FS] >C =DD?CCC C C =DD?CCC =@A?F>D�������
g
���������Z0N656I
T26<012R >= =?>@F?AAB =?>@F?AAB =?BB=?>SDJOR2O8?
P59L
59L
YW25726 >F C C-56cR >> =?F@U?@@C =?F@U?@@C =?BUC?SDA2̀162570.9 >B =?USS?CD@ =?USS?CD@ =?UUF?FSC;282726I >D BC?CCC BC?CCC >C?UDD;.88O907I
;29726?
i..?
a
J56095 >A >SF?CCC >SF?CCC @FB?@D@V7W26
;O/7O62
59L
̀2162570.9 >@ =?=C>?@CU =?=C>?@CU =?==C?=@AYVYMZ
[/092R
>=
\
>@] >U A?CUA?=SS C C A?CUA?=SS A?A@C?BFS



�����������	
����	������
����	���
����
� ����
����



����
���������� �!
���"
#$!�
%&
�'�(
�
#$)�
('&
�'�*��+�����
����+�����
���, ������ ���������+��� ���
���������+���� 	������+��� ����������#���� �����������������������������	�'�* �������'�(��������
-
�������
	�+�������./0012345
67814393:843/2 ;< = =>:/2/03:
?7@7A/B0724 C= DC=E=== DC=E=== DFFEG==H/1I32J
82K
LMN82
O727P8A CD = DC;EQ=GRA82232J
S
T/232J CF GG=EFUU GG=EFUU GQVEVUDW4X7M
./0
S
>:/2
?7@7A/B0724 C; VDVEQFF VDVEQFF G=;EVUCYZ[
O7N847I CC ;<=EGGQ ;<=EGGQ FQ<ED<QYWY\]
̂A327I
;<
_
CC̀ CG DE;=UE=<< = ;<=EGGQ = DEV<UEVGU DEVCGEQCQ������
��+�����a85/ME
./12:3AE
S
.345
a828J7M CV FCECC; FCECC; DGE;QQ.A7MbE
YM78I1M7ME
S
[3282:7
\K0c CU DE<Q;E;=D DE<Q;E;=D FE=CUEDCQ>A7:43/2I CQ UEG== UEG== =]7J8A
d7M@3:7I
S
.345
\44/M275 C< FU<E;UD FU<E;UD FGUEGCG.345
H8AA
S
e727M8A
613AK32JI G= = CE;;CE;=UY/M4
]38N3A345 GD = =W4X7M
e727M8A
e/@7M20724 GF U;ECF< U;ECF< ;VEVD;YWY\]
̂A327I
CV
_
GF̀ G; FE;VQE=CC = = = FE;VQE=CC VEV<DE==D	���
���+��� GC UEGVGEFDG UEGVGEFDG UEGCUECG=e/@
.8B348A
RM/f7:4I GG FFEU<QE=== FFEU<QE=== ;VEUD<YZ[
.8B348A
RM/f7:4I GV = =YWY\]
.\RZY\]
ROWg>.Yd GU = = = FFEU<QE=== = FFEU<QE=== ;VEUD<�����
�hi�")��)��!
� ��i�����
�jk�)l��$"��

m!�)��%%n��n('n(on**np�np(np*q GQDQEGFVE=;V DEQ=GEGUV ;<=EGGQ UEGVGEFDG FFEU<QE=== = GDE=QGE;QG ;QE;GVE=CF�������
����
����+�����

�"hk"����"��
�)��"k"���
-�$lr���l
���s847M
L43A345 G< FEG<UE<V; FEG<UE<V; FECCUEVGFd7P7M
L43A345 V= FE=<<EU<G FE=<<EU<G FE;;QEVVV>A7:4M3:
L43A345 VD = =e8I
L43A345 VF = =\3MB/M4 V; = =]82K93AAte8MN8J7 VC = =YM82I34 VG = =.8NA7
YuE
Z247M274
S
Y7A7BX/27 VV = =H/1I32J
\14X/M345 VU = =d4/M0
s847M
L43A345 VQ F;;EFCU F;;EFCU F=CEQDGW4X7M
61I327II
Y5B7
̂:345
X/IBcE
Zd[E
B8Mb32JE
74:c̀ V< = =>247MBM3I7
?>6Y
d>OuZ.> U= CEFQQEVG= CEFQQEVG= ;EFVFEG;V>247MBM3I7
.\RZY\]
ROWg>.Yd UD ;V<E=== ;V<E=== VFDEF<F>247MBM3I7
YZ[
.\RZY\]
ROWg>.Yd UF = =YWY\]
6LdZv>dd
YwR>
>xR>v?ZYLO>d
̂A327I
G<yUF̀ U; <EGQQEVGG <EGQQEVGG QEQUCE<VD�����
���
����	������
m!�)��
ponz(q UCDQEGFVE=;V DEQ=GEGUV ;<=EGGQ UEGVGEFDG FFEU<QE=== = <EGQQEVGG V=EVUCE=C= CUEF;DE==;O7J1A8M
YM82I97MI
W14 UG Q=QEV== ;E=DCE<VD VEDQDEQFV D=E==GE;QU DDEUU;EUFQZ247M28A
YZ[
]/82
YM82I97MI
W14 UV CEF<CEU=C CEF<CEU=C CEF<CEU=CY/48A
\]]
YM82I97MI
W14 UU Q=QEV== ;E=DCE<VD CEF<CEU=C = = = VEDQDEQFV DCE;==E=<D DVE=VQEC;F�h��!
�jk�)l��$"��
�)l
��{�"
��)
����
m!�)��
z*nzzq UQD<E;;CEV;V CEQF=EG;U CEVQGEFVF UEGVGEFDG FFEU<QE=== = DGEUU=ECQD UCE<UCED;D V;EF<<EC;G�)l�)r
�$)l
��!�) �
#$)�
(' U<D;E=QUEFVQ ;E;U;EF<U FEU=FECV= DECD=E;U; _FEUCVEG<C = DDE<CQEQC= F<EUUGEVCC ;;EDDQE=UD



�����������	
�������
	����� ����
�����



�����
�������������
����
 !��
"#
$%$&
�
 !'�
&%#
$%$(�������
)
�����
��������*
������ *������ �+����������� ���
�+������������ 	���������� ��+����+�� ���� +��������+��+������� �����������	$%$( �����$%$&,-./0
1/23/4
56
7859/8:; < =>?@A>A@= B>C@D><=E <>DB?>BEF <B>E<<>FD@ <B>AEB>F<D1/00G
H6I5JJ/I:/4
7859/8:;
,-./0
K
1/2;
L/-8 B A AM/:
NO88/6:
7859/8:;
,-./0
PJ36/
<
Q36O0
J36/
BR C =>?@A>A@= B>C@D><=E <>DB?>BEF A <B>E<<>FD@ <B>AEB>F<DS/J36TO/6:
7859/8:;
,-./0 D A A,UV
W/2/6O/0 F D>FDB>@A? D>FDB>@A? D>?AD><@@X:Y/8
N3:;
,-./0GH:3J3:;
,-.
W/9J-I/Q/6:
Z.I30/
,-./0 E DA>BE< <A>@?= F>E=F FE>@BD <?>E<CH:3J3:;
[8-6I30/
:-.
PU5\-
N54/
NY-9:/8
CED]BR ? DAA>AAA DAA>AAA DE<><AC7-83QO:O/J
\-̂/8
:-. = A A_-Q36̂
\-̂/8
:-. @ A A`5a3J/
b5Q/
,-./0 <A BF>AAA BF>AAA <@>D?@b5:/Jc̀5:/J
,-./0 << ?F>AAA ?F>AAA @C><A?X:Y/8
�d���
�e��d'
��f�� <B CFE>AAA CFE>AAA DAB>D<?gOa:5:-J
K
X:Y/8
N3:;
,-./0
PJ36/0
E
:Y8O
<BR <C D@E>BE< <A>@?= F>E=F DAA>AAA @<B>@BD @@C>?<@13I/60/0
h
7/8Q3:0 <D =?=>D=A =?=>D=A =@F>@B@H0/
5[
̀56/;
h
7859/8:; <F B<?><AA DA>AAA BF?><AA BE<>DDEU6:/8̂52/86Q/6:-JGV/4/8-J
_8-6:0
h
W/3QaO80/Q/6:0 <E DBA>E=? DBA>E=? <>??A>BCDW5-4
H0/
,-./0 <? B>EB<>C<B B>EB<>C<B B>=<=><D<X:Y/8
g:-:/
_8-6:0
h
W/3QaO80/Q/6:0 <= BEC>EBD ?<>=ED DA>CBF ?AF>AAA <>A=A>=<C =?D>C@E15I-J
_8-6:0
h
W/3QaO80/Q/6:0 <@ BCF>BEF BCF>BEF C@F>?<@gOa:5:-J
K
U6:/8̂52/86Q/6:-J
PJ36/0
<E
:Y8O
<@R BA @<@>F?E B>E@C><?E A DA>CBF ?AF>AAA A D>CF=>A?? F>=F=>D@ANY-8̂/0
[58
V//0
h
g/823I/Gi-:/8
H:3J3:; B< D>EEC>C@D D>EEC>C@D D>?BD>D<?g/\/8
H:3J3:; BB F><=F>BF< F><=F>BF< F>CD=>E?DZJ/I:83I
H:3J3:; BC A A_-0
H:3J3:; BD A A7-8j36̂ BF A Ak38958: BE A A1-64[3JJc_-8a-̂/ B? A <>FC@>BE?b5093:-J B= A A,8-603: B@ A AN-aJ/
,l>
U6:/86/:
h
,/J/9Y56/ CA A Ab5O036̂
kO:Y583:; C< A Ag:58Q
i-:/8
H:3J3:; CB BCA>BC< BCA>BC< BB=><@BX:Y/8
V//0
h
NY-8̂/0
[58
g/823I/ CC C><AE><AA C><AE><AA <><CD>FC=�!m�d���
�
�n��o��
pd�
���q���
r��'��
$"
�n�!
&&s CD C><AE><AA A A A A <A>A?=>=?E <C><=D>@?E <B>@?F>A==g9/I3-J
k00/00Q/6:0 CF A A`30I/JJ-6/5O0 CE B<E>EAA <A>CEC>AAA <A>F?@>EAA B>=F?>AB<X:Y/8
V36-6I36̂
g5O8I/0G
W/̂OJ-8
X9/8-:36̂
,8-60[/80
U6 C? C>FAE>?CD @D?>?C= F<<><?@ F>AC@>?CE <A>AAF>C=? <<>??C>?B=U6:/86-J
,UV
15-6
,8-60[/80
U6 C= D>B@D>?AD D>B@D>?AD D>B@D>?ADgOa:5:-J
k11
X9/8-:36̂
,8-60[/80
U6 C@ C>FAE>?CD A A F>BDB>DDB F<<><?@ A F>AC@>?CE <D>CAA>A@< <E>AE=>DCB785I//40
5[
S/a:
PZ.IJO436̂
,UV
U6:/86-J
t5885\36̂R DA <A>AAE>AAA <A>AAE>AAA <@>A=D>CAF785I//40
5[
N-93:-J
k00/:
g-J/0 D< A A�!m�d������n��
��'�'��'o
�d!����
r��'��
&u
�n�!
&vs DB C>FAE>?CD A A F>BDB>DDB <A>F<?><?@ A F>AC@>?CE BD>CAE>A@< CF><FB>?C?�d���
��q�'!��
�f��e�
pd�
m�o�''�'o
p!'w
m���'��

r��'��
&#
(#
x#
"$#
"&#
"(#
"y#&&#
&(#
&x#
)
&ys DC <=><CA>@D@ F>A@=>CDA D>FDB>@A? E>?<F>?<? B<>@=F><?@ A <F><F=>E<B ?<>EC<>?AD ?F>?E<><DCt/̂36636̂
VO64
t-J-6I/
zOJ;
< DD <D>B@A>@FF C>A@F>D@D B>=DD>=<F B>BF@>=?< K<>@CC>??C A <B>FEA>?A@ CC><<=>A?< BA>EFE>CEC�����
�������
)
��*��
�������
r��'��
("{($s DF CB>DB<>@AD =><@C>=CD ?>C=?>?BB =>@?F>F== BA>AF<>DAE A B?>?<@>CB< <AD>?D@>??F @E>D<?>FAE



���������	�
�
������������� ����������������	������	������������ �!"����#�$%$&�'�!"(��)%#�$%$*��+�	�,��������+����
 ����	�� 
������	�+����
 ����
������	�+����
 ����
�	+��� ��������	�!���
 ��	,������	��	����	� ������$%$* 	�'�
��,����$%$& ������$%$)�������
�����-./012�3245678297:;6082�-62<2970.9 = >?@AB?A=C >?@AB?A=C >?DBE?BFC >?BDF?BCFG50/ A F F FH826I291J�K595I28297 > >=?CFF >=?CFF >F?>FF AA?EC=L/..M�;.976./ E F F FL062�3245678297 C =?BAC?BEB =?BAC?BEB =?CBE?=DD =?CBE?BD=N8OP/5912 B F F FQP0/M09I�R9S42170.9S D CBE?DTF CBE?DTF CE=?=@> CFC?@FCK0S12//592.PS�-6.72170<2�U26<012S T F F FN9085/�;.976./ @ BC?CFF BC?CFF >T?ABE C?E>=V7W26�-PO/01�U5X27J =F F F FYVYNZ�[/092S�=�\�=F] == B?A=>?BE= F F B?A=>?BE= C?@>T?C>@ C?DB@?=FT�������̂�	_
.̀5MS?�Q60MI2S?�a�U0M2b5/cS =A ABD?TAA =?CBE?>@@ =?T>A?AA= =?T>=?A@C D?D>C?CTT-56c09I�\�K2726�59M�VXX\U76227 => F F FU76227�Z0IW709I =E =F>?FFF =F>?FFF @B?FFF D=?CFFY65XX01�;.976./�59M�U5X27J =C >A?=FF =>E?FFF =BB?=FF =DT?E>B =>@?D@TU9.b�̀28.<5/ =B =@F?FFF =@F?FFF =DF?FFF =TT?DDTd0IWb5J�H9I0922609I =D F F FU76227�;/25909I =T F F FN064.67 =@ F F Fe56O5I2�[0X�9.7�H9726460S2] AF A?FAB?FFF A?FAB?FFF A?FAB?FFF =?C=D?@@AV7W26�-PO/01�f.6cS A= =DC?FFF =DC?FFF =DC?FFF =BC?C@BYVYNZ�[/092S�=A�\�A=] AA A?CFF?@AA =?@@=?>@@ F E?E@A?>A= E?EDB?D>= @?T=@?ACA�����g�
������
�	+���
f2/X562�NSS0S75912 A> F F F;07J�d.S4075/ AE F F F-5J8297S�7.�-60<572�d.S4075/S AC F F Fd25/7W�̀2IP/570.9�59M�R9S42170.9 AB F F Ff5726?�N06?�59M�K.ShP07.�;.976./ AD F F F;.88P907J�K2975/�d25/7W AT F F FV7W26�d25/7W�59M�U.105/�U26<012S A@ =DF?FFF =DF?FFF =CC?FFF =DB?A>CYVYNZ�[/092S�A>�\�A@] >F =DF?FFF F F =DF?FFF =CC?FFF =DB?A>C�����	��g�	��	������Z0O656J�U26<012S >= =?EBA?@>A =?EBA?@>A =?>DA?BBE =?EE=?>@CKPS2P8?�Q59M�59M�YW25726 >A F F F-56cS >> =?>CE?FDB =?>CE?FDB =?ADT?DDF =?ETF?@CB2̀162570.9 >E A?FTA?BT@ A?FTA?BT@ =?T@@?FCD =?TTA?A@F;282726J >C EF?FFF EF?FFF EF?FFF >F?TCC;.88P907J�;29726?�i..?�a�K56095 >B >EC?>>> >EC?>>> >@A?FFF DAE?DCDV7W26�;P/7P62�59M�̀2162570.9 >D =?=CB?AEF =?=CB?AEF =?=F>?DFT =?==F?=DBYVYNZ�[/092S�>=�\�>D] >T B?EE=?ADF F F B?EE=?ADF B?FTB?=@@ B?BDF?EA@



���������	�
�
������������� ����������������	������	������������ �!"���#$��%�&�'�!"(��)%$��%�*��+�	�,��������+����
 ����	�� 
������	�+����
 ����
������	�+����
 ����
�	+��� ��������	�!���
 ��	,������	��	����	� �������%�* 	�'�
��,�����%�& �������%�)��,,������-������,�����+����,���./0012345�67814393:843/2 ;< = = =>:/2/03:�?7@7A/B0724 C= DEEF=== DEEF=== DC=F=== DGGFH==I/1J32K�82L�MNO82�P727Q8A CD = = DC;FR=HSA82232K�T�U/232K CG HERF=G; HERF=G; HH=FGVV HREFEVDW4X7N�./0�T�>:/2�?7@7A/B0724 C; DF==VFEH= DF==VFEH= EDEFRGG H=;FEVCYZ[�P7O847J CC G<=FV=H G<=FV=H ;<=FHHR GR<FD<RYWY\]�̂A327J�;<�_�CC̀ CH DFVCDFEV; = G<=FV=H = GF=;GF;VR DFE<VFEHV DFECHFRCR����	�����+�	�,���a85/NF�./12:3AF�T�.345�a828K7N CE GGFG;V GGFG;V GCFCC; DHF;RR.A7NbF�YN78J1N7NF�T�[3282:7�\L0c CV GF=G<FRHD GF=G<FRHD DF<R;F;=D GF=CVFDCR>A7:43/2J CR = VFH== =]7K8A�d7N@3:7J�T�.345�\44/N275 C< GR<FHR< GR<FHR< GV<F;VD GHVFHCH.345�I8AA�T�e727N8A�613AL32KJ H= = = CF;;CF;=VY/N4�]38O3A345 HD = = =W4X7N�e727N8A�e/@7N20724 HG EVFVG= EVFVG= V;FCG< ;EFED;YWY\]�̂A327J�CE�_�HG̀ H; GFC=<F;<V = = = GFC=<F;<V GF;ERF=CC EFE<DF==D�����
�	+��� HC VFEEVF<CE VFEEVF<CE VFHEHFGDH VFHCVFCH=e/@�.8B348A�SN/f7:4J HH DEFEH=F=== DEFEH=F=== GGFV<RF=== ;EFVD<YZ[�.8B348A�SN/f7:4J HE = = =YWY\]�.\SZY\]�SPWg>.Yd HV = = = DEFEH=F=== = DEFEH=F=== GGFV<RF=== ;EFVD<�������hi� (��(������i�������jk�(l��" ����m��(��##n��n)%n)on&*n*)n*&n*pq HRD<FCVEF<=; DF<<DF;<< G<=FV=H VFEEVF<CE DEFEH=F=== = CEF=VEF<H; HDF=RHF;RH ;RF;HEF=CG��
���

����������+����
� hk ���� ����(�� k ����-��"lr���l��
�s847N�M43A345 H< GFEC=FH=R GFEC=FH=R GFH<VF<E; GFCCVFEHGd7Q7N�M43A345 E= GFGV=FRCH GFGV=FRCH GF=<<FV<H GF;;RFEEE>A7:4N3:�M43A345 ED = = =e8J�M43A345 EG = = =\3NB/N4 E; = = =]82L93AAte8NO8K7 EC = = =YN82J34 EH = = =.8OA7�YuF�Z247N274�T�Y7A7BX/27 EE = = =I/1J32K�\14X/N345 EV = = =d4/N0�s847N�M43A345 ER C;GFD;V C;GFD;V G;;FGCV G=CFRDHW4X7N�61J327JJ�Y5B7�̂:345�X/JBcF�Zd[F�B8Nb32KF�74:c̀ E< = = =>247NBN3J7�?>6Y�d>PuZ.> V= ;FC==FR;C ;FC==FR;C CFGRRFEH= ;FGEGFH;E>247NBN3J7�.\SZY\]�SPWg>.Yd VD = ;E<F=== EGDFG<G>247NBN3J7�YZ[�.\SZY\]�SPWg>.Yd VG = = =�������"��(������k���jk�(l��" ���m��(���*v�'�p�q V; RFVCCF;GC RFVCCF;GC <FHRRFEHH RFRVCF<ED�������������������	�
�m��(���*o�n�p)q VCD<FCVEF<=; DF<<DF;<< G<=FV=H VFEEVF<CE DEFEH=F=== = RFVCCF;GC HCFRGDFGVV E=FEVCF=C= CVFG;DF==;P7K1A8N�YN82J97NJ�W14 VH DFCG<FD== ;FHCHFH<C VF=EDFCEG DGF=;EFDHE D=F==HF;RV DDFVV;FVGRZ247N28A�YZ[�]/82�t�P7B850724�YN82J97NJ�W14 VE CFC=EF;C; CFC=EF;C; CFG<CFV=C CFG<CFV=C�h��������� �(�w� ���"� VV DFCG<FD== ;FHCHFH<C CFC=EF;C; = = = VF=EDFCEG DEFCCGFC<< DCF;==F=<D DEF=ERFC;G�h�����jk�(l��" ���-��"(l�� �(�w� ���"��m��(���p&nppq VRG=F<=EF==; HFH;EF<<; CFE<VF=CR VFEEVF<CE DEFEH=F=== = DHFR=HFVRE VDFGE;FVVE VCF<VCFD;D E;FG<<FC;H�(l�(r��"(l�����(���!"(��)% V<DGFGRVFVGE ;FDRGF;GV GFHGVFGG= R;CFCRV _GFGE=FHGV = DDFRE<FRED GRFCCDF=<C G<FVVHFECC ;;FDDRF=VD



�����������	
�� ����������������	�������	������������������ !�"#"$�%���&��'#!�"#"()����
� �*��
��������� 	����*��
��������� ���	������ 
*�	
�*����	� *��+
���	*��*���	
�� ���)�	"#"( ��%��	�+
	��"#"$ 
	�
�"#"'���������,��	�������
���)�������-./01�203405�67�896:09;< = >?@A=?B>C D?EB=?=EC =?D>F?GEE F =@?@D@?D@F =D?E==?BG> =D?FED?B=G2011H�I7J6KK0J;05�896:09;<�-./01�L�203<�M0.9 D F F FN0;�OP9907;�896:09;<�-./01�QK470�=�R47P1�K470�DS @ >?@A=?B>C D?EB=?=EC =?D>F?GEE F =@?@D@?D@F =D?E==?BG> =D?FED?B=GT0K47UP07;�896:09;<�-./01 G F F F-VW�X0307P01 B G?BD=?AFA G?BD=?AFA G?BGD?>FC G?CFG?=>>Y;Z09�O4;<�-./01HI;4K4;<�-./�X0:K.J0R07;�[/J410�-./01 E GD?ADE =D?=FC B?=AF F EF?==@ BE?>DG =C?E=@I;4K4;<�\9.7J410�;./�QV6].�O650�OZ.:;09�@EĜDS C ECB?FFF ECB?FFF GFF?FFF GE=?=F@8.94RP;P0K�]._09�;./ A F F F.̀R47_�]._09�;./ > F F Fa6b4K0�c6R0�-./01 =F DB?FFF DB?FFF DB?FFF =>?GC>c6;0Kda6;0K�-./01 == AF?FFF AF?FFF CB?FFF >@?=FCY;Z09�26J.K�Y:;467�-./01 =D GFF?FFF GFF?FFF @BE?FFF GFD?G=CePb;6;.K�L�Y;Z09�O4;<�-./01�QK4701�E�;Z9P�=DS =@ =?DDD?ADE =D?=FC B?=AF F =?DGF?==@ >=D?>DG >>@?C=>24J07101�f�809R4;1 =G AAE?BAF AAE?BAF ACA?GAF A>B?>D>I10�6\�a670<�f�896:09;< =B DG=?@FF G=?FFF DAD?@FF DBC?=FF DE=?GGEV7;09_63097R07;.KHW0509.K�̀9.7;1�f�X04RbP910R07;1 =E @>B?FGG @>B?FGG GDF?EAC =?CCF?D@GX6.5�I10�-./01 =C D?EAD?CG> D?EAD?CG> D?ED=?@=D D?A=A?=G=Y;Z09�e;.;0�̀9.7;1�f�X04RbP910R07;1 =A DBG?DFG DBG?DFG =?FAF?A=@ ACG?@>E26J.K�̀9.7;1�f�X04RbP910R07;1 => @FA?EFF @FA?EFF D@B?DEB @>B?C=>ePb;6;.K�L�V7;09_63097R07;.K�QK4701�=E�;Z9P�=>S DF >BC?AGA D?EAD?CG> F F F F @?EGF?B>C G?@BA?FCC B?ABA?G>FOZ.9_01�\69�W001�f�e0934J0Hg.;09�I;4K4;< D= G?CBG?CED G?CBG?CED G?EE@?@>G G?CDG?G=Ce0]09�I;4K4;< DD B?DAA?@@C B?DAA?@@C B?=AB?DB= B?@GA?ECG[K0J;94J�I;4K4;< D@ F F F.̀1�I;4K4;< DG F F F8.9h47_ DB F F Fi49:69; DE F F F2.75\4KKd̀.9b._0 DC D?FFF?FFF D?FFF?FFF F =?B@>?DECc61:4;.K DA F F F-9.714; D> F F FO.bK0�-j?�V7;0970;�f�-0K0:Z670 @F F F Fc6P147_�iP;Z694;< @= F F Fe;69R�g.;09�I;4K4;< @D @@B?FFF @@B?FFF D@F?D@= DDA?=>DY;Z09�W001�f�OZ.9_01�\69�e0934J0 @@ =?D@=?>FF =?D@=?>FF @?=FE?=FF =?=@G?B@AePb;6;.K�L�OZ.9_01�\69�e0934J0�QK4701�D=�;Z9P�@@S @G @?D@=?>FF F F F F =F?@CA?F>> =@?EF>?>>> =@?=AG?>CE =D?>CB?FAAe:0J4.K�i11011R07;1 @B F F Fa41J0KK.706P1 @E D=E?EFF C?BFF?FFF BFF C?C=C?=FF =F?BC>?EFF D?ABC?FD=Y;Z09�W47.7J47_�e6P9J01HX0_PK.9�Y:09.;47_�-9.71\091�V7 @C @?>EC?A=F =?@>F?FC= =?@C=?FEC B?@FC?DFA =D?F@E?=BE =F?FFB?@AC ==?CC@?CDAV7;097.K�-VW�26.7�-9.71\091�V7 @A G?GFE?@G@ G?GFE?@G@ G?D>G?CFG G?D>G?CFG��k�l����
����m�����&n�	��&�o�����& @> @?>EC?A=F F F B?C>E?G=G =?@C=?FEC F B?@FC?DFA =E?GGD?G>> =G?@FF?F>= =E?FEA?G@D896J0051�6\�T0b;�Q[/JKP547_�-VW�V7;097.K�p6996]47_S GF A?DEB?FFF A?DEB?FFF =F?FFE?FFF =>?FAG?@FB896J0051�6\�O.:4;.K�i110;�e.K01 G= F F F��k�l���%��q�����&�&��&n��l������r��&���'s��q���$#t GD @?>EC?A=F F F B?C>E?G=G >?E@E?FEC F B?@FC?DFA DG?CFC?G>> DG?@FE?F>= @B?=BD?C@C	l������u�&�����v��m��ol��k�n�&&�&n�o�&w�k���&�����r��&���'!�$!�(!� '!� $! (!�"#!�'$!�'(!�'x!�,�$ t G@ DF?=FE?GE= B?@GE?FD@ G?BD=?AFA C?F>D?FEF =C?=@E?FEC F =B?CDE?AFC E>?>D>?DDE C=?E@=?CFG CB?CE=?=G@p0_47747_�WP75�p.K.7J0�yPK<�= GG =@?FAC?DEA @?@C@?D>C D?CFD?GEF =?G=F?@C@ LD?CGE?B>G F ==?>GA?AGF D>?CCB?EGG @@?==A?FC= DF?EBE?@E@	�	
�����������,���)����
�
���r��&���$"z$'t GB @@?=>@?CD> A?C=>?@DF C?DDG?DEA A?BFD?G@@ =G?@A>?GC@ F DC?ECB?EGC >>?CFG?ACF =FG?CG>?CCB >E?G=C?BFE



���������	�
����	���� ������������������������������������� !���"#�$%$&�'� !(��)%#�$%$*
����� ��������+��	�� ������������+��	�� ������+��� ��������� ���� ���������������� �	�
��$%$* �'���������$%$& ���	��$%$)�,�(!���-���.�����(�(��(/��0!����12345�647849�:;�<=:>4=?@ A BCDEACFBG HCIFACAIG ACHBJCKII J ADCDHDCHDJ AHCIAACFKB AHCJIHCFAK6455L�M;N:OO4N?49�<=:>4=?@�12345P647@�Q42= H J J J J J J JR4?�ST==4;?�<=:>4=?@�12345 D BCDEACFBG HCIFACAIG ACHBJCKII J ADCDHDCHDJ AHCIAACFKB AHCJIHCFAKU4O8;VT4;?�<=:>4=?@�12345 K J J J J J J J1WX�Y474;T45 F KCFHACEJE KCFHACEJE KCFKHCBJG KCGJKCABBZ?[4=�S8?@�12345 I ACHHHCEHI AHCAJG FCAEJ J ACHKJCAAD BAHCBHK BBDCGAB68N4;545�\�<4=]8?5 G EEICFEJ J J EEICFEJ EGECKEJ EBFCBHBM54�:̂�_:;4@�2;9�<=:>4=?@ E HKACDJJ J J J J J KACJJJ HEHCDJJ HFGCAJJ HIACKKIW;?4=̀:74=;]4;?2O B BFGCEKE HCIEHCGKB J J J J DCIKJCFBG KCDFECJGG FCEFECKBJS[2=̀45�̂:=�X445�\�a4=78N4 AJ DCHDACBJJ J J J J AJCDGECJBB ADCIJBCBBB ADCAEKCBGI AHCBGFCJEEa>4N82O�b55455]4;?5 AA J J J J J J J J_85N4OO2;4:T5 AH HAICIJJ J J GCFJJCJJJ J FJJ GCGAGCAJJ AJCFGBCIJJ HCEFGCJHAaTcP1:?2O�Y474;T45 ADAICADECIFA FCDKICJHD KCFHACEJE ACHBFCIKI GCFJJCJJJ J AJCKABCFBB KFCHHACGHG KGCDHFCIAD KJCIJECKJI��.�����(�(��(/��0!������0�������(�d�����( AK DCBIGCEAJ J J FCGBICKAK ACDGACJIG J FCDJGCHJE AICKKHCKBB AKCDJJCJBA AICJIECKDH<=:N4495�:̂�U4c? AF J J J J ECHIFCJJJ J ECHIFCJJJ AJCJJICJJJ ABCJEKCDJF<=:N4495�:̂�S2>8?2O�b554?�a2O45 AI J J J J J J J J J J�0�����,�(!����(e���.����0!���� AGHJCAJICKIA FCDKICJHD KCFHACEJE GCJBHCJIJ AGCADICJIG J AFCGHICEJG IBCBHBCHHI GACIDACGJK GFCGIACAKD�fg�(e��!����-���.�����(�(��(/�	���<TcO8N�a2̂4?@ AE ICHADCIKA J J J ICHADCIKA FCBDECFDB FCGIBCAJE<TcO8N�h:=i5 AB HCFJJCBHH ACBBACDBB J J KCKBHCDHA KCKGICGDA BCEABCHFHj42O?[�2;9�a:N82O�a4=78N45 HJ AGJCJJJ J J J AGJCJJJ AFFCJJJ AGICHDFSTO?T=4�2;9�Y4N=42?8:; HA ICKKACHGJ J J J ICKKACHGJ ICJEICABB ICIGJCKHBS:]]T;8?@�2;9�kN:;:]8N�U474O:>]4;? HH ACGKACIGD J HBJCGJF J HCJDHCDGE ACIBGCIFG ACIKFCEKEl4;4=2O�l:74=;]4;? HD HCKJBCDBG J J J HCKJBCDBG HCDIECJKK ICIBACJJAU4c?�a4=78N4 HK J J J GCIIGCBKI J GCIIGCBKI GCFIFCHAF GCFKGCKFJS2>8?2O�<=:m4N?5 HF J J J AICIFJCJJJ J AICIFJCJJJ HHCGBECJJJ DICGAB�0����
0,��(��(������,�������fg�(e��!��� HIABCKGICBJD ACBBACDBB HBJCGJF GCIIGCBKI AICIFJCJJJ J KICJGICBFD FACJEFCDEF DECDFICJKHnT58;455�1@>4�<=:>=84?=2@L�k;?4=>=854�\�WaX HG ECGKKCDHK ECGKKCDHK BCFEECIFF ECEGKCBIA�0����
0,�-��!����g���fg�(e��!��� HEABCKGICBJD ACBBACDBB HBJCGJF GCIIGCBKI AICIFJCJJJ J ECGKKCDHK FKCEHACHGG IJCIGKCJKJ KGCHDACJJD�0�������(�d�����!� HB ACKHBCAJJ DCFKFCFBK KCKJICDKD J J J GCJIACKIH AICKKHCKBB AKCDJJCJBA AICJIECKDH1:?2O�b66�k3>4;98?T=45oXT;9�1=2;5̂4=5�ZT? DJHJCBJICJJD FCFDICBBD KCIBGCJKE GCIIGCBKI AICIFJCJJJ J AFCEJFCGEI GACHIDCGGI GKCBGKCADA IDCHBBCKDFk3N455�Y474;T45�\�Z?[4=�a:T=N45�Z74= DApM;94=q�k3>4;98?T=45o1=2;5̂4=5�ZT? DH PGBBCFKH PABJCBGJ PAGFCHKJ PFGFCEEI KEICJIG J PGECBGB PACDDKCFFJ PDCDKHCKHG AHCKIACGJE��/�((�(/��!(e�����(��� !���" DDADCJEGCHIE DCDGDCHBG HCGJHCKIJ ACKAJCDGD PHCGKICFBK J AACBKECEKJ HBCGGFCIKK DDCAAECJGA HJCIFICDID�(e�(/��!(e�����(��� !(��)% DKAHCHEGCGHI DCAEHCDHG HCFHGCHHJ EDKCKEG PHCHIJCFHG J AACEIBCEIA HECKKACJBK HBCGGFCIKK DDCAAECJGA



��������	�
�������
���������
���� ����������������������
����������
��������������
���������������������������	����
�������� ���� ���!�""�� �#$���!�
�����%&'��&� 
�����"�%��&� �����( �(& )&$�%
����� � ��(�"�
����� ����%��%&'��&� 
����� �� *���'+,��#& '��'� ����"�
����� ��*�)�&� "�*�������!& � )& '��(�(�$�#�� ���!�(�&!&�*�
��� ��&*�!(����� *"�����������((� �����(�
�����(-&)����.�" ���� ����&*�((� �����(
������(-&)���-#/0102�/34�5678�9/:7;56<6=:67�>�?337@:66@ 7 56A<58A8B6CDC:ED 567F:766 FFFA666 56@A<=8 8<7A<=8 B5A8F5 6 ;7BAF66 6/0102�/34�566<�G975B3 5 @A5<7A666CDC:ED 6<:88 B8FA666 =7A<F= @7<A<F= BA@=< 6 @55A=66 6/0102�/34�5668966<B3 = =6ABB6A666CDC:ED 68:8= 78=A666 7=ABB6 7;FABB6 7A;56 6 7;8A=F6 6567BH�/0102�30I0JK0 B 7A=7@A666CDC:ED 7B:=6 7=@A666 BA6@6 7=;A6@6 @66 6 7=;A@@6 6?LM02�/34�567<�4/:@5:7B:N?/34:656 @ 56A7@BA6FFCDC:ED 567<:75 7A7<6A7@B 5;FA7@@ 7ABFFA=6; B5A=68 6 7A@68AF7< 6567BO�?LM02�30I0JK0 F 7A576A666ED 7B:=7 776A666 FA868 77FA868 F66 6 77<AB68 65678H�EDPQ2RLJ�30J01LS < BA@;@A666ED 5678:75; =<@A666 8FA58= BF7A58= F66 6 =@6AF56 777A5F=567@H�EDPQ2RLJ�30J01LS 8 ;A;F@A666ED 7@:6@ ;=6A666 =<A<66 ;F<A<66 @66 6 8<BAB<@ ;=A<5@567<H�EDPQ2RLJ�30J01LS ; BAB=@A666ED 567<:B8 B<6A666 @=A887 @5=A887 @66 6 @5BA=87 6567B9�EDPQ2RLJ�30J01LS 76 =A6;6A666ED 7B:77< ==@A666 FA<66 =B7A<66 @66 6 =B5A566 6567<H�EDPQ2RLJ�30J01LS 77 BAB=@A666ED 567<:=8 5B@A666 55AF@6 5F<AF@6 @66 6 7B5A766 75FA6@65675H�3QT�30I0JK0 75 7A87@A666CDC:ED 75:55 7=@A666 75A7;6 7B<A7;6 @66 6 7B<AF;6 6567;H�EDPQ2RLJ�30J01LS 7= 8A676A666ED 567;:87 8<6A666 8FAB66 ;@FAB66 F66 6 ;@<A666 65656H�EDPQ2RLJ�30J01LS 7B 76A7F6A666ED 5656:@6 ;66A666 7@6A766 7A6@6A766 F66 6 @F6AB== B;6A5F<5657H�EDPQ2RLJ�30J01LS 7@ <A5<6A666ED 5657:<7 B;@A666 <=A@@8 @F8A@@8 F66 6 577A;=F =@<A5555655H�EDPQ2RLJ�30J01LS 7F ;A7=@A666ED 5655:<< F86A666 5@BA766 ;=BA766 F66 6 ;57A5B5 7=AB@8565=H�EDPQ2RLJ�30J01LS 7< ;AB=@A666ED 565=:@6 B;6A666 =<<AB66 8F<AB66 F66 6 <FBA==; 76=AFF74U20I02V200J�3ULW�XLYZ0JM 78 CDC:ED @6FA;8= 6 @6FA;8= 6 6 @6FA;8= 67; : 6 656 : 6 657 : 6 655 : 6 65= : 6 65B : 6 65@ : 6 65F : 6 65< : 6 658 : 6 65; : 6 6=6 : 6 6TDTH[/ ;A785A7=< 7A<78A;7F 76A;67A6@= ;8A85< 6 ;A<6BA5=B 7A5;@AFBF



��������	�
�������
����������
�����������������������������
����������
��������������
���������������������������	��������������
� ���!"!# ��$ � %$�
� ���!"!# �&$����'��(�$�&��
� ���!"!# �&�)�� (*+���,��(��( �$�  %�
� ����!"!# � )��$�&�%�)� �$&�� -�������(�&��� ��,. �$�&-� �$�-� )�
 '$ ���)�-�&.��&��� %�������������)( $�� ���
 '$�� �/�� �� /, �.&��$����)���)( $�� ��
 '$�� �/�� �� /,01�2�31345 678997999 :7:6676;9 <796676;9 =7>99 9 67<==7:?@ :7>867=@=A1A�01�231345 ?7>;>7:?< 6=?7??= ?7;@67@<? 8>7=>< 9 ?78?;7:99 90B4AC�231345 87:;>7:?< :7<:;78:= :9789:796? 8;7;>< 9 87<9@7>?@ :7>867=@=



����������	
���������������	��	������
���������������������� �!"!#�����$��%" �!"!&��'��()*����������������+����'���(�$����,�����($-��'���.�/����+����$0�($�'+��.�(.(��-���-0�'��'*�����%1"��2�3��$��'���'�3��'�$0���'�*����&4�#4!"!#����3��'�$0���5�*����"1*%"�	3����'�'+��.�/����+����$0��$������-�$'�(��'�6.�����5���.����$'�(/7��'�($��'( �(����0�5�$'���$�)�8(��()� ��$��.��'�()�'+��.�(.(��-�/�-0�'2��+���$('������.����$'�����55����()�'+����..(�'�$0�-�'����()���8�$�����$-��6.�$-�'�����($�)����,�'+�'+����'������9��$-��(�$'����-�'(�2��'��/�-0�'��������/7��'�'(�.�('��'2��)�.�('��'�.�'�'�($���:����5�$'������5�' �'+���'�'���..�����(��-�,����+(�-����(����+����$02��(��5(����$)(�5�'�($ ��($���'+''.�*44-(52�(,�20(84�(����/�-0�'��..����2�+����-0�'���'�5�'����55����()�.�(.(��-������.'���$-��6.�$-�'���������+(,$�/��(,2��(.����()�'+��'+��-�'����-�.�(.(��-���-0�'�5���/��(/'��$�-�(�8��,�-��'�'+��())�����()�'+��3��(� ���'������9 ��$-��'�'+����/����2;<=�=>?@AB?=C�;D?BE�?BF�E=GH�IB?=�J=I�KLMMM�GBENB?@DO�DO�I=PNEBI�JIDJ=I?H LLQRSLTU;<=�=>?@AB?=C�?BF�E=GH�IB?=�J=I�KLMMM�GBENB?@DO�DO�VPI@WNE?NIBE�EBOC�@> RQMMRSX�'�'+��.�/����+����$0 ��$������-�$'�(��'�6.�����5���.����$'�(/7��'�($��'( �(����0�5�$'���$�)�8(��() ��$��.��'�()�'+��.�(.(��-�/�-0�'2Y<DO=�ZNA[=I\RL]̂�UTU_XSMM � @̀?H�̀E=Iabc@OBOW=�dee@W=If>�ZVgh;IBW=H�gNEWB<=H��-0�'�����!"!& �����'�5�'�-�����!"!# ��'��������!"!%��8�$����i��'+�����$�$��$0��(�����;BF=>�j=G@=C�DO�YIDJ=I?H L LRkRTRkTRM LTkULLkXl] LTkMUTkXLlj=>>m�nOWDEE=W?=C�YIDJ=I?H�;BF=>_j=GH�o=BI T M M M��'������$'�	�(.��'����6�� R LRkRTRkTRM LTkULLkXl] LTkMUTkXLlp=E@OqN=O?�YIDJ=I?H�;BF=> l M M M;rc�s=G=ON=> X lkXTLktMt lkXlTk]MS lkSMlkL]]d?<=I�̀@?H�;BF=> U LkTlMkLLR ]LTk]Tl ]]RkSL]j@W=O>=>�u�Y=IA@?> S ttUkXtM tStkltM t]Xk]T]n>=�De�gDO=H�BOC�YIDJ=I?H t TtTkRMM TXSkLMM TULkllUrO?=IPDG=IOA=O?BE ] RkUlMkX]S lkRXtkMSS XktXtkl]M<̀BIP=>�eDI�c==>�u�v=IG@W= LM LRkUM]k]]] LRkLtlk]SU LTk]SXkMttvJ=W@BE�V>>=>>A=O?> LL M M Mg@>W=EEBO=DN> LT SkSLSkLMM LMkXS]kUMM TktXSkMTLd?<=I�c@OBOW@OP�vDNIW=> LR tkTUXkMMM LMkMMUkMMM L]kMtlkRMX;IBO>e=I>�rO Ll LUkllTkl]] LlkRMMkM]L LUkMUtklRT�('�����8�$�����$-��'+����(����� LX U]k]T]kTTU SLkURLkSMl SXkSULkLlR�6.�$-�'�����i��'+�����$�$��$0�
���YN[E@W�vBe=?H LU UkTLRkUlL Xk]RtkXR] XkSU]kLMtYN[E@W�wDIa> LS lkl]TkRTL lklSUkSRL ]ktL]kTXTx=BE?<�BOC�vDW@BE�v=IG@W=> Lt LSMkMMM LXXkMMM LSUkTRXǸE?NI=�BOC�s=WI=B?@DO L] UkllLkTSM UkMtUkL]] UkUSMklT]D̀AANO@?H�BOC�hWDODA@W�p=G=EDJA=O? TM TkMRTkRSt LkU]SkUXS LkUlXktlty=O=IBE�yDG=IOA=O? TL TklM]kR]S TkRUtkMll UkU]LkMMLp=[?�v=IG@W= TT SkUUSk]lU SkXUXkTLX SkXlSklXMB̀J@?BE�YIDz=W?> TR LUkUXMkMMM TTkS]tkMMM RUkSL]�('����(8��$5�$'���'�8�'�����6.�$-�'���� Tl lUkMSUk]XR XLkMtXkRtX RtkRXUkMlT{N>@O=>>�;HJ=�b�hO?=IJI@>=> TX tkSllkRTl ]kXttkUXX tktSlk]UL�('��������6.�$-�'���� TU XlktTLkTSS UMkUSlkMlM lSkTRLkMMR;IBO>e=I>�dN? TS LUkllTkl]] LlkRMMkM]L LUkMUtklRT;D?BE�Vjj�hFJ=OC@?NI=>b;IBO>e=I>�dN? Tt SLkTURkSSU Slk]SlkLRL URkT]]klRX�6�������8�$����i��'+����(�������8�����|
$-��}��6.�$-�'����4���$�)������' T] _LkRRlkXXM _RkRlTklTS LTklULkSMt{=P@OO@OP�cNOC�{BEBOW=�~NEH�L RM T]kSSXkUll RRkLLtkMSL TMkUXUkRUR�$-�$0���$-�����$�����$��%" RL TtkllLkM]l T]kSSXkUll RRkLLtkMSL



For Year Ending June 30, 2025
(Updated February 7, 2024)

Financial Planning Model



Public Safety
FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29

Actual Budget Budget Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated

Police
  Budget Inflation Rate 3.80% 4.24% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
  Personnel Services 3,109,742$       3,221,068$       3,410,629$       3,581,160$         3,760,218$       3,948,229$      4,145,641$        
  Services & Commodities 390,587$         446,300$         508,300$         533,715$            560,401$          588,421$           617,842$          
  Capital Outlay -$                   10,000$            -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                  
  Transfers 124,982$           85,700$            3,700$               187,700$           123,700$           143,700$           208,700$        

Total 3,625,312$      3,763,068$    3,922,629$     4,302,575$     4,444,319$     4,680,350$    4,972,183$     

Emergency Management
  Budget Inflation Rate 34.96% 3.96% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%
  Personnel Services -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                  
  Services & Commodities 22,451$              30,300$           31,500$             32,760$             34,070$            35,433$             36,851$             
  Capital Outlay -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                  
  Transfers -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                  

Total 22,451$              30,300$           31,500$             32,760$            34,070$           35,433$            36,851$            
 

Fire
  Budget Inflation Rate 25.70% 8.50% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
  Personnel Services 983,424$         1,195,777$         1,359,026$       1,426,977$        1,498,326$       1,573,242$        1,651,905$        
  SAFER Grant 41,850$             35,000$            35,000$            35,000$            35,000$            35,000$            35,000$           
  Services & Commodities 163,166$            195,400$          204,600$         214,830$           225,572$           236,850$         248,693$         
  Capital Outlay -$                   24,000$           24,000$           24,000$            24,000$           24,000$           24,000$           
  Transfers 4,900$              49,900$           4,900$              4,900$               4,900$              4,900$              154,900$         

Total 1,193,340$       1,500,077$     1,627,526$      1,705,707$      1,787,798$      1,873,993$      2,114,497$      

Building Inspections
  Budget Inflation Rate 7.69% 4.35% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
  Personnel Services 429,411$            459,727$          482,682$          506,816$           532,157$            558,765$          586,703$         
  Services & Commodities 73,070$            81,466$             82,098$            86,203$            90,513$              95,039$            99,791$             
  Capital Outlay -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                  
  Transfers 1,000$                1,000$                1,000$                1,000$                1,000$                1,000$                1,000$               

Total 503,482$         542,193$          565,780$         594,019$          623,670$         654,803$        687,494$       

Animal Control
  Budget Inflation Rate -52.43% 71.18% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%
  Personnel Services 1,924$                 20,164$             34,030$            27,040$            28,122$              29,246$            30,416$            
  Services & Commodities 3,507$               18,100$              31,470$              32,729$             34,038$            35,399$            36,815$             
  Capital Outlay -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                  
  Transfers 75,000$            -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                  

Total 80,431$             38,264$            65,500$           59,769$            62,160$             64,646$           67,232$            

Traffic Safety (Crossing Guards)
  Budget Inflation Rate 61.48% -33.73% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
  Personnel Services 29,484$            47,936$            31,600$             33,180$              34,839$            36,581$              38,410$            
  Services & Commodities 510$                    500$                  500$                  525$                    551$                    579$                   608$                 
  Capital Outlay -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                  
  Transfers -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                  

Total 29,994$            48,436$           32,100$             33,705$            35,390$            37,160$             39,018$            

Total Expenditures 5,455,010$     5,922,338$     6,245,035$    6,728,536$     6,987,407$    7,346,385$    7,917,274$     

A Breakdown of Public Safety

% of General Fund Budget 31.06% 33.23% 33.30% 33.91% 33.69% 33.78% 34.70%
Cost/Capita 246.68$            261.37$              269.14$              283.32$             287.62$             295.76$             311.90$              
Total Personnel Costs 4,553,985$      4,944,672$      5,317,967$        5,575,174$        5,853,662$      6,146,064$       6,453,075$     
% of Public Safety Expenditures 83.48% 83.49% 85.16% 82.86% 83.77% 83.66% 81.51%

ACCOUNT FOR  
new full time animal 
control officer 
*half year FY24
*full year FY25
& postpone filling 
vacant position

REPLACE
computer 
equipment ($4.9K)

ADD 
supplies, equipment 
& software for new 
position

ACCOUNT FOR  
new full time animal 
control officer 
*half year FY24
*full year FY25

REPLACE
computer 
equipment ($1K)

REPLACE 
protective gear 
($24K)

ADD  
Flock Safety license 
plate recognition 
cameras

ACCOUNT FOR
Fire Marshal to 
full time & 
increase part time 
coverage adding 
100hrs/week

REPLACE 
computer 
equipment ($3.7K)

FY25 Budget Model - draft version 2024_02_07



Fire Capital Fund
FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29

Actual Budget Budget Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated

Revenues
  Transfer from General Fund -$                       45,000$                -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       
  Transfer from Reserves -$                       49,900$                -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       
  UIHC Fire Protection Agreement -$                       -$                       36,722$                 36,722$                 36,722$                 36,722$                 36,722$                 
  Other Revenue 8,111$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       
  General Obligation Bond Proceeds -$                       -$                       -$                       7,000,000$         1,800,000$          1,000,000$          -$                       

Total Revenues 8,111$                        94,900$               36,722$                 7,036,722$         1,836,722$           1,036,722$          36,722$                 

Fleet & Equipment*
  Personal Protective Gear & Equip 22,839$                 
  Off-Road Brush Fire Truck 250,630$              
  Training Tower Conex boxes 41,540$                  
  SCBA Compressor & Fill Station 66,404$                
 Command/EMS Vehicle 80,000$               
  Fire Station #2 7,000,000$         
  Platform Ladder Truck 1800000
  Fire Station #2 Pumper Truck 1,000,000$          

Total Expenditures 381,413$                80,000$               -$                        7,000,000$       1,800,000$         1,000,000$        -$                        

Net Change in Fund Balance (373,302)$           14,900$                 36,722$                 36,722$                 36,722$                 36,722$                 36,722$                 

Beginning Fund Balance 672,954$              299,652$              314,552$                351,274$                387,996$              424,718$               461,440$              
Ending Fund Balance 299,652$              314,552$               351,274$               387,996$             424,718$              461,440$              498,162$              

* See Capital Improvements Plan (CIP) for details.

Assigned Balance (Savings for Below List of Future Expenditures, FY Balance)
  Fire Station #2 250,000$             250,000$             -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       
Unassigned Balance 64,552$                 101,274$                174,718$                211,440$                248,162$               284,884$             

FY25 Budget Model - draft version 2024_02_07



Public Works
FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29

Actual Budget Budget Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated

Solid Waste Collection
  Budget Inflation Rate 33.47% 0.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%
  Personnel Services -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
  Services & Commodities 1,517,992$           2,026,000$       2,026,000$       2,107,040$         2,191,322$           2,278,974$        2,370,133$          
  Capital Outlay -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
  Transfers -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     

Total 1,517,992$          2,026,000$      2,026,000$      2,107,040$       2,191,322$          2,278,974$       2,370,133$        

Transit
  Budget Inflation Rate 5.68% 0.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%
  Personnel Services -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
  Services & Commodities 165,596$             175,000$            175,000$            182,000$            189,280$             196,851$              204,725$            
  Capital Outlay -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
  Transfers -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     

Total 165,596$            175,000$            175,000$            182,000$            189,280$            196,851$              204,725$           

Streets
  Budget Inflation Rate 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
  Personnel Services -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
  Services & Commodities 4,034$                 -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
  Capital Outlay -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
  Transfers -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     

Total 4,034$                -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      

Total Expenditures 1,687,621$         2,201,000$       2,201,000$       2,289,040$      2,380,602$      2,475,826$       2,574,859$       

A Breakdown of Public Works

% of General Fund Budget 9.61% 12.35% 11.74% 11.54% 11.48% 11.38% 11.28%
Cost/Capita 76.31$                   97.14$                   94.85$                 96.38$                 97.99$                 99.67$                 101.44$                 
Total Personnel Costs -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
% of Public Works Expenditures 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

FY25 Budget Model - draft version 2024_02_07



Health & Social Services
FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29

Actual Budget Budget Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated

Social Services
  Budget Inflation Rate 8.39% 9.68% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
  Personnel Services -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  
  Services & Commodities 143,000$         155,000$         170,000$         175,100$           180,353$          185,764$          191,336$           
  Capital Outlay -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  
  Transfers -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  

Total 143,000$        155,000$        170,000$        175,100$          180,353$         185,764$         191,336$          

Total Expenditures 143,000$        155,000$        170,000$        175,100$          180,353$         185,764$         191,336$          

A Breakdown of Social Services

% of General Fund Budget 0.81% 0.87% 0.91% 0.88% 0.87% 0.85% 0.84%
Cost/Capita 6.47$                 6.84$                 7.33$                 7.37$                 7.42$                 7.48$                 7.54$                 
Total Personnel Costs -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  
% of Health & Social Services Expenditures 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Discretionary Fund Applicants FY23 Award FY24 Award FY25 Request FY25 Actual
  4Cs Community Coordinated Child Care 5,000$             5,000$             -$                  -$                  
  Any Given Child (ICCSD) 5,000$             5,000$             -$                  -$                  
  Arc of Southeast Iowa 2,000$              2,000$              -$                  -$                  
  Big Brothers/Big Sisters 8,000$             8,000$             -$                  -$                  
  CommUnity Crisis Services & Food Bank 11,800$              12,000$            -$                  -$                  
  Corridor Community Action Network 2,000$              -$                  -$                  -$                  
  Domestic Violence Intervention Program 7,000$              6,500$              -$                  -$                  
  Horizons, A Family Service Alliance (Meals) 10,000$            10,000$            -$                  -$                  
  Families Helping Families of Iowa -$                  750$                  -$                  -$                  
  Friends of the Iowa City Senior Center 7,000$              7,450$              -$                  -$                  
  Girls on the Run of Eastern Iowa 3,200$              3,000$             -$                  -$                  
  Houses into Homes 8,000$             7,000$              -$                  -$                  
  Housing Trust Fund of Johnson Co 20,000$           20,000$           -$                  -$                  
  Iowa City Free Medical & Dental Clinic 5,000$             5,800$              -$                  -$                  
  Iowa LEAP -$                  1,500$               -$                  -$                  
  Iowa Legal Aid 5,000$             5,000$             -$                  -$                  
  Iowa Matrix (I AM AWARE program) 2,000$              -$                  -$                  -$                  
  NL Community Pantry 20,000$           25,000$           -$                  -$                  
  Rape Victim Advocacy Program 3,500$              3,500$              -$                  -$                  
  Shelter House Community Shelter 10,000$            10,000$            -$                  -$                  
  Sober Living -$                  1,500$               -$                  -$                  
  Table to Table 7,000$              7,000$              -$                  -$                  
  United Action for Youth 8,500$              9,000$             -$                  -$                  

Total 150,000$        155,000$        -$                   -$                   

FY25 Budget Model - draft version 2024_02_07



Culture & Recreation
FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29

Actual Budget Budget Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated

Library
  Budget Inflation Rate -4.90% 6.71% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
  Personnel Services 1,020,612$           1,072,130$           1,149,611$             1,207,092$         1,267,446$         1,330,818$          1,397,359$          
  Services & Commodities 312,232$              295,140$             309,545$           325,022$            341,273$             358,337$            376,254$            
  Capital Outlay -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
  Transfers 107,200$             2,200$                 2,200$                 2,200$                 2,200$                 2,200$                 2,200$                 

Total 1,440,045$       1,369,470$       1,461,356$         1,534,314$         1,610,919$          1,691,355$         1,775,813$          

Parks, Buildings & Grounds
  Budget Inflation Rate 13.06% 5.89% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
  Personnel Services 851,391$              862,720$            948,177$             995,586$            1,045,365$         1,097,633$         1,152,515$             
  Services & Commodities 222,632$             263,850$            294,899$           309,644$           325,126$              341,382$             358,452$            
  Capital Outlay -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
  Transfers 57,200$              152,400$             111,200$                171,200$              183,200$             139,450$             1,200$                  

Total 1,131,223$           1,278,970$        1,354,276$        1,476,430$       1,553,691$         1,578,466$        1,512,167$           

Recreation
  Budget Inflation Rate -1.47% 11.63% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
  Personnel Services 1,338,933$         1,323,557$          1,454,778$         1,527,517$            1,603,893$         1,684,087$         1,768,292$          
  Services & Commodities 502,892$            495,500$           551,401$              578,971$             607,920$           638,316$             670,231$             
  Capital Outlay -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
  Transfers 53,400$              48,400$             78,400$              63,900$              69,900$              126,400$             83,400$              

Total 1,895,225$        1,867,457$        2,084,579$      2,170,388$        2,281,712$          2,448,803$      2,521,923$         

Community Center
  Budget Inflation Rate 52.77% 9.86% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
  Personnel Services -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
  Services & Commodities 133,229$              257,000$           250,333$            262,850$            275,992$            289,792$            304,281$             
  Capital Outlay -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
  Transfers 35,000$              -$                     32,000$              -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     

Total 168,229$             257,000$          282,333$           262,850$           275,992$           289,792$           304,281$            

Cemetery
  Budget Inflation Rate 29.64% 0.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00%
  Personnel Services -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
  Services & Commodities 30,855$              40,000$             40,000$             42,400$              44,944$              47,641$                50,499$              
  Capital Outlay -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
  Transfers -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     

Total 30,855$              40,000$             40,000$             42,400$             44,944$             47,641$               50,499$             

Aquatic Center
  Budget Inflation Rate 3.48% 1.82% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
  Personnel Services 766,070$           704,208$           693,960$           728,658$            765,091$             803,345$           843,513$             
  Services & Commodities 283,132$             381,500$            411,525$               432,101$              453,706$           476,392$            500,211$              
  Capital Outlay -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
  Transfers -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     

Total 1,049,202$       1,085,708$       1,105,485$         1,160,759$         1,218,797$          1,279,737$        1,343,724$        

Total Expenditures 5,714,779$        5,898,605$      6,328,029$      6,647,140$       6,986,056$      7,335,794$      7,508,407$      

A Breakdown of Culture & Recreation
% of General Fund Budget 32.54% 33.10% 33.75% 33.50% 33.68% 33.73% 32.90%
Cost/Capita 258.42$               260.32$               272.71$                 279.89$               287.56$               295.33$               295.79$               
Total Personnel Costs 3,977,006$        3,962,615$          4,246,526$        4,458,852$        4,681,795$         4,915,885$         5,161,679$           
% of C & R Expenditures 69.59% 67.18% 67.11% 67.08% 67.02% 67.01% 68.75%

REPLACE
computer 
equipment 
($2.2K)

REPLACE
exercise 
equipment 
($20K);
BASP Van 
($55K); 
computer 
equipment 
($3.4K)

REPLACE
second floor 
windows ($32K)

REPLACE 
skid steer shared 
with Stormwater 
($55K);
wide area mower 
($55K);
computer 
equipment 
($1.2K)

ACCOUNT FOR  
new full time 
laborer 
*half year FY24
*full year FY25

FY25 Budget Model - draft version 2024_02_07



Community Center Fund
FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29

Actual Budget Budget Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated

Revenues
  Transfer from General Fund 85,000$         15,000$          52,000$            -$                -$                 50,000$          50,000$          
  Transfer from Hotel/Motel Tax -$                18,000$          100,000$         50,000$         50,000$         100,000$         -$                  
  Other Revenue 330,806$      14,000$          13,000$             13,000$          13,000$           13,000$            13,000$            
  General Obligation Bond Proceeds -$                -$                -$                   600,000$     400,000$      400,000$       189,000$         

Total Revenues 415,806$       47,000$        165,000$         663,000$     463,000$      563,000$       252,000$        

Capital Improvements*
  Vending Expenses 8,687$             14,000$          13,000$             13,000$          13,000$           13,000$            13,000$            
  Weight/Exercise Equipment 36,280$          15,000$          20,000$           50,000$          50,000$          
  Community Center Roof 602,315$         
  Pool Heater 78,252$           
  Exterior Masonry - Clean & Paint 50,000$         
  Joint Sealants 35,000$         
  Aquatics Enhancements 18,000$          50,000$           100,000$       100,000$         
  Parking Lot & Sidewalks 50,000$           300,000$      400,000$      400,000$       
  Windows (24) - Second Floor 32,000$            
  Remodel Aquatic Bathrooms 250,000$      
  Gymnasium Curtains & System 50,000$         
  Acoustical Ceiling Tile in Gerdin 15,000$            
  Cabinet Replacement/Refurbishment 75,000$           
  Door & Window Frame Refinishing./Repainting 74,000$           
  Track Painting 25,000$           

Total Expenditures 725,534$      132,000$       165,000$         663,000$     463,000$      563,000$       252,000$        

Net Change in Fund Balance (309,727)$    (85,000)$      -$                   -$                 -$                  -$                  -$                  

Beginning Fund Balance 590,395$       370,092$       285,092$          285,092$       285,092$        285,092$         285,092$         
Ending Fund Balance 370,092$      285,092$      285,092$         285,092$      285,092$       285,092$        285,092$        

* See Capital Improvements Plan (CIP) for details.

Assigned Balance (Savings for Future Expenditures, FY Balance as Listed)
  Aquatics Capital 110,567$          92,567$          92,567$             
  Aquatics HVAC & Heater Projects -$                -$                -$                   
  Recreation Equipment 57,000$         57,000$         57,000$            
  Community Center Boilers 90,000$        90,000$        90,000$           
  Community Center 96,224$          11,224$             11,224$                
  Community Center Lift 15,000$          15,000$          15,000$             
  Esias Grimes Scholarship Fund 1,300$             1,300$             1,300$                

Assigned Balance Total 370,091$        267,091$        267,091$          
Unassigned Balance 1$                        18,001$           18,001$              18,001$           18,001$            18,001$             18,001$             

FY25 Budget Model - draft version 2024_02_07



Community & Economic Development
FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29

Actual Budget Budget Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated

Housing & Urban Renewal
  Budget Inflation Rate 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
  Personnel Services -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
  Services & Commodities 143,805$             -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
  Capital Outlay -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
  Transfers -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     

Total 143,805$            -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      

Economic Development
  Budget Inflation Rate 14.29% 18.57% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
  Personnel Services -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
  Services & Commodities 122,500$             140,000$            166,000$            170,980$             176,109$              181,393$               186,834$             
  Capital Outlay -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
  Transfers -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     

Total 122,500$            140,000$           166,000$           170,980$            176,109$             181,393$              186,834$            

Planning & Zoning
  Budget Inflation Rate -1.73% 3.09% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
  Personnel Services 230,778$            254,777$             268,812$             282,253$            296,365$            311,183$                326,743$            
  Services & Commodities 329,209$            295,500$           298,456$            313,379$             329,048$           345,500$           362,775$            
  Capital Outlay -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
  Transfers -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     

Total 559,987$           550,277$           567,268$           595,631$             625,413$             656,684$           689,518$            

Community Relations
  Budget Inflation Rate 21.10% 12.90% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
  Personnel Services 424,994$           511,872$               572,843$            601,485$             631,559$             663,137$             696,294$           
  Services & Commodities 62,834$              79,300$              94,807$              100,000$            105,000$            110,250$              115,763$               
  Capital Outlay -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
  Transfers 1,900$                  1,900$                  1,900$                  1,900$                  1,900$                  1,900$                  1,900$                  

Total 489,728$           593,072$           669,550$           703,385$           738,459$           775,287$            813,957$             

Total Expenditures 1,316,020$         1,283,349$        1,402,818$         1,469,997$        1,539,982$        1,613,364$         1,690,309$       

A Breakdown of Community & Economic Development
% of General Fund Budget 7.49% 7.20% 7.48% 7.41% 7.42% 7.42% 7.41%
Cost/Capita 59.51$                   56.64$                 60.46$                 61.90$                  63.39$                 64.95$                 66.59$                 
Total Personnel Costs 655,773$            766,649$           841,655$             883,738$            927,925$            974,321$             1,023,037$         
% of C & ED Expenditures 49.83% 59.74% 60.00% 60.12% 60.26% 60.39% 60.52%

ACCOUNT FOR  
new full time 
event assistant
*half year FY24
*full year FY25

ACCOUNT FOR  
website &  
electronic 
message board 
updates

SUPPORT 
Greater IC Inc. 
($96K); 
Blues BBQ 
($50K); 
UNESCO ($10K); 
Entrepren'l Dev't 
Center ($10K)

FY25 Budget Model - draft version 2024_02_07



General Government
FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29

Actual Budget Budget Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated

Mayor & Council
  Budget Inflation Rate 58.84% -9.03% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
  Personnel Services 13,816$                 23,943$               21,737$                 22,824$               23,965$               25,163$                26,421$                
  Services & Commodities 1,572$                   500$                    500$                    500$                    500$                    500$                    500$                    
  Capital Outlay -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
  Transfers -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     

Total 15,388$                24,443$              22,237$               23,324$               24,465$              25,663$              26,921$                

Administration
  Budget Inflation Rate -32.46% 2.23% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
  Personnel Services 1,246,825$          1,304,643$         1,526,861$           1,603,204$         1,683,364$         1,767,532$          1,855,909$         
  Services & Commodities 788,625$            676,500$           498,459$           523,382$            549,551$             577,029$            605,880$           
  Capital Outlay -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
  Transfers 904,300$           4,300$                 4,300$                 4,300$                 4,300$                 4,300$                 4,300$                 

Total 2,939,749$       1,985,443$        2,029,620$       2,130,886$        2,237,215$         2,348,861$        2,466,089$      

Elections
  Budget Inflation Rate
  Personnel Services -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
  Services & Commodities -$                     7,500$                 -$                     8,500$                 16,000$               9,500$                 15,000$               
  Capital Outlay -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
  Transfers -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     

Total -$                      7,500$                 -$                      8,500$                 16,000$               9,500$                 15,000$               

Legal & Tort Liability
  Budget Inflation Rate 8.47% 3.66% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
  Personnel Services 233,861$             254,391$             263,318$             276,484$            290,308$           304,823$            320,065$           
  Services & Commodities 23,684$              24,980$              26,271$                27,585$               28,964$              30,412$                31,933$                
  Capital Outlay -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
  Transfers -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     

Total 257,545$            279,371$             289,589$           304,068$          319,272$             335,235$            351,997$             

Personnel
  Budget Inflation Rate 90.42% 0.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
  Personnel Services 23,759$               35,000$              35,000$              36,750$              38,588$              40,517$                42,543$               
  Services & Commodities 9,325$                  28,000$              28,000$              29,400$              30,870$              32,414$                34,034$              
  Capital Outlay -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
  Transfers -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     

Total 33,084$              63,000$             63,000$             66,150$               69,458$              72,930$              76,577$               

Total Expenditures 3,245,767$       2,359,757$       2,404,446$      2,532,928$        2,666,410$        2,792,190$        2,936,585$       

A Breakdown of General Government
% of General Fund Budget 18.48% 13.24% 12.82% 12.77% 12.86% 12.84% 12.87%
Cost/Capita 146.77$                104.14$                 103.62$                106.65$                109.76$                112.41$                   115.69$                 
Total Personnel Costs 1,518,262$           1,617,977$           1,846,916$          1,939,262$          2,036,225$        2,138,036$         2,244,937.94$  
% of General Gov't Expenditures 46.78% 68.57% 76.81% 76.56% 76.37% 76.57% 76.45%

REPLACE 
computer 
equipment ($4.3K) 

ACCOUNT FOR 
elimination of City 
Hall lease payment

ACCOUNT FOR 
new full time 
desktop technician
*half year FY24 
*full year FY25 
&
new full time 
finance position in 
FY25 
*partially covered 
by transfer from 
RUT, WW, Water, 
Stormwater

FY25 Budget Model - draft version 2024_02_07



General Fund Revenues (NEW)
FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29

Actual Budget Budget Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated

Taxable Rate - NEW FORMULAS FOR FY25

PYNTTV
Previous Year Non-TIF Taxable Value, 
including Utility Replacement 

n/a n/a 1,089,269,453$ 1,162,658,654$   1,220,791,587$   1,281,831,166$      1,320,286,101$      

BYNTTV
Budget Year Non-TIF Taxable Value, 
including Utility Replacement

1,051,996,465$  1,089,269,453$ 1,162,658,654$   1,220,791,587$   1,281,831,166$      1,320,286,101$    1,359,894,684$   

Growth Rate 3.54% 6.74% 5.00% 5.00% 3.00% 3.00%

PYGFL
Previous Year General Fund Levy 

8.10000$             8.10000$             8.10000$             7.86408$            7.70988$             7.55871$               7.41050$                

IF growth is less than 3%, 
THEN NO multiplier of PYNTTV

n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

IF growth is between 3% & 5.99%, 
THEN multiply PYNTTV  by 1.02  

n/a n/a n/a 1,185,911,827$      1,245,207,418$   1,307,467,789$ 1,346,691,823$     

IF growth is  6% or greater,
THEN multiply PYNTTV  by 1.03

n/a n/a 1,121,947,537$     n/a n/a n/a n/a

n/a 8,823,083$         9,143,238$           9,412,157$             9,688,985$         9,783,975$            

  Regular n/a n/a 1,157,371,546$     1,187,815,735$     1,209,269,425$  1,241,830,352$   1,265,369,356$    
  Agriculture 2,306,058$         2,422,565$          2,293,055$          2,293,055$          2,293,055$          2,293,055$          2,293,055$            

Tax Rates

  ACGFL  
  Adjusted City General Fund Levy
  [(PYGFPTC  ÷ PYNTTV ) x 1,000] 8.10000$             8.10000$             7.86408$            7.70988$             7.55871$               7.41050$              7.26519$                 
  Insurance 0.00000$           0.00000$           0.23592$             0.24711$                0.26093$             0.27315$               0.28817$                 
  Other 0.00000$           0.00000$           0.00000$           0.00000$           0.00000$           0.00000$           0.00000$             
  Trust & Agency 2.00238$             2.20805$             2.29068$             2.29068$             2.29068$             2.29068$             2.29068$               

Total Non-Ag 10.10238$            10.30805$          10.39068$          10.24767$           10.11032$             9.97433$             9.84405$              

  Agriculture 3.00375$             3.00375$             3.00375$             3.00375$             3.00375$             3.00375$             3.00375$               

Property Tax Revenues & Credits
  General 8,468,659$         8,782,821$           9,101,662$            9,157,917$             9,140,512$            9,202,579$          9,193,152$               
  Insurance -$                       -$                       273,047$             293,526$              315,540$               339,205$             364,646$               
  Other -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                         
  Trust & Agency 2,150,386$           2,477,028$          2,715,910$            2,796,443$         2,936,265$          3,024,353$          3,115,084$              
  Agriculture 6,697$                   7,277$                   6,888$                  6,888$                  6,888$                  6,888$                  6,888$                     
  Utility Excise Tax 17,613$                   40,262$                42,826$                51,240$                 51,240$                 51,240$                 51,240$                    
  Mobile Home Taxes 19,479$                 25,000$               25,000$               25,000$               25,000$               25,000$               25,000$                 
  Monies & Credits 402,417$              356,000$            400,000$           400,000$           400,000$           400,000$           400,000$             

Total 11,065,252$        11,688,388$        12,565,332$       12,731,013$         12,875,445$       13,049,265$      13,156,009$          

Inflationary Rate -2.06% 0.92% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00%

896,999$             878,480$             886,580$             895,446$             904,400$            913,444$              922,579$                
Inflationary Rate 15.31% 11.15% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00%

188,275$               217,100$                241,300$              243,713$               246,150$              248,612$               251,098$                 
Inflationary Rate -11.49% 9.10% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00%

741,091$                655,952$              715,644$               722,800$             730,028$             737,329$              744,702$               
Inflationary Rate 17.05% 3.63% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%

2,651,966$           3,104,100$           3,216,900$          3,313,407$           3,412,809$           3,515,193$             3,620,649$           
Inflationary Rate -28.69% 0.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%

302,348$             215,600$              215,600$              219,912$                224,310$               228,796$             233,372$                
Inflationary Rate 12.72% 25.41% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%

498,541$              561,952$               704,725$             739,961$               776,959$             815,807$              856,598$               
80% of backfill 60% of backfill 40% of backfill 20% of backfill

193,115$                  144,583$               93,506$                48,000$               -$                       -$                       -$                         
Inflationary Rate 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

-$                       119,041$                 111,976$                  111,976$                  111,976$                  111,976$                  111,976$                    

  ARPA Transfer In 275,000$            155,000$             -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                        

Total 16,812,588$        17,740,196$       18,751,563$        19,026,229$       19,282,078$       19,620,423$      19,896,982$         

PYGFPTC
Previous Year General Fund Property Taxes Certified,
including Utility Replacement Request

  Licenses & Permits

  Use of Money

  Intergovernmental

  Charges for Services

Taxable Value - Budget Year Non-TIF Taxable Value, excluding Utility Replacement

INSURANCE 
LEVY
not 
previously 
used

$8.10 LEVY
reduced as a 
result of 
growth

  Utility Accounting & Collection

  Commercial Prop Tax Backfill

  Business Property Tax Credit

  Miscellaneous



FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29
Actual Budget Budget Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated

Revenues
  Property Taxes 11,065,252$           11,688,388$          12,565,332$         12,731,013$            12,875,445$         13,049,265$         13,156,009$          
  Licenses & Permits 896,999$             878,480$             886,580$             895,446$             904,400$             913,444$               922,579$               
  Use of Money 188,275$                217,100$                 241,300$               243,713$                246,150$               248,612$                251,098$               
  Intergovernmental 741,091$                655,952$              715,644$               722,800$              730,028$              737,329$               744,702$              
  Charges for Services 2,651,966$            3,104,100$            3,216,900$           3,313,407$           3,412,809$           3,515,193$             3,620,649$          
  Miscellaneous 302,348$              215,600$               215,600$               219,912$                 224,310$               228,796$              233,372$               
  Utility Accounting & Collection 498,541$               561,952$                704,725$              739,961$               776,959$              815,807$               856,598$              
  Commercial Property Tax Backfill 193,115$                  144,583$               93,506$                48,000$                -$                       -$                       -$                       
  Business Property Tax Credit -$                       119,041$                  111,976$                  111,976$                  111,976$                  111,976$                  111,976$                  
  ARPA Transfer In 275,000$             155,000$              -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       

Total General Fund Revenues 16,812,588$        17,740,196$       18,751,563$        19,026,229$       19,282,078$       19,620,423$      19,896,982$      

Expenditures
  Public Safety 5,455,010$           5,922,338$           6,245,035$          6,728,536$          6,987,407$          7,346,385$          7,917,274$            
  Public Works 1,687,621$             2,201,000$           2,201,000$           2,289,040$          2,380,602$          2,475,826$           2,574,859$          
  Health & Social Services 143,000$              155,000$               170,000$              175,100$                180,353$               185,764$               191,336$                 
  Culture & Recreation 5,714,779$            5,898,605$          6,328,029$          6,647,140$           6,986,056$          7,335,794$          7,508,407$          
  Community & Economic Dev't 1,316,020$             1,283,349$            1,402,818$             1,469,997$           1,539,982$            1,613,364$             1,690,309$           
  General Government 3,245,767$           2,359,757$           2,404,446$         2,532,928$           2,666,410$           2,792,190$            2,936,585$          

Total General Fund Expenditures 17,562,197$        17,820,049$      18,751,328$        19,842,741$        20,740,810$      21,749,322$       22,818,770$       

Revenues - Expenditures = (749,609)$            (79,853)$               235$                        (816,512)$               (1,458,731)$           (2,128,899)$          (2,921,787)$          

Beginning Fund Balance 6,567,075$          5,817,466$           5,737,612$            5,737,848$          4,921,335$            3,462,604$          1,333,705$            
Ending Fund Balance 5,817,466$         5,737,612$          5,737,848$        4,921,335$          3,462,604$        1,333,705$         (1,588,082)$       

% Reserved 34.60% 32.34% 30.60% 25.87% 17.96% 6.80% -7.98%

Total Revenues/Capita 760$                      783$                       808$                      801$                        794$                      790$                      784$                      

Expenditures/Capita
  Public Safety 247$                        261$                         269$                        283$                        288$                       296$                        312$                         
  Public Works 76$                          97$                          95$                          96$                          98$                          100$                        101$                          
  Health & Social Services 6$                             7$                             7$                             7$                             7$                             7$                             8$                             
  Culture & Recreation 258$                        260$                       273$                        280$                       288$                       295$                        296$                        
  Community & Economic Dev't 60$                          57$                           60$                          62$                          63$                          65$                          67$                          
  General Government 147$                         104$                        104$                        107$                         110$                          112$                           116$                          

Total GF Expenditures/Capita 794$                      786$                       808$                      836$                      854$                      876$                       899$                      

Personnel Expenditures
  Public Safety 4,553,985$          4,944,672$          5,317,967$            5,575,174$            5,853,662$          6,146,064$           6,453,075$          
  Public Works -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       
  Health & Social Services -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       
  Culture & Recreation 3,977,006$          3,962,615$            4,246,526$          4,458,852$          4,681,795$           4,915,885$           5,161,679$             
  Community & Economic Dev't 655,773$              766,649$              841,655$               883,738$              927,925$               974,321$                1,023,037$           
  General Government 1,518,262$             1,617,977$             1,846,916$             1,939,262$            2,036,225$           2,138,036$           2,244,938$          

Total Personnel Expenditures 10,705,026$      11,291,913$           12,253,064$       12,857,026$       13,499,607$      14,174,306$       14,882,729$       

% of General Fund Expenditures 60.95% 63.37% 65.35% 64.79% 65.09% 65.17% 65.22%

General Fund Summary

RESERVE 
BALANCE 
remains 
strong, 
at the higher 
end of the 
General Fund 
Reserve Policy

FY25 Budget Model - draft version 2024_02_07



American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Allocation
Coronavirus State & Local Fiscal Recovery Funds AWARDED REMAINING

2,906,110$      561,610$          
Projects Funded FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 TOTAL POTENTIAL

1.  Domestic Violence Intervention Program 25,000$          25,000$          
2.  North Liberty Community Pantry 100,000$        100,000$        
3. City Social Services Grants 150,000$        155,000$         305,000$       
4.  Storm Water GIS 200,000$      200,000$      
5.  Centennial Park 1,000,000$    1,000,000$    
6.  Ranshaw House Furnishings 40,000$         40,000$         
7.  Affordable Housing Program 400,000$      400,000$      
8.  Workforce Housing Program -$                 
9.  Social Service Support -$                 245,000$       
10. Liberty Centre Pond Repairs 132,000$         132,000$         
11.  Leaf Vac Trailer 142,500$         142,500$         
12. Other -$                 

Total 125,000$       350,000$     1,595,000$   274,500$      2,344,500$ 245,000$      
General Fund Transfer -$                 275,000$       155,000$         -$                 316,610$          

Equipment Revolving Transfer -$                 -$                 -$                 142,500$         BALANCE
Stormwater Capital Transfer -$                 -$                 -$                 132,000$         

FY25 Budget Model - draft version 2024_02_07



$5,817,466 $5,737,612 $5,737,848 

$4,921,335 

$3,462,604 

$0

$1,000,000

$2,000,000

$3,000,000

$4,000,000

$5,000,000

$6,000,000

$7,000,000

Actual Budget Budget Estimated Estimated

FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27

General Fund Balance Projection

$0

$5,000,000

$10,000,000

$15,000,000

$20,000,000

$25,000,000

Actual Budget Budget Estimated Estimated

FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27

General Fund Revenue/Expense Projections

Revenues Expenditures

33%

12%34%

7%
13%

General Fund FY25 Expenditures 

  Public Safety

  Public Works

  Health & Social Services

  Culture & Recreation

  Community & Economic Dev't

  General Government

67%
5%

17%
4%

General Fund FY25 Revenues 

  Property Taxes

  Licenses & Permits

  Use of Money

  Intergovernmental

  Charges for Services

  Miscellaneous

  Utility Accounting & Collection

  Commercial Property Tax Backfill



 $-

 $5,000,000

 $10,000,000

 $15,000,000

 $20,000,000

 $25,000,000

Actual Budget Budget Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated

FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29

History & Forecast of General Fund Revenues

  Property Taxes

  Charges for Services

  Utility Accounting & Collection

  Licenses & Permits

  Commercial Property Tax Backfill

  Intergovernmental

  Use of Money

  Miscellaneous

 $-

 $5,000,000

 $10,000,000

 $15,000,000

 $20,000,000

 $25,000,000

Actual Budget Budget Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated

FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29

History & Forecast of General Fund Expenditures

  Culture & Recreation

  Public Safety

  General Government

  Public Works

  Community & Economic Dev't

  Health & Social Services

 -

 5,000

 10,000

 15,000

 20,000

 25,000

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Population 5,376 5,954 6,266 6,866 7,224 8,806 9,992 10,982 11,300 11,700 13,374 14,036 14,698 15,360 16,022 16,684 18,299 18,844 19,389 19,934 20,479 21,024 21,569 22,114 22,659 23,204

North Liberty Census History and Forecast



Hotel/Motel Tax
FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29

Actual Budget Budget Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated

Revenues
Budget Inflation Rate -19.45% 6.67% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%
  Taxes Collected 93,107$                75,000$              80,000$             81,600$               83,232$               84,897$              86,595$              

Total Revenues 93,107$               75,000$             80,000$             81,600$               83,232$               84,897$              86,595$              

Expenditures
CVB Contribution 23,277$               18,750$                20,000$              20,400$              20,808$              21,224$                21,649$                
Services & Commodities 12,346$                6,900$                 14,000$               14,280$                14,566$                14,857$                15,154$                 

Projects*
Blues & BBQ, Summer Slate & Beat the Bitter 15,000$               
Babe Ruth Field concessions Phase 1 10,000$               
Babe Ruth Field concessions Phase 2
Fox Run Pond Park 75,000$              
Aquatic Enhancements (Comm Ctr Fund Transfer) 18,000$               50,000$             50,000$             100,000$            
Comm Ctr Parking Lot & Sidewalks (Comm Ctr Fund Transfer) 50,000$             

    Gymnasium Curtains & System (Comm Ctr Fund Transfer) 50,000$             

Total Expenditures 60,623$              118,650$             134,000$           84,680$             85,374$              136,081$             36,803$              

Net Change in Fund Balance 32,484$              (43,650)$           (54,000)$           (3,080)$              (2,142)$                 (51,184)$               49,792$              

Beginning Fund Balance 69,644$              102,128$               58,478$              4,478$                 1,398$                  (744)$                   (51,928)$              
Ending Fund Balance 102,128$              58,478$              4,478$                 1,398$                   (744)$                   (51,928)$              (2,136)$                 

% Reserved 168.47% 49.29% 3.34% 1.65% -0.87% -38.16% -5.80%

Projects* See Capital Improvements Plan (CIP) for project details.

FY25 Budget Model - draft version 2024_02_07



Franchise Fee Fund
FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29

Actual Budget Budget Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated

Revenues
  Alliant Energy 182,567$              288,655$            324,736$            327,984$            331,264$             334,576$            337,922$            
  Linn County REC 159,763$             196,323$             220,863$            223,071$              225,302$            227,555$             229,831$             
  MidAmerican Energy 118,773$               115,023$               129,401$              130,695$             132,002$             133,322$              134,655$             

Total Revenues 461,103$             400,000$         675,000$          681,750$            688,568$           695,453$           702,408$           

Expenditures
Projects*

Babe Ruth Field backstop 60,000$             
Babe Ruth Field concessions Phase 1 25,000$              
Centennial Park 500,000$          500,000$          500,000$          500,000$          500,000$          500,000$          
Fox Run Pond Park playground 338,000$           
Penn Meadows playground surface 140,000$            
Freedom Park new park walk trail 130,000$            
Koser Park backstop 45,000$              
Quail Ridge Park parking expansion 95,000$              
Quail Ridge Park ballfield update (90' bases) 15,000$               
Penn Meadows ballfield light (Field 3 or 4) 125,000$             
Penn Meadows Park solar parking lot lights 120,000$            
Penn Meadows Tennis parking expansion 50,000$             
Fox Run Neighborhood Park playground 120,000$            
Deerfield Park playground & border 85,000$              
Broadmoor Park new park walk trail 160,000$            
Trail Lighting 50,000$             
Ranshaw House outdoor fitness equipment 60,000$             
Red Fern Dog Park agility equipment 65,000$              
Liberty Centre Park repainting
Frisbee Golf (park tbd)
Fox Valley playground

Total Expenditures -$                      923,000$          815,000$            905,000$          705,000$          710,000$           625,000$          

Net Change in Fund Balance 461,103$             (523,000)$        (140,000)$         (223,250)$          (16,433)$             (14,547)$             77,408$              

Beginning Fund Balance 352,648$            813,751$               290,751$             150,751$               (72,499)$             (88,932)$             (103,478)$           
Ending Fund Balance 813,751$              290,751$             150,751$              (72,499)$            (88,932)$            (103,478)$          (26,071)$             

Projects* See Capital Improvements Plan (CIP) for project details.

FY25 Budget Model - draft version 2024_02_07



FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29
Actual Budget Budget Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated

Population 20,479                 20,479                 20,479                 20,479                 20,479                 20,479                 20,479                 
RUT Formula Funding/Capita 114.22$                  106.24$                108.73$                109.56$                110.39$                 111.22$                   112.05$                 
2015 Gas Tax Funding/Capita 23.39$                 21.76$                   22.27$                  22.44$                 22.61$                   22.78$                  22.95$                  

Revenues
RUT Formula Funding/Capita 2,339,057$        2,175,689$          2,226,682$         2,243,679$        2,260,677$        2,277,674$         2,294,672$         
2015 Gas Tax Funding/Capita 479,084$           445,623$            456,067$           459,549$            463,030$           466,512$             469,993$           

Total Revenues 2,818,141$           2,621,312$          2,682,749$       2,703,228$       2,723,707$       2,744,186$        2,764,665$       
Revenues/Capita 137.61$                 128.00$               131.00$                132.00$               133.00$               134.00$               135.00$               

Expenditures
Budget Inflation Rate 35.44% -16.97% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
  Personnel Services 807,895$           907,676$            1,003,999$         1,054,199$          1,106,909$          1,162,254$           1,220,367$          
  Services & Commodities 356,409$           501,900$            560,400$           588,420$           617,841$               648,733$            681,170$              
  Snow & Ice Removal 187,647$             170,000$            190,000$            199,500$            209,475$            219,949$             230,946$           
  Traffic Safety 108,148$              130,000$            134,000$            140,700$            147,735$              155,122$               162,878$             
  Street Lighting 80,770$              96,000$             103,000$            108,150$              113,558$               119,235$               125,197$               
  Transfers
    Equipment Revolving 260,000$           380,000$          124,000$            352,000$           233,000$           369,000$           400,000$          
    Capital 54,256$               600,000$          -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
    Debt 149,290$             146,170$              147,690$             149,010$              149,950$             -$                     -$                     
    Street Repair Program 486,179$             445,623$            456,067$           459,549$            463,030$           466,512$             469,993$           
    Computer Revolving 2,300$                 2,300$                 2,300$                 2,300$                 2,300$                 2,300$                 2,300$                 
    Billing & Accounting 10,699$               11,295$                  94,152$                98,860$              103,803$             108,993$             114,442$               

Total Expenditures 2,503,591$        3,390,964$      2,815,608$        3,152,687$         3,147,600$       3,252,098$       3,407,293$       

Net Change in Fund Balance 314,550$            (769,652)$         (132,859)$           (449,459)$        (423,893)$         (507,912)$          (642,628)$         

Beginning Fund Balance 2,722,342$         3,036,893$        2,267,241$          2,134,382$          1,684,922$          1,261,029$           753,118$               
Ending Fund Balance 3,036,893$      2,267,241$         2,134,382$        1,684,922$        1,261,029$          753,118$              110,489$             

% Reserved 121.30% 66.86% 75.81% 53.44% 40.06% 23.16% 3.24%

A Breakdown of Road Use Tax (RUT) Fund

Total Personnel Costs 854,917$             947,676$            1,043,999$         1,094,199$          1,146,909$          1,202,254$          1,260,367$         
% of RUT Fund Expenditures 32.27% 26.77% 35.66% 33.44% 35.17% 35.74% 35.82%

Road Use Tax (RUT) Fund

ADD
hot patch trailer 
($45K); 
skid steer 
attachments 
($45K); 
message board 
trailer ($20K)

REPLACE
utility locator 
($14K)

FY24 
REVENUES
on track to reach 
$2.85M

ACCOUNT FOR  
new full time 
laborer 
*half year FY24
*full year FY25

FY25 Budget Model - draft version 2024_02_07



Street Repair Program
FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29

Actual Budget Budget Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated

Revenues
  Transfer from RUT Fund 486,179$               445,623$              456,067$              459,549$              463,030$             466,512$               469,993$             
  Other Transfers -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       

Total Revenues 486,179$              445,623$             456,067$             459,549$             463,030$            466,512$               469,993$             

Expenditures
Projects*

Ranshaw Way Shoulders 300,000$            
W. Penn Street RR Crossing 211,000$                
 Sugar Creek Lane 70,000$               
North Stewart Street 1,825,000$           
Commercial Drive 200,000$            
Rachael Street Bridge 176,000$              

Total Expenditures 300,000$            211,000$               70,000$               1,825,000$          200,000$            176,000$              -$                        

Net Change in Fund Balance 186,179$                234,623$              386,067$             (1,365,451)$          263,030$             290,512$               469,993$             

Beginning Fund Balance 56,829$                 243,008$             477,631$                863,698$             (501,753)$              (238,723)$             51,789$                  
Ending Fund Balance 243,008$             477,631$               863,698$             (501,753)$             (238,723)$            51,789$                  521,782$               

Projects* See Capital Improvements Plan (CIP) for project details.

FY25 Budget Model - draft version 2024_02_07



FY24 FY25
Base Rate 31.24$              31.24$              
Rate/1000 gallons 5.63$               5.63$               

Consumption 
(in gallons) FY24 FY25 % $

3,000                               42.50$             42.50$             0% -$     
5,000                               53.76$             53.76$             0% -$     
8,000                               70.65$             70.65$             0% -$     
11,000                               87.54$             87.54$             0% -$     

FY24 FY25
Base Rate 17.44$              17.44$              
Rate/1000 gallons 7.01$                 7.01$                 

Consumption 
(in gallons) FY24 FY25 % $

3,000                               31.45$              31.45$              0% -$     
5,000                               45.47$             45.47$             0% -$     
8,000                               66.49$            66.49$            0% -$     
11,000                               87.51$              87.51$              0% -$     

FY24 FY25
Base Rate 2.00$               3.00$               
Rate/1000 gallons -$                -$                

Consumption 
(in gallons) FY24 FY25 % $

3,000                               2.00$               3.00$               50% 1.00$     
5,000                               2.00$               3.00$               50% 1.00$     
8,000                               2.00$               3.00$               50% 1.00$     
11,000                               2.00$               3.00$               50% 1.00$     

Consumption 
(in gallons) FY24 FY25 % $

3,000                               75.95$             76.95$             1% 1.00$     
5,000                               101.23$             102.23$           1% 1.00$     
8,000                               139.14$             140.14$            1% 1.00$     
11,000                               177.05$            178.05$           1% 1.00$     

Waste Water Rate Increase Analysis

Water Rate Increase Analysis

Storm Water Rate Increase Analysis

Utility Rate Analysis

Cost per Month FY25 Increase

Cost per Month FY25 Increase

Difference
-$                     
-$                     

Difference
-$                     
-$                     

Difference
1.00$                    
-$                     

Utility Rates Increase Analysis

Cost per Month FY25 Increase

Cost per Month FY25 Increase

FY25 Budget Model - draft version 2024_02_07



Storm Water Utility
FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29

Actual Budget Budget Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated

Budget Inflation Rate 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50%
  Number of Accounts 9,520                     9,663                     9,808                    9,955                     10,104                    10,256                   10,410                    
  Flat Rate 2.00$                    2.00$                    n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

  Single-Unit, Two-Unit & Townhomes 3.00$                    4.00$                    4.00$                    4.00$                    4.00$                    
  Multi-Unit & Manufactured Homes 2.50$                     3.00$                    3.00$                    3.00$                    3.00$                    
  Mix Used, Residential 2.25$                     2.50$                     2.50$                     2.50$                     2.50$                     
  Commercial & Industrial 3.00$                    4.00$                    4.00$                    4.00$                    4.00$                    
  ERU Rate for non-residential 0.33$                     0.67$                     1.00$                      1.00$                      1.00$                      

Revenues
  Storm Water Fees 228,192$              229,231$              335,000$           448,000$           467,000$           474,005$            481,115$                
  Sales Tax -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      
  Connection Fees/Permits -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      
  Use of Money 407$                     1,000$                  1,000$                  1,000$                  1,000$                  1,000$                  1,000$                  
  Miscellaneous 408$                     -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      
  Transfers -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      
  Accounts Receivable/Payable -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      

Total Revenues 229,007$           230,231$            336,000$          449,000$         468,000$         475,005$          482,115$             

Expenditures
Budget Inflation Rate -21.70% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
  Personnel Services 114,641$                119,447$               124,287$              130,501$               137,026$              143,878$             151,072$               
  Services & Commodities 101,399$               113,800$              121,800$               127,890$              134,285$              140,999$             148,049$             
  Capital -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      
  Transfers

    Equipment Revolving 50,000$              41,000$               -$                      100,000$            25,000$               295,750$             98,000$              
    Capital Reserve 95,000$              -$                      54,050$               -$                      15,000$                249,000$           -$                      

    Debt -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      
    Billing & Accounting 24,392$               27,533$                30,529$               32,055$               33,658$               35,341$                 37,108$                

Total Expenditures 385,431$            301,780$           330,666$          390,447$          344,969$          864,968$          434,228$           

Net Change in Fund Balance (156,424)$          (71,549)$             5,334$                 58,553$              123,031$             (389,963)$        47,887$              

Beginning Fund Balance 153,603$             (21,455)$               (93,004)$            (87,670)$             (29,117)$                93,914$                (296,049)$          
Ending Fund Balance (21,455)$             (93,004)$           (87,670)$           (29,117)$               93,914$               (296,049)$        (248,162)$          

% Reserved -5.57% -30.82% -26.51% -7.46% 27.22% -34.23% -57.15%

A Breakdown of Storm Water Utility

Total Personnel Costs 114,641$                119,447$               124,287$              130,501$               137,026$              143,878$             151,072$               
% of Storm Water Utility Expenditures 29.74% 39.58% 37.59% 33.42% 39.72% 16.63% 34.79%

New Rate Structure Adopted February 1, 2024

RESTORE 
two sections of 
Muddy Creek  
($54K)

Will need to 
reallocate

FY25 Budget Model - draft version 2024_02_07



FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29 FY30 FY31 FY32 FY33 FY34 FY35
Actual Budget Budget Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated

Budget Inflation Rate 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50%
  Number of Accounts 9,601                         9,614                         9,758                        9,904                               10,053                              10,204                              10,357                              10,512                               10,670                              10,830                             10,992                              11,157                                 11,325                                
  Gallons Sold 410,076,000         428,400,000        434,826,000        441,348,390                  447,968,616                  454,688,145                  461,508,467                  468,431,094                 475,457,561                   482,589,424                 489,828,265                 497,175,689                  504,633,325                 

  Proposed Rate Increase 0.0% 0.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0%
  Base Rate 17.44$                       17.44$                       17.44$                       17.96$                               18.50$                              19.06$                              19.63$                              20.22$                             20.82$                             21.45$                              22.09$                             22.76$                             23.44$                             
  Rate/1000 Gallons 7.01$                         7.01$                         7.01$                         7.22$                                 7.43$                                7.66$                                7.89$                                8.12$                                 8.37$                                8.62$                                8.88$                               9.14$                                 9.42$                                

Revenues
  Water Sales 4,133,878$              4,205,560$            4,268,644$            4,462,653$                    4,665,481$                     4,877,527$                    5,099,211$                      5,330,970$                    5,573,262$                     5,826,567$                    6,091,385$                     6,368,238$                    6,657,674$                    
  Sales Tax 265,241$                  252,334$                256,119$                   267,759$                        279,929$                        292,652$                        305,953$                       319,858$                         334,396$                       349,594$                       365,483$                       382,094$                       399,460$                       
  Connection Fees/Permits 171,512$                     105,000$                105,000$                105,000$                        105,000$                        105,000$                        105,000$                        105,000$                        105,000$                        105,000$                        105,000$                        105,000$                        105,000$                        
  Use of Money 19,478$                    20,000$                  20,000$                  20,000$                          20,000$                          20,000$                         20,000$                         20,000$                         20,000$                         20,000$                         20,000$                         20,000$                         20,000$                         
  Miscellaneous 3,447$                     500$                        500$                        500$                                500$                                500$                                500$                                500$                                500$                                500$                                500$                                500$                                500$                                
  Transfers -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                                 -$                                 -$                                 -$                                 -$                                 -$                                 -$                                 -$                                 -$                                 -$                                 
  Accounts Receivable/Payable -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                                 -$                                 -$                                 -$                                 -$                                 -$                                 -$                                 -$                                 -$                                 -$                                 

Total Revenues 4,593,556$           4,583,394$           4,650,262$           4,855,913$                     5,070,910$                     5,295,679$                    5,530,663$                    5,776,328$                    6,033,158$                     6,301,661$                      6,582,368$                    6,875,832$                    7,182,635$                     

Expenditures
Budget Inflation Rate 3.69% 4.04% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
  Personnel Services 796,142$                 818,084$                 853,578$                896,257$                        941,070$                         988,123$                         1,037,529$                     1,089,406$                    1,143,876$                       1,201,070$                      1,261,123$                        1,324,180$                      1,390,389$                     
  Services & Commodities 1,556,611$                1,679,879$              1,631,930$               1,713,527$                        1,799,203$                      1,889,163$                      1,983,621$                       2,082,802$                    2,186,942$                     2,296,289$                    2,411,104$                        2,531,659$                      2,658,242$                    
  Capital -$                         75,000$                  -$                         -$                                 75,000$                          75,000$                         50,000$                         50,000$                         50,000$                         50,000$                         50,000$                         50,000$                         50,000$                         
  Transfers
    Equipment Revolving 120,000$                135,000$                 30,000$                 -$                                 310,000$                        125,000$                        176,000$                        100,000$                       100,000$                       100,000$                       100,000$                       100,000$                       100,000$                       
    Computer Revolving 1,500$                      1,500$                      1,500$                      1,500$                              1,500$                              1,500$                              1,500$                              1,500$                              1,500$                              1,500$                              1,500$                              1,500$                              1,500$                              
    Capital Reserve -$                         80,000$                 80,000$                 375,000$                       80,000$                         80,000$                         80,000$                         100,000$                       100,000$                       100,000$                       100,000$                       100,000$                       100,000$                       
    Revenue Debt 1,503,791$               1,274,841$               1,626,025$              1,625,168$                       1,503,240$                     1,500,000$                    1,497,340$                     1,494,240$                     1,490,700$                    1,487,720$                     1,484,280$                     1,480,380$                    1,477,020$                     
    GO Debt 244,050$               292,478$                291,878$                 296,178$                         45,078$                          44,028$                          42,978$                          41,928$                           40,878$                          44,828$                          43,628$                          42,428$                          43,628$                          
    Billing & Accounting 231,725$                  261,562$                  290,022$                304,523$                        319,749$                         335,737$                        352,524$                        370,150$                         388,657$                        408,090$                      428,495$                       449,919$                        472,415$                         
    Upcoming Projects

Maint Facility Add  & Tower 3 Refurb -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                                 -$                                 285,000$                       285,000$                       285,000$                       285,000$                       285,000$                       285,000$                       285,000$                       285,000$                       
Control Bldgs & Generators (4&5) -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                                 -$                                 -$                                 -$                                 225,000$                       225,000$                       225,000$                       225,000$                       225,000$                       225,000$                       
Plant Expansion & Well(s) -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                                 -$                                 -$                                 -$                                 -$                                 400,000$                      400,000$                      400,000$                      400,000$                      400,000$                      

Total Expenditures 4,453,819$            4,618,344$            4,804,933$           5,212,152$                        5,074,840$                   5,323,551$                      5,506,492$                   5,840,026$                   6,412,554$                     6,599,497$                   6,790,130$                     6,990,066$                   7,203,194$                     

Net Change in Fund Balance 139,737$                 (34,950)$                (154,671)$                (356,239)$                       (3,930)$                            (27,872)$                          24,171$                              (63,698)$                         (379,396)$                      (297,836)$                      (207,762)$                      (114,234)$                        (20,559)$                         

Beginning Fund Balance 1,760,264$             1,900,002$             1,865,051$               1,710,380$                       1,354,141$                        1,350,211$                        1,322,339$                      1,346,510$                      1,282,812$                       903,417$                         605,580$                       397,818$                         283,585$                        
Ending Fund Balance 1,900,002$            1,865,051$              1,710,380$              1,354,141$                        1,350,211$                        1,322,339$                      1,346,510$                      1,282,812$                       903,417$                         605,580$                       397,818$                         283,585$                        263,026$                        

% Reserved 42.66% 40.38% 35.60% 25.98% 26.61% 24.84% 24.45% 21.97% 14.09% 9.18% 5.86% 4.06% 3.65%

Total Personnel Costs 796,142$                 818,084$                 853,578$                896,257$                        941,070$                         988,123$                         1,037,529$                     1,089,406$                    1,143,876$                       1,201,070$                      1,261,123$                        1,324,180$                      1,390,389$                     
% of Water Utility Expenditures 17.88% 17.71% 17.76% 17.20% 18.54% 18.56% 18.84% 18.65% 17.84% 18.20% 18.57% 18.94% 19.30%

Debt Service Coverage
  Net Revenue/All Revenue Debt 1.49                            1.58                            1.33                            1.38                                    1.50                                    1.56                                   1.64                                   1.71                                     1.78                                    1.85                                   1.93                                   2.01                                   2.09                                  
  Required Coverage 1.20                            1.20                            1.20                            1.20                                    1.20                                    1.20                                   1.20                                   1.20                                   1.20                                   1.20                                   1.20                                   1.20                                   1.20                                   
  Desired Coverage 1.25                            1.25                            1.25                            1.25                                    1.25                                    1.25                                    1.25                                    1.25                                    1.25                                    1.25                                    1.25                                    1.25                                    1.25                                    
  Difference (Actual vs. Required) 0.29                            0.38                            0.13                             0.18                                      0.30                                    0.36                                    0.44                                   0.51                                     0.58                                    0.65                                    0.73                                    0.81                                     0.89                                    

Water Capital Fund Summary (602 & 605)

Beginning Balance 568,853$                643,722$                723,722$                 803,722$                        883,722$                        1,038,722$                      1,193,722$                       1,323,722$                      1,453,722$                      1,583,722$                      1,713,722$                       1,843,722$                      1,973,722$                      
   Transfers In 128,216$                  215,000$                110,000$                 375,000$                       465,000$                      280,000$                      306,000$                      250,000$                      250,000$                      250,000$                      250,000$                      250,000$                      250,000$                      
  Expenses 53,347$                  135,000$                30,000$                 295,000$                       310,000$                       125,000$                        176,000$                       120,000$                       120,000$                       120,000$                       120,000$                       120,000$                       120,000$                       
Ending Balance 643,722$                723,722$                 803,722$                883,722$                         1,038,722$                      1,193,722$                       1,323,722$                      1,453,722$                      1,583,722$                      1,713,722$                       1,843,722$                     1,973,722$                      2,103,722$                      

Assigned Balance (Savings for Future Expenditures, FY Balance as Listed)
  Membrane Replacement 160,000$                240,000$               320,000$               400,000$                      480,000$                      560,000$                      640,000$                      720,000$                       800,000$                      880,000$                      960,000$                      1,040,000$                    1,120,000$                      
Unassigned Balance 483,722$                483,722$                483,722$                483,722$                         558,722$                         633,722$                         683,722$                         733,722$                         783,722$                         833,722$                         883,722$                         933,722$                         983,722$                         

ACCOUNT FOR
FY25 debt 
service payment 
increase

Water Utility Budget & Forecast

SETASIDE
future 
membrane 
replacements 
($80K)

ADD
skid steer 
attachment for 
topsoil ($30K)

PLANNING 
FOR 
FY26 rate 
increase

FY24 SALES 
REVENUE
on pace to 
exceed $4.3M



FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29 FY30 FY31 FY32 FY33 FY34 FY35
3,000          31.45$              31.45$              31.45$              32.40$            33.37$             34.37$             35.40$            36.46$            37.56$             38.69$            39.85$             41.04$              42.27$                 
5,000          45.47$             45.47$             45.47$             46.83$            48.24$             49.69$            51.18$                52.71$               54.29$             55.92$             57.60$             59.33$             61.11$                     
8,000          66.49$            66.49$            66.49$            68.49$            70.54$             72.66$             74.84$             77.08$             79.40$            81.78$              84.23$             86.76$             89.36$                 
11,000         87.51$              87.51$              87.51$              90.14$              92.84$             95.63$             98.50$            101.45$            104.50$           107.63$           110.86$            114.19$              117.61$                   

15,000        115.54$             115.54$             115.54$             119.01$              122.58$            126.26$            130.05$           133.95$           137.97$            142.11$              146.37$           150.76$           155.28$                

3,000          -$                -$                0.94$               0.97$               1.00$                1.03$                 1.06$                1.09$                1.13$                  1.16$                  1.20$                 1.23$                     
5,000          -$                -$                1.36$                 1.41$                  1.45$                 1.49$                 1.54$                 1.58$                 1.63$                 1.68$                 1.73$                 1.78$                     
8,000          -$                -$                1.99$                 2.05$               2.12$                 2.18$                 2.25$                2.31$                 2.38$                2.45$                2.53$                2.60$                   
11,000         -$                -$                2.63$                2.70$               2.79$                2.87$                2.95$                3.04$               3.13$                 3.23$                3.33$                3.43$                    

15,000        -$                -$                3.47$                3.57$                3.68$               3.79$                3.90$               4.02$               4.14$                 4.26$               4.39$               4.52$                    

3,000          -$                -$                11.32$                11.66$               12.01$               12.37$               12.75$               13.13$                13.52$              13.93$              14.34$              14.77$                   
5,000          -$                -$                16.37$              16.86$              17.37$               17.89$              18.42$              18.98$              19.55$              20.13$              20.74$             21.36$                  
8,000          -$                -$                23.94$             24.66$             25.40$             26.16$              26.94$             27.75$             28.58$             29.44$             30.32$             31.23$                   
11,000         -$                -$                31.51$                32.45$             33.42$             34.43$             35.46$             36.52$             37.62$             38.75$             39.91$              41.11$                     

15,000        -$                -$                41.60$              42.84$             44.13$              45.45$             46.82$             48.22$             49.67$             51.16$                52.69$             54.27$                 

Water Utility Budget & Forecast
C

on
su

m
pt

io
n 

in
 G

al
lo

ns

A
dd

iti
on

al
 

W
at

er
 

C
os

t/
M

on
th

A
dd

iti
on

al
 W

at
er

 
C

os
t/

Ye
ar

Water Rate Increase Analysis

Monthly Water Costs Based on Usage

FY25 Budget Model - draft version 2024_02_07



FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29 FY30 FY31 FY32 FY33 FY34 FY35
Actual Budget Budget Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated

Budget Inflation Rate 1.50% 2.00% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50%
  Number of Accounts 9,362                        9,318                         9,505                        9,647                        9,792                        9,939                        10,088                      10,239                       10,393                      10,549                      10,707                      10,868                      11,031                         
  Gallons Sold 406,492,000        416,150,000           424,473,000         430,840,095        437,302,696         443,862,237          450,520,170          457,277,973          464,137,143            471,099,200          478,165,688          485,338,173           492,618,246           

  Proposed Rate Increase 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3%
  Base Rate 31.24$                       31.24$                       31.24$                       31.24$                       31.24$                       31.24$                       32.18$                       33.14$                       34.14$                       35.16$                       36.22$                      37.30$                     38.42$                     
  Rate/1000 Gallons 5.63$                        5.63$                        5.63$                        5.63$                        5.63$                        5.63$                        5.80$                        5.97$                        6.15$                          6.34$                        6.53$                        6.72$                        6.92$                        

Revenues
  Waste Water Sales 5,136,785$              5,154,251$               5,257,337$             5,336,197$              5,416,239$              5,497,483$            5,747,344$            6,008,560$           6,281,650$             6,567,151$               6,865,628$            7,177,670$              7,503,895$            
  Sales Tax -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         
  Connection Fees/Permits 61,000$                   25,000$                  25,000$                  25,000$                  25,000$                  25,000$                  25,000$                  25,000$                  25,000$                  25,000$                  25,000$                  25,000$                  25,000$                  
  Use of Money 33,210$                    20,000$                  20,000$                  300$                        300$                        300$                        300$                        300$                        300$                        300$                        300$                        300$                        300$                        
  Miscellaneous 150,890$                 263,694$                6,000$                    6,000$                    6,000$                    6,000$                    6,000$                    6,000$                    6,000$                    6,000$                    6,000$                    6,000$                    6,000$                    
  Transfers -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         
  Accounts Receivable/Payable -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         

Total Revenues 5,381,885$            5,462,945$           5,308,337$           5,367,497$           5,447,539$           5,528,783$            5,778,644$           6,039,860$          6,312,950$            6,598,451$            6,896,928$           7,208,970$           7,535,195$             

Expenditures
Budget Inflation Rate -7.14% 3.13% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
  Personnel Services 838,441$                 845,620$                899,295$                944,260$               991,473$                 1,041,046$              1,093,099$             1,147,754$               1,205,141$                1,265,398$              1,328,668$             1,395,102$               1,464,857$             
  Services & Commodities 1,565,666$             1,254,175$                1,323,550$              1,389,728$              1,459,214$               1,532,175$                1,608,783$             1,689,222$              1,773,684$              1,862,368$             1,955,486$             2,053,260$            2,155,923$              
  Capital -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         
  Transfers
    Equipment Revolving 125,000$                 58,000$                  50,000$                 33,000$                  -$                         127,500$                 390,000$               120,000$                120,000$                120,000$                120,000$                120,000$                120,000$                
    Computer Revolving 4,300$                     4,300$                     4,300$                     4,300$                     4,300$                     4,300$                     4,300$                     4,300$                     4,300$                     4,300$                     4,300$                     4,300$                     4,300$                     
    Capital Reserve 781,194$                   295,000$               318,000$                595,350$                220,000$               297,000$               70,000$                  375,000$               375,000$               375,000$               375,000$               375,000$               375,000$               
    Revenue Debt 1,752,055$              1,627,769$              1,773,352$              1,778,501$               1,792,779$              1,858,475$              1,650,824$             1,646,770$             1,643,470$             1,639,908$             1,636,086$             1,632,002$             1,628,658$              
    GO Debt 559,840$               1,093,563$             951,903$                 946,603$               610,803$                471,153$                   470,453$                469,503$               468,253$                471,703$                 469,753$                387,456$                386,506$               
    Billing & Accounting 231,725$                  261,562$                  290,022$                304,523$                319,749$                 335,737$                352,524$                 370,150$                 388,657$                408,090$               428,495$                449,919$                 472,415$                  
    Upcoming Projects
      Mid/Long Term Projects -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         225,000$                225,000$                225,000$                225,000$                225,000$                225,000$                225,000$                225,000$                
      Lift Station Upgrades (3) -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         380,000$               380,000$               380,000$               380,000$               

Total Expenditures 5,858,221$             5,439,989$           5,610,422$            5,996,264$           5,398,318$            5,892,386$           5,864,983$           6,047,699$          6,203,505$           6,751,768$             6,922,788$           7,022,039$           7,212,659$             

Net Change in Fund Balance (476,336)$             22,956$                   (302,085)$             (628,768)$             49,222$                   (363,603)$             (86,339)$                (7,839)$                    109,445$                (153,317)$                (25,860)$                186,931$                  322,536$                

Beginning Fund Balance 5,370,231$              4,893,984$            4,916,940$             4,614,855$             3,986,087$            4,035,309$            3,671,706$             3,585,366$            3,577,528$             3,686,972$            3,533,655$             3,507,795$            3,694,726$            
Ending Fund Balance 4,893,984$          4,916,940$           4,614,855$            3,986,087$           4,035,309$          3,671,706$            3,585,366$           3,577,528$            3,686,972$           3,533,655$           3,507,795$           3,694,726$           4,017,262$            

% Reserved 83.54% 90.39% 82.26% 66.48% 74.75% 62.31% 61.13% 59.16% 59.43% 52.34% 50.67% 52.62% 55.70%

Total Personnel Costs 838,441$                 845,620$                899,295$                944,260$               991,473$                 1,041,046$              1,093,099$             1,147,754$               1,205,141$                1,265,398$              1,328,668$             1,395,102$               1,464,857$             
% of Waste Water Utility Expenditures 14.31% 15.54% 16.03% 15.75% 18.37% 17.67% 18.64% 18.98% 19.43% 18.74% 19.19% 19.87% 20.31%

Debt Service Coverage
  Net Revenue/All Revenue Debt 1.70                            2.07                           1.74                            1.71                              1.67                            1.59                            1.86                            1.94                            2.03                           2.12                             2.21                             2.30                           2.40                           
  Required Coverage 1.20                            1.20                            1.20                            1.20                            1.20                            1.20                            1.20                            1.20                            1.20                            1.20                            1.20                            1.20                            1.20                            
  Desired Coverage 1.25                             1.25                             1.25                             1.25                             1.25                             1.25                             1.25                             1.25                             1.25                             1.25                             1.25                             1.25                             1.25                             
  Difference (Actual vs. Required) 0.50                           0.87                           0.54                           0.51                             0.47                           0.39                           0.66                           0.74                           0.83                           0.92                            1.01                              1.10                              1.20                             

Waste Water Capital Fund Summary (611 & 613)

Beginning Balance (2,545,176)$            2,115,501$                 2,335,501$              2,355,501$              2,575,501$              2,508,079$            2,728,079$             2,460,079$            2,680,079$            2,900,079$           3,120,079$             3,340,079$            3,560,079$            
  Transfers In 5,029,510$             353,000$              368,000$              628,350$               220,000$              424,500$               460,000$              495,000$              495,000$              495,000$              495,000$              495,000$              495,000$              
  Expenses 368,833$               133,000$                348,000$              408,350$               287,422$                204,500$              728,000$               275,000$               275,000$               275,000$               275,000$               275,000$               275,000$               
Ending Balance 2,115,501$               2,335,501$             2,355,501$             2,575,501$             2,508,079$           2,728,079$           2,460,079$          2,680,079$           2,900,079$          3,120,079$            3,340,079$          3,560,079$          3,780,079$          

Assigned Balance (Savings for Future Expenditures, FY Balance as Listed)
  Membrane Replacement 1,014,663$              1,045,051$              1,265,051$               1,485,051$               1,417,629$               1,637,629$              1,369,629$             1,589,629$              1,809,629$             2,029,629$            2,249,629$             2,469,629$            2,689,629$            
Unassigned Balance 1,100,838$             1,290,450$            1,090,450$           1,090,450$           1,090,450$           1,090,450$           1,090,450$           1,090,450$           1,090,450$           1,090,450$           1,090,450$           1,090,450$           1,090,450$           

REPLACE
membranes 
($287K in FY27 
and $488K in 
FY29)

ADD
dump truck 
($200K)

Waste Water Utility Budget & Forecast

ADD
spare pump for 
lift station 
($50K)

ADD
Progress Park 
Lift Station 
Phase 1 ($98K)

SETASIDE
future 
membrane 
replacements 
($220K)

ACCOUNTS 
FOR
insurance 
proceeds from 
fire and flood at 
plant

FY24 SALES 
REVENUE
on pace to 
exceed $5.3M



FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29 FY30 FY31 FY32 FY33 FY34 FY35
3,000          42.50$             42.50$             42.50$             42.50$             42.50$             42.50$             43.78$             45.09$            46.44$            47.83$             49.27$             50.75$             52.27$                  
5,000          53.76$             53.76$             53.76$             53.76$             53.76$             53.76$             55.37$             57.03$             58.75$             60.51$              62.32$             64.19$              66.12$                  
8,000          70.65$             70.65$             70.65$             70.65$             70.65$             70.65$             72.77$             74.95$             77.20$             79.52$             81.90$              84.36$            86.89$                
11,000         87.54$             87.54$             87.54$             87.54$             87.54$             87.54$             90.17$              92.87$             95.66$            98.53$             101.48$            104.53$           107.66$               

15,000        110.06$            110.06$            110.06$            110.06$            110.06$            110.06$            113.36$             116.76$             120.27$            123.87$            127.59$            131.42$             135.36$                

3,000          -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                1.28$                 1.31$                  1.35$                 1.39$                 1.44$                 1.48$                 1.52$                     
5,000          -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                1.61$                  1.66$                 1.71$                  1.76$                 1.82$                 1.87$                 1.93$                     
8,000          -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                2.12$                 2.18$                 2.25$                2.32$                2.39$                2.46$               2.53$                    
11,000         -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                2.63$                2.70$               2.79$                2.87$                2.96$               3.04$               3.14$                     

15,000        -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                3.30$               3.40$               3.50$               3.61$                 3.72$                3.83$               3.94$                   

3,000          -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                15.30$              15.76$              16.23$              16.72$              17.22$               17.74$              18.27$                   
5,000          -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                19.35$              19.93$              20.53$             21.15$                21.78$              22.44$             23.11$                    
8,000          -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                25.43$             26.20$             26.98$             27.79$             28.63$             29.48$             30.37$                 
11,000         -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                31.51$                32.46$             33.43$             34.44$            35.47$             36.53$             37.63$                 

15,000        -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                39.62$             40.81$              42.03$            43.30$            44.59$            45.93$             47.31$                  

Waste Water Utility Budget & Forecast
C

on
su

m
pt

io
n 

in
 G

al
lo

ns

A
dd

iti
on

al
 

W
as

te
 W

at
er

 
C

os
t/

M
on

th

A
dd

iti
on

al
 W

as
te

 
W

at
er

 
C

os
t/

Ye
ar

Waste Water Rate Increase Analysis

Monthly Waste Water Costs Based on Usage

FY25 Budget Model - draft version 2024_02_07



Upcoming

Fiscal 
Year

TIF Valuation TIF Revenue TIF Rebates
Repayment 

of Fund 
2012B 2013 2013C 2014C 2015A 2017A 2017B 2018A

FGR 
Agreement

2019A 2020A  2021A 2022A 2023A 2024A 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029
Total Debt 
Transfers

Cash On 
Hand

Beginning 
Cash

Surplus/ 
(Deficit)

Ending Cash

2023 170,693,182$     4,706,374$   289,198$      1,485$            198,915$       40,000$      403,863$    343,900$    297,850$     138,150$       527,781$       351,970$      325,000$    950,500$    484,300$    230,990$    4,583,902$        -$             2,593,160$        122,472$          2,715,632$       
2024 163,539,779$    4,482,108$    506,455$     100,000$     410,200$     343,300$    297,200$     139,050$      523,081$      348,570$     948,900$    481,300$     213,640$      420,412$      4,732,108$          250,000$   2,715,632$         (250,000)$     2,465,632$     
2025 158,651,383$     4,516,282$     109,938$      342,200$     296,725$     524,381$      350,620$     957,000$    478,485$     211,936$        480,658$    764,339$     4,516,282$          -$             2,465,632$       -$                 2,465,632$     
2026 167,687,882$   4,611,417$       350,000$    301,050$      525,081$      347,070$    949,600$    475,285$     210,036$      475,158$      762,339$     465,798$    4,861,417$           250,000$   2,465,632$       (250,000)$     2,215,632$       
2027 186,899,300$  5,139,731$      1,250,000$  530,481$      348,370$     462,000$    466,985$    208,136$      474,508$    764,739$     465,241$     419,270$     5,389,731$          250,000$   2,215,632$         (250,000)$     1,965,632$      
2028 196,223,435$    5,396,144$    1,250,000$  529,962$     344,370$     458,800$    463,685$     211,236$        468,558$     761,339$      465,972$    418,770$     423,452$     5,796,144$          400,000$  1,965,632$         (400,000)$    1,565,632$      
2029 215,826,045$    5,935,216$     1,250,000$  533,600$    345,220$     460,500$    465,285$     209,286$     467,458$     762,339$     466,374$    419,427$      422,947$     632,780$    6,435,216$          500,000$   1,565,632$         (500,000)$     1,065,632$      
2030 219,047,996$   6,023,820$   1,250,000$  345,770$     457,000$    461,685$      212,336$       466,058$    762,539$     466,347$    419,789$     423,611$       632,431$      476,253$     6,373,820$        350,000$   1,065,632$        (350,000)$     715,632$          
2031 240,456,797$  6,612,562$     1,250,000$  340,695$    458,400$    457,985$     215,336$       469,358$     761,939$      465,921$     419,765$      423,977$     635,634$    475,685$    587,867$    6,962,562$        350,000$   715,632$             (350,000)$     365,632$        

2032 227,805,966$  6,264,664$   1,250,000$  459,600$    454,185$      213,081$        467,708$    760,539$     467,806$   419,382$      423,952$     634,436$    476,432$    587,543$    6,614,664$         350,000$   365,632$           (350,000)$     15,632$             
2033 207,445,225$   5,704,744$   1,250,000$  215,723$       464,758$     763,339$     466,145$     421,078$     423,565$    632,774$     476,843$    590,519$     5,704,744$        -$             15,632$               -$                 15,632$             
2034 194,817,536$     5,357,482$    900,000$   218,098$      467,008$    760,139$      466,540$   419,583$     425,279$     634,615$     476,815$      589,406$    5,357,482$         -$             15,632$               -$                 15,632$             
2035 186,718,290$     5,134,753$     900,000$   463,808$    761,139$        466,049$   419,938$     423,768$    635,810$     476,380$    587,861$      5,134,753$          -$             15,632$               -$                 15,632$             
2036 169,952,638$   4,673,698$   900,000$   761,139$        464,935$    419,496$     424,127$      636,121$       478,307$    589,572$     4,673,698$        -$             15,632$               -$                 15,632$             
2037 169,843,061$    4,670,684$   900,000$   760,200$    465,543$    418,494$     423,681$      635,476$    476,608$    590,682$    4,670,684$        -$             15,632$               -$                 15,632$             
2038 152,970,608$   4,206,692$   900,000$   763,200$     419,041$      422,668$    633,799$    477,012$      590,971$     4,206,692$        -$             15,632$               -$                 15,632$             
2039 137,834,294$    3,790,443$   900,000$   765,000$    423,221$       635,340$     476,510$      590,372$     3,790,443$        -$             15,632$               -$                 15,632$             

Term
2024 12
2025 12
2026 12
2027 12
2028 10

TOTAL
For additional information about projects, refer to CIP.

23,600,000$                                 

Amount
6,000,000$                                  
5,000,000$                                  
5,600,000$                                  

2,500,000$                                   

Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Summary of Existing & Forecasted Debt 

4,500,000$                                  

Summary of Proposed Debt

Projected TIF Bond PaymentsCurrent TIF Bond Payments

Projects not completed, money not 
borrowed & payment schedule estimated.

Project completed or in 
progress, money not borrowed 
& payment schedule estimated.

Projects completed, money borrowed & actual payment schedule finalized.

FY25 Budget Model - draft version 2024_02_07



Fiscal 
Year

Debt Service 
Valuation

Valuation 
Growth

2013A 2013B 2015A 2017A 2018A
FGR 

Agreement
2020A 2021A 2022A 2023A 2024A 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 Total Payments Cash on Hand Tax Rate Increase

2023 1,218,401,348$       276,405$   162,928$     92,150$       196,800$    116,663$      325,000$   501,915$      358,222$    2,030,083$        542,238$            1.22$              
2024 1,247,838,683$    2.42% 164,440$    90,450$     201,550$     113,963$      493,567$   355,222$    13,758$        1,432,950$          5,685$                 1.14$               (0.08)$  
2025 1,316,022,929$      5.46% 93,750$      126,100$      111,263$        490,267$   357,222$    13,458$        103,661$      1,295,721$             5,180$                  0.98$            (0.16)$   
2026 1,355,503,617$      3.00% 91,950$       127,650$     113,563$      486,867$   354,172$     13,158$         101,661$       450,114$     1,739,135$            -$                     1.28$              0.30$    
2027 1,396,168,725$      3.00% 129,050$    110,713$        483,367$   356,122$     12,858$        103,461$      449,577$   545,260$   2,190,408$          400,000$          1.28$              (0.00)$ 
2028 1,438,053,787$    3.00% 112,863$      479,767$   358,022$   12,558$        100,661$     450,283$  544,609$  180,349$   2,239,112$             350,000$          1.31$               0.03$    
2029 1,481,195,401$        3.00% 109,863$    476,067$   359,872$    12,258$        102,861$      450,672$   545,465$   181,149$       476,253$   2,714,460$          400,000$          1.56$              0.25$    
2030 1,525,631,263$      3.00% 111,863$        472,267$    356,672$    11,958$         104,861$      450,645$  545,936$   180,514$     475,685$   515,384$    3,225,785$          -$                     2.11$               0.55$    
2031 1,571,400,201$      3.00% 108,608$    468,367$   363,472$    11,658$         101,661$       450,234$  545,904$  181,017$       476,432$   515,100$     116,413$       3,338,865$         -$                     2.12$              0.01$     

2032 1,618,542,207$      3.00% 464,367$   364,842$   11,358$         130,461$      452,055$   545,405$  180,083$   476,843$  517,709$    116,929$      3,260,053$         -$                     2.01$             (0.11)$     
2033 1,667,098,473$    3.00% 365,989$   11,058$         105,061$      450,450$  547,612$    180,260$    476,815$    516,733$    116,519$       2,770,497$         -$                     1.66$             (0.35)$  
2034 1,717,111,427$           3.00% 366,739$   10,758$       101,461$       450,832$  545,667$   180,227$    476,380$  515,379$    116,843$     2,764,286$         -$                     1.61$               -$     
2035 1,768,624,770$    3.00% 367,081$    11,453$         102,861$      450,357$   546,129$    181,151$        478,307$  516,879$    116,241$       2,770,458$         -$                     1.57$              -$     
2036 1,821,683,513$       3.00% 372,007$   104,061$     449,281$    545,554$   180,471$     476,608$  517,852$     116,355$      2,762,188$           -$                     1.52$              (0.05)$  
2037 1,876,334,018$     3.00% 371,427$     449,868$  544,250$  180,696$   477,012$    518,106$     116,334$     2,657,693$         -$                     1.42$             (0.10)$   
2038 1,932,624,039$    3.00% 544,963$  476,510$    517,581$      116,930$     1,655,984$          -$                     0.86$            (0.56)$  
2039 1,990,602,760$   3.00% 475,371$    516,214$      116,491$       1,108,076$           -$                     0.56$            (0.30)$  

.

Term

2025 12

2026 10

2027 12

2028 15
2029 10

TOTAL

4,500,000$                                   

570,000$                                        

Summary of Proposed Debt

For information about projects, refer to CIP.

950,000$                                       

12,510,000$                                    

Amount

5,015,000$                                     

1,475,000$                                      

General Obligation (GO) Summary of Existing & Forecasted Debt 

UpcomingCurrent GO Bond Payments Projected GO Bond Payments

Projects completed or in 
progress, money not 

borrowed & payment schedule 
estimated.

Projects not completed, money not 
borrowed & payment schedule 

estimated.

Projects completed, money borrowed & actual payment schedule finalized.

FY25 Budget Model - draft version 2024_02_07



FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29
Actual Budget Budget Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated

Taxable Valuation 1,218,401,348$        1,247,838,683$     1,316,022,929$       1,355,503,617$       1,396,168,725$       1,438,053,787$     1,481,195,401$         
TIF Valuation 170,693,182$          163,539,779$         158,651,383$           167,687,882$         186,899,300$        196,223,435$         215,826,045$         

General Fund Valuation 1,047,708,166$      1,084,298,904$    1,157,371,546$         1,187,815,735$         1,209,269,425$     1,241,830,352$       1,265,369,356$      

General Fund Revenues 
Generated by the 
Adjusted City General 
Fund Levy (ACGFL )

8,486,436$             8,782,821$               9,101,660$               9,157,917$                9,140,512$                9,202,579$             9,193,152$                

Revenue Impact Based 
on TIF Valuation 57,943$                    38,443$                   (69,670)$                 (145,213)$                 (69,096)$                 (142,417)$                 

General Fund Revenue Projection (as it relates to TIF Valuation)

FY25 Budget Model - draft version 2024_02_07



Annual Property Tax Rate Projections & Comparisons
FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29

General Fund 8.10$                8.10$                7.86$               7.71$                 7.56$                7.41$                 7.27$                
Trust & Agency 2.00$               2.21$                 2.29$                2.29$                2.29$                2.29$                2.29$                
Insurance -$                -$                0.24$               0.25$               0.26$               0.27$               0.29$               
Debt Service 1.22$                 1.14$                  0.98$               1.28$                 1.28$                 1.31$                  1.56$                 

Total 11.32$               11.45$               11.37$               11.53$               11.39$               11.29$               11.41$                

$ Adjustment 0.13$                 (0.08)$             0.16$                (0.14)$               (0.10)$              0.12$                 
% Adjustment 1.13% -0.70% 1.40% -1.20% -0.92% 1.05%

Residential Property Tax Projections & Comparisons

Home Value 
Median = $232,000 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29

Annual 
Average 
Increase

$150,000 958$                930$                790$                802$                792$                 785$                 793$                
  Annual Adjustment (28.29)$           (139.37)$          11.08$               (9.59)$              (7.28)$              8.25$                (27.53)$           

$250,000 1,597$              1,550$              1,317$                1,336$              1,320$              1,308$              1,322$               
  Annual Adjustment (47.16)$            (232.28)$         18.46$              (15.99)$            (12.13)$              13.74$              (45.89)$           

$400,000 2,555$             2,480$            2,108$              2,137$               2,112$                2,092$             2,114$                
  Annual Adjustment (75.45)$           (371.65)$          29.54$             (25.58)$           (19.41)$              21.99$              (73.43)$           

Rollback 56.41% 54.13% 46.34% 46.34% 46.34% 46.34% 46.34%

Commercial Property Tax Projections & Comparisons

Building Value FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29

Annual 
Average 
Increase

$500,000 5,096$            4,546$            4,372$             4,434$            4,381$              4,340$            4,386$            
  Annual Adjustment (549.49)$        (173.66)$          61.28$              (53.06)$           (40.26)$           45.61$              (118.26)$           

$750,000 7,643$             7,123$               6,931$              7,028$             6,944$            6,880$            6,952$             
  Annual Adjustment (520.62)$        (191.78)$           97.14$              (84.11)$              (63.82)$           72.30$             (115.15)$             

$1,500,000 15,287$            14,853$           14,607$           14,811$              14,634$           14,500$           14,652$           
  Annual Adjustment (434.01)$         (246.14)$         204.72$          (177.26)$          (134.50)$         152.37$            (105.80)$         

Rollback (up to $150,000) 90.00% 54.65% 46.34% 46.34% 46.34% 46.34% 46.34%
Rollback (over $150,000) 90.00% 90.00% 90.00% 90.00% 90.00% 90.00% 90.00%

Property Tax Rate Analysis

FY25 Budget Model - draft version 2024_02_07



FY 2025 - FY 2029
updated February 5, 2024



Department CIP Project ID# Category Project Type Project Name

Phase or 

Frequency

Referenced 

Plan

Priority or 

Phase Project Description  TOTALS General Fund Sewer Fund

Storm Sewer 

Fund Water Fund

General 

Obligation (GO) 

Bond

Tax Increment 

Financing (TIF) 

Bond Revenue Bond Hotel/Motel Fund

Road Use Tax 

Fund Franchise Fees

Street Repair 

Program Fund Federal Funds

Fundraising & 

Grants Other Sources

2,097,550$        217,000$           368,000$           54,050$             110,000$           265,000$           -$                  -$                  100,000$           124,000$           315,000$           70,000$             -$                  -$                  474,500$           

25CCTR01 FACILITY Replacement Parking Lot & Sidewalks - Design
Phased 

Project

Shive Facility 

Assessment
Priority 3

Design new parking lots & sidewalks for the 

Community Center.
50,000$             50,000$             

25CCTR02 FACILITY Replacement Windows (24) - Second Floor One-Time
Shive Facility 

Assessment
Priority 1

Replace and seal second floor windows and window 

flashing.
32,000$             32,000$             

25PARK01 FLEET Replacement Skid Steer
Lifecycle 

Schedule

Fleet 

Management

Replace 2008 Case 450 skid steer with new skid 

steer.
55,000$             55,000$             

25PARK02 FLEET Replacement Wide-Area Mower (144" cut) One-Time
Replace 2006 Progressive TD65 wide area mower 

with a Toro Z-Master 7500-D wide area mower.
55,000$             55,000$             

25PARK03 PARK Replacement Koser Park - Ballfield Backstop One-Time
Remove and replace with enhanced ballfield 

backstop. 
45,000$             45,000$             

25PARK04 PARK Improvement Penn Meadows Park - North Playground Surface One-Time
Convert playground wood chips to rubber surface 

(similar to Centennial Park).
140,000$           140,000$           

25PARK05 TRAIL Improvement
Finish Segment - Forevergreen Road (Jones 

Blvd to UIHC)
One-Time

Complete the missing trail connection between 

Jones Blvd and the new UIHC frontage trail on 

Forevergreen Road.

265,000$           265,000$           

25PARK06 TRAIL New Construction New Segment - Freedom Park One-Time Trails Plan Priority 6 Add a 6' wide park walk at Freedom Park & pond. 130,000$           130,000$           

25RECR01 EQUIPMENT Replacement Recreation - Exercise Ongoing
Annual designation of funds to replace cardio & 

weight exercise equipment at Community Center.
20,000$             20,000$             

25RECR02 FACILITY Improvement Aquatics - Enhancements
Phased 

Project
Phase 1 of 2

Diving boards $15K, Floatables $20K, Outdoor 

Chairs $15K
50,000$             50,000$             

25RECR03 FLEET Replacement BASP - Van
Phased 

Project

Fleet 

Management
Phase 1 of 4 Replace BASP van per fleet management. 55,000$             55,000$             

25STOR01 CREEK/POND Maintenance/Cleaning Liberty Centre Pond - Stone Outcropping Repair One-Time

Repair the sections of Liberty Centre Pond stone 

outcropping borders which have shifted and 

tilted/slid into the pond due to the thaw/freeze cycle; 

cannot be done in-house.

132,000$           ARPA Allocation 132,000$           

25STOR02 CREEK/POND Maintenance/Cleaning Muddy Creek Flood Control - Golfview & Front
Phased 

Project

Muddy Creek 

Restoration

Sections 1 & 

2

Remove silted-in debris & vegetation under-and-

around Golfview Drive Bridge and Front Street 

Bridge.

54,050$             54,050$             

25STRE01 EQUIPMENT New Purchase Hot Patch Trailer One-Time
Add new hot patch trailer, which heats asphalt 

material for street repairs.
45,000$             45,000$             

25STRE02 EQUIPMENT New Purchase
Skid Steer - Planer & Asphalt Spreader 

Attachments
One-Time

Add new street planer and asphalt spreader 

attachments for the skid steer.
45,000$             45,000$             

25STRE03 EQUIPMENT Replacement Utility Locator
Lifecycle 

Schedule

Fleet 

Management

Replace primary utility locating equipment for fiber, 

water, and electric structures.
14,000$             14,000$             

25STRE04 FLEET Replacement Leaf Collector Truck 
Lifecycle 

Schedule

Fleet 

Management
Replace 1998 leaf vacuum trailer with truck unit. 142,500$           ARPA Allocation 142,500$           

25STRE05 FLEET New Purchase Message Board Trailer 1 of 2 One-Time
Purchase a message board, which aids in road 

projects and events.
20,000$             20,000$             

25STRE06 STREET Improvement Sugar Creek Lane Repair One-Time
Mill and replace asphalt section of Sugar Creek 

Lane from Zeller Street to the south 500'.
70,000$             70,000$             

25WAST01 FACILITY New Purchase Lift Station Pump (spare) - NL Road One-Time
Purchase one spare 50 hp pump for the North 

Liberty Road Lift Station, to replace if needed.
50,000$             50,000$             

25WAST02 FACILITY Replacement Membrane Train Cassettes
Lifecycle 

Schedule

WW 

Membrane 

Replacement 

Schedule

Savings set aside for future membrane 

cassette/module replacements.
220,000$           220,000$           

25WAST03 FACILITY Improvement Progress Park Lift Station
Phased 

Project
1 of 3

Install 2 new Flygt submersible pumps. Install 

control relays for seal fail and overtemp protection.
98,000$             98,000$             

25WAST04 FLEET New Purchase Dump Truck One-Time
Add new tandem axel dump truck for dewatered 

biosolids hauling. 
200,000$           Sewer Reserves 200,000$           

25WATR01 EQUIPMENT New Purchase
Skid Steer/Loader - Topsoil Screener 

Attachment
One-Time

Add new topsoil screener attachment for skid 

steer/loader.
30,000$             30,000$             

25WATR02 FACILITY Replacement Membrane Train Modules
Lifecycle 

Schedule

Water 

Membrane 

Replacement 

Schedule

Annual designation of funds to replace the Harn 

membrane train modules in the water plant.
80,000$             80,000$             

Recreation & 

Aquatics

Waste Water

Streets

Water

City of North Liberty, Iowa

Five-Year Capital Improvements Plan FY25-FY29 (July 1, 2024 - June 30, 2029)

PROJECT SCHEDULE FOR FY25:  JULY 1, 2024 - JUNE 30, 2025

Parks

Community Center

Storm Water



Department CIP Project ID# Category Project Type Project Name

Phase or 

Frequency

Referenced 

Plan

Priority or 

Phase Project Description  TOTALS General Fund Sewer Fund

Storm Sewer 

Fund Water Fund

General 

Obligation (GO) 

Bond

Tax Increment 

Financing (TIF) 

Bond Revenue Bond Hotel/Motel Fund

Road Use Tax 

Fund Franchise Fees

Street Repair 

Program Fund Federal Funds

Fundraising & 

Grants Other Sources

32,320,000$      414,500$           628,500$           100,000$           375,000$           8,432,000$        14,163,000$      -$                  50,000$             352,000$           405,000$           1,825,000$        2,500,000$        -$                  3,075,000$        

Community Center 26CCTR01 FACILITY Replacement Parking Lot & Sidewalks - West and East Sides
Phased 

Project

Shive Facility 

Assessment

Priority 3; 

Phase 1 of 3

Resurface west parking lot. Includes milling top 2" 

and installation of PETROMAT and new asphalt with 

paint striping. Fill cracks to prevent heaving and 

extend the life of the pavement in north and south 

parking lots.

300,000$           300,000$           

Fire 26FIRE01 FACILITY New Construction North Liberty Fire Station One-Time
Fire Strategic 

Plan
Options currently being evaluated. 7,000,000$        7,000,000$        

26PARK01 EQUIPMENT Replacement Sprayer/Fertilizer
Lifecycle 

Schedule

Fleet 

Management

Replace the 2006 PermaGreen sprayer/fertilizer 

machine with a new Spray Master - spray/fertilizer 

machine.

20,000$             20,000$             

26PARK02 FACILITY Improvement Parks Shop One-Time Park Plan Priority 3

Construct addition to west side of current Parks 

Shop and improve access with a concrete driveway 

connection.

460,000$           460,000$           

26PARK03 FLEET Replacement Tractor
Lifecycle 

Schedule

Fleet 

Management

Replace 2015 Aebi Terratrac TT280 tractor with new 

tractor.
200,000$           100,000$           100,000$           

26PARK04 FLEET Replacement Zero-Turn Mowers (2)
Lifecycle 

Schedule

Fleet 

Management

Replace two (2) 2020 John Deere Z997R zero-turn 

mowers with two (2) new zero-turn mowers. (1) 72" 

deck and (1) 104" deck. 

50,000$             50,000$             

26PARK05 PARK Improvement Penn Meadows Park - Ballfield 3 or 4 One-Time Park Plan  Priority 3 Add lighting to ballfield 3 or 4. 250,000$           125,000$           Partner with NL/CV Baseball & Softball (NLCBS) 125,000$           

26PARK06 PARK Improvement
Penn Meadows Park - North Parking Lot Solar 

Lighting
One-Time Park Plan

Add solar parking lot lighting to the north Penn 

Meadows Parking lot. 
120,000$           120,000$           

26PARK07 PARK New Construction Penn Meadows Park - Tennis Court Parking One-Time
Add new off-street parking on the south side of the 

tennis courts.
50,000$             50,000$             

26PARK08 PARK Improvement Quail Ridge Park - Ballfield One-Time Improve ballfield. 15,000$             15,000$             

26PARK09 PARK Improvement Quail Ridge Park - Parking One-Time Expand the existing parking lot. 95,000$             95,000$             

26PARK10 TRAIL New Construction
New Segment - N Dubuque Street (Centro Way 

to Ranshaw Way) 
One-Time

Remove existing walks and drives; add an 8' PCC 

sidewalk on NE side.
372,000$           372,000$           

26POLC01 FACILITY Replacement Appliances & Gym Equipment
Lifecycle 

Schedule

Replace kitchen, laundry, gym, and galley 

appliances as needed.
10,000$             10,000$             

26POLC02 FLEET Replacement Patrol Cars (3)
Lifecycle 

Schedule

Fleet 

Management

Replace three (3) patrol cars (202, 206 & 207), 

including related equipment.
174,000$           174,000$           

26RECR01 EQUIPMENT Maintenance/Cleaning Aquatic - Outdoor Waterslides One-Time Paint outdoor waterslides. 50,000$             50,000$             

26RECR02 FACILITY Improvement Aquatic - Bathrooms One-Time
Shive Facility 

Assessment
Priority 3 Remodel Aquatic bathrooms. 250,000$           250,000$           

26RECR03 FACILITY Improvement Aquatic - Enhancements 
Phased 

Project
Phase 2 of 2

Replace inside pool starting blocks, inside & outside 

pool diving boards, lifeguard stands, eight floatables 

& inside pool basketball hoop. Add outside pool 

basketball hoop.

50,000$             50,000$             

26RECR04 FLEET Replacement BASP - Van
Phased 

Project

Fleet 

Management
Phase 2 of 4 Replace BASP van per fleet management. 60,500$             60,500$             

26STRE01 EQUIPMENT Replacement Crack Seal Machine
Lifecycle 

Schedule

Fleet 

Management
Replace 2010 crack seal machine. 66,000$             66,000$             

26STRE02 EQUIPMENT New Purchase Message Board Trailer 2 of 2 One-Time
Purchase a second message board, which aids in 

road projects and events.
20,000$             20,000$             

26STRE03 EQUIPMENT New Purchase Skid Steer - Snow Blower Attachment One-Time Add new snow blower for skid steers. 11,000$             11,000$             

26STRE04 FLEET Replacement Dump Truck (Small) and Plow
Lifecycle 

Schedule

Fleet 

Management

Replace 2014 Ford F-550 dump truck & snow 

equipment.
150,000$           150,000$           

26STRE05 FLEET New Purchase Mini Track Loader One-Time Add mini track loader to be used in small areas. 35,000$             35,000$             

26STRE06 FLEET New Purchase Wheeled Skid Steer One-Time Add wheeled skid steer. 70,000$             70,000$             

26STRE07 STREET Improvement I-380 Penn Street Bridge - Enhancements
Phased 

Project

Penn Street 

Project
Phase 5A

After the bridge replacement (IDOT project) is 

complete, enhance the entrance and corridor with 

input from Comprehensive Plan and Visioning 

Report.

1,000,000$        1,000,000$        

26STRE08 STREET Improvement North Stewart Street
Phased 

Project

Old Town 

Projects
OT3

Reconstruct North Stewart Street from Penn Street 

to Cherry Street.
1,825,000$        1,825,000$        

26STRE09 STREET Improvement Ranshaw Way (HWY 965)
Phased 

Project
Phase 6

Widen Ranshaw Way (HWY 965) with full build out 

between Hawkeye Drive & Forevergreen Road, 

including trails, curb/gutter & landscaping. 

11,783,000$      9,283,000$        2,500,000$        

26STRE10 STREET New Construction
West Forevergreen Road/South Jasper 

Ave/North Park Road Roundabout
One-Time Trails Plan

Priorities 11 & 

12

Joint Project with Tiffin & Coralville to construct a 

roundabout and related improvements at the 

intersection, including new trail segments from 

Covered Bridge Blvd to Tiffin. North Liberty to 

reconstruct Jasper Avenue from West Forevergreen 

Road north to lift station.

6,830,000$        3,880,000$        Developer Fees & Cost Sharing with Tiffin & Coralville 2,950,000$        

Parks

City of North Liberty, Iowa

Five-Year Capital Improvements Plan FY25-FY29 (July 1, 2024 - June 30, 2029)

PROJECT SCHEDULE FOR FY26:  JULY 1, 2025 - JUNE 30, 2026

Recreation & 

Aquatics

Streets

Police



Department CIP Project ID# Category Project Type Project Name

Phase or 

Frequency

Referenced 

Plan

Priority or 

Phase Project Description  TOTALS General Fund Sewer Fund

Storm Sewer 

Fund Water Fund

General 

Obligation (GO) 

Bond

Tax Increment 

Financing (TIF) 

Bond Revenue Bond Hotel/Motel Fund

Road Use Tax 

Fund Franchise Fees

Street Repair 

Program Fund Federal Funds

Fundraising & 

Grants Other Sources

32,320,000$      414,500$           628,500$           100,000$           375,000$           8,432,000$        14,163,000$      -$                  50,000$             352,000$           405,000$           1,825,000$        2,500,000$        -$                  3,075,000$        

PROJECT SCHEDULE FOR FY26:  JULY 1, 2025 - JUNE 30, 2026

26WAST01 FACILITY New Purchase Return Pump (spare) for Anoxic Zones One-Time
Purchase one spare return pump for the anoxic 

zones, to replace if needed.
33,000$             33,000$             

26WAST02 FACILITY Improvement Cedar Springs Lift Station One-Time
Upgrade lift station controls and install pre-cast 

building for all electrical.
375,500$           375,500$           

26WAST03 FACILITY Replacement Membrane Train Cassettes
Lifecycle 

Schedule

WW 

Membrane 

Replacement 

Schedule

Savings set aside for future membrane 

cassette/module replacements.
220,000$           220,000$           

26WATR01 EQUIPMENT Replacement Fire Hydrant Replacement One-Time Replace 20 fire hydrants. 120,000$           120,000$           

26WATR02 FACILITY Replacement Membrane Train Modules
Lifecycle 

Schedule

Water 

Membrane 

Replacement 

Schedule

Annual designation of funds to replace the Harn 

membrane train modules in the water plant.
80,000$             80,000$             

26WATR03 SYSTEM Maintenance/Cleaning Jordan Well Cleaning One-Time Acidize wells #6 & #9. 175,000$           175,000$           

Water

Waste Water



Department CIP Project ID# Category Project Type Project Name

Phase or 

Frequency

Referenced 

Plan

Priority or 

Phase Project Description  TOTALS General Fund Sewer Fund

Storm Sewer 

Fund Water Fund

General 

Obligation (GO) 

Bond

Tax Increment 

Financing (TIF) 

Bond Revenue Bond Hotel/Motel Fund

Road Use Tax 

Fund Franchise Fees

Street Repair 

Program Fund Federal Funds

Fundraising & 

Grants Other Sources

19,705,000$      368,500$           220,000$           40,000$             390,000$           2,778,500$        3,750,000$        5,220,000$        50,000$             233,000$           205,000$           200,000$           2,500,000$        -$                  3,750,000$        

Community Center 27CCTR01 FACILITY Replacement Parking Lot & Sidewalks - South Side
Phased 

Project

Shive Facility 

Assessment

Priority 3; 

Phase 2 of 3

Resurface south parking lot. Includes milling top 2" 

and installation of PETROMAT and new asphalt with 

paint striping.

400,000$           400,000$           

Fire 27FIRE01 FLEET Replacement Platform Ladder Truck
Lifecycle 

Schedule

Fire Strategic 

Plan

Replace 2003 75' aerial with a 100' platform ladder 

truck.
1,800,000$        1,800,000$        

27PARK01 EQUIPMENT Replacement Snow Blower
Lifecycle 

Schedule

Fleet 

Management
Replace 2010 Erskine 2410 snow blower. 15,000$             15,000$             

27PARK02 FACILITY Improvement Meade Barn One-Time Park Plan Priority 4

Remodel inside of Meade Barn, including refurbish 

concrete floor, remove loft, & reconfigure dividing 

walls.

70,000$             70,000$             

27PARK03 FLEET Replacement Pickup Truck
Lifecycle 

Schedule

Fleet 

Management

Replace 2015 Ford F-250 pickup truck with new 

pickup.
30,000$             30,000$             

27PARK04 FLEET Replacement Pickup Truck
Lifecycle 

Schedule

Fleet 

Management

Replace 2016 Chevy Silverado 1500 pickup truck 

with new pickup.
32,000$             32,000$             

27PARK05 FLEET Replacement Pickup Truck
Lifecycle 

Schedule

Fleet 

Management

Replace 2010 Nissan Titan pickup truck with new 

pickup.
35,000$             35,000$             

27PARK06 PARK & TRAIL Improvement Fox Run Neighborhood Park - Playground One-Time Park Plan Priority 2

Add a 6' wide park walk, replace playground 

equipment, and add concrete border around 

playground with ADA ramp.

120,000$           120,000$           

27PARK07 TRAIL New Construction New Segment - Deerfield Park One-Time
Add concrete border around Deerfield Park 

playground & connecting 6' wide sidewalk.
85,000$             85,000$             

27PARK08 TRAIL New Construction
New Segment - Forevergreen Road (Fox Valley 

neighborhood to Kansas Avenue)
One-Time

Remove existing walks and drives; add an 8' PCC 

sidewalk on south side of Forevergreen Road.
578,500$           578,500$           

Police 27POLC01 FLEET Replacement Patrol Cars (2)
Lifecycle 

Schedule

Fleet 

Management

Replace two (2) patrol cars (201 & 204), including 

related equipment.
120,000$           120,000$           

27RECR01 EQUIPMENT Replacement Recreation - Gymnasium One-Time
Replace the control systems and curtains in the 

gymnasiums.
50,000$             50,000$             

27RECR02 FLEET Replacement BASP - Van
Phased 

Project

Fleet 

Management
Phase 3 of 4 Replace BASP van per fleet management. 66,500$             66,500$             

Storm Water 27STOR01 CREEK/POND Maintenance/Cleaning West Lake Drainage One-Time Repair 54" FES drainage pipe structure. 15,000$             15,000$             

27STRE01 EQUIPMENT New Purchase Patch Machine One-Time
Add new patching machine for potholes and large 

cracks.
83,000$             83,000$             

27STRE02 FLEET Replacement Dump Truck (Small) and Plow
Lifecycle 

Schedule

Fleet 

Management

Replace 2015 Ford F-550 dump truck and snow 

equipment.
150,000$           150,000$           

27STRE03 FLEET New Purchase Mini Excavator - Forestry Mulcher Attachment One-Time
Add new forestry head for mini excavator to clean 

up drainage/waterway areas.
25,000$             25,000$             

27STRE04 STREET New Construction Commercial Drive One-Time

Construct Commercial Drive extension (a local 

street) from the terminus of current Commercial 

Drive to West Zeller Street.

200,000$           200,000$           

27STRE05 STREET New Construction E Forevergreen Road - City Limits

Extend E Forevergreen Road from the roundabout 

to the east city limits. Work with the County and 

Coralville to join with North Liberty Road. 

10,000,000$      3,750,000$        2,500,000$        City of Coralville 3,750,000$        

27WAST01 FACILITY Replacement Membrane Train Cassettes
Lifecycle 

Schedule

WW 

Membrane 

Replacement 

Schedule

Savings set aside for future membrane 

cassette/module replacements.
220,000$           220,000$           

27WAST02 SYSTEM Improvement Gravity Sanitary Sewer 
Phased 

Project

Sewer Main 

Upgrades
Phase 1

Upsize 2600' of 12" sanitary sewer main along 

Jordon St and Ashley Ct to match upstream capacity 

in size and flow.

2,300,000$        2,300,000$        

27WATR01 FACILITY Replacement Membrane Train Modules
Lifecycle 

Schedule

Water 

Membrane 

Replacement 

Schedule

Annual designation of funds to replace the Harn 

membrane train modules in the water plant.
80,000$             80,000$             

27WATR02 FACILITY New Construction Water Treatment Facility Addition One-Time Add four (4) bays to Water Treatment Facility 1,320,000$        1,320,000$        

27WATR03 FLEET Replacement Dump Truck
Lifecycle 

Schedule

Fleet 

Management
Replace 2003 International dump truck. 210,000$           210,000$           

27WATR04 SYSTEM New Purchase Hydra-Stop Valve System One-Time
Purchase Hydra-Stop Insta-Valve to install on the 

main line.
100,000$           100,000$           

27WATR05 SYSTEM Maintenance/Cleaning Water Tower #3 One-Time Sandblast & paint Water Tower #3. 1,600,000$        1,600,000$        

City of North Liberty, Iowa

Five-Year Capital Improvements Plan FY25-FY29 (July 1, 2024 - June 30, 2029)

PROJECT SCHEDULE FOR FY27:  JULY 1, 2026 - JUNE 30, 2027

Water

Parks

Recreation & 

Aquatics

Streets

Waste Water



Department CIP Project ID# Category Project Type Project Name

Phase or 

Frequency

Referenced 

Plan

Priority or 

Phase Project Description  TOTALS General Fund Sewer Fund

Storm Sewer 

Fund Water Fund

General 

Obligation (GO) 

Bond

Tax Increment 

Financing (TIF) 

Bond Revenue Bond Hotel/Motel Fund

Road Use Tax 

Fund Franchise Fees

Street Repair 

Program Fund Federal Funds

Fundraising & 

Grants Other Sources

7,885,500$        401,250$           424,500$           544,750$           205,000$           2,145,000$        2,410,000$        -$                  100,000$           369,000$           210,000$           176,000$           900,000$           -$                  -$                  

Community Center 28CCTR01 FACILITY Replacement Parking Lot & Sidewalks - North Side
Phased 

Project

Shive Facility 

Assessment

Priority 3; 

Phase 3 of 3

Resurface north parking lot. Includes milling top 2" 

and installation of PETROMAT and new asphalt with 

paint striping.

400,000$           400,000$           

Fire 28FIRE01 FLEET New Purchase Fire Station Pumper Truck One-Time
Fire Strategic 

Plan
Add new pumper truck.. 1,000,000$        1,000,000$        

28PARK01 FLEET Replacement Pickup Truck
Lifecycle 

Schedule

Fleet 

Management

Replace 2007 Nissan Titan pickup truck with new 

pickup.
35,000$             17,500$             17,500$             

28PARK02 FLEET Replacement Track Skid Steer
Lifecycle 

Schedule

Fleet 

Management
Replace 2018 Case TR340 track skid steer loader. 65,000$             65,000$             

28PARK03 FLEET Replacement Wide-Area Mower
Lifecycle 

Schedule

Fleet 

Management

Replace 2020 Jacobsen HR800 (or HR700) wide-

area mower with new Jacobsen HR800 (or HR700) 

wide-area mower.

95,000$             47,500$             47,500$             

28PARK04 FLEET Replacement Zero-Turn Mower & Stand-On Zero-Turn Mower
Lifecycle 

Schedule

Fleet 

Management

Replace 2015 Gravely Pro-Turn 260 zero-turn 

mower & 2015 Gravely Pro-Stance 48 stand-on zero-

turn mower with new mowers.

12,500$             8,250$               4,250$               

28PARK05 TRAIL New Construction New Segment - Broadmoor Park One-Time Trails Plan Priority 4 Add a 6' wide park walk at Broadmoor Park & pond. 160,000$           160,000$           

28PARK06 TRAIL Improvement
New Segment - Penn Street (Dubuque Street to 

Front Street)
One-Time

Remove existing walks and drives; add an 5' PCC 

sidewalk on the north side of Penn Street from 

Dubuque Street to Front Street.

151,000$           151,000$           

28PARK07 TRAIL New Construction New Segment - Quail Ridge Park One-Time Park Plan Priority 7 Add a 6' wide park walk at Quail Ridge Park. 244,000$           244,000$           

28PARK08 TRAIL New Construction New Segment - West Zeller Street One-Time Trails Plan Priority 10

Construct trail on south side of West Zeller Street 

from Quail Ridge Park east to Ranshaw Way/HWY 

965.

350,000$           350,000$           

28PARK09 TRAIL New Construction Trail Lighting Ongoing Park Plan Priority 1 Install LED trail lighting at various locations. 50,000$             50,000$             

28POLC01 EQUIPMENT Replacement Tasers (10)
Lifecycle 

Schedule
Replace ten (10) tasers. 20,000$             20,000$             

28POLC02 FLEET Replacement Patrol Cars (2)
Lifecycle 

Schedule

Fleet 

Management

Replace two (2) patrol cars (203 & 213), including 

related equipment.
120,000$           120,000$           

28RECR01 EQUIPMENT Replacement Recreation - Exercise Ongoing
Annual designation of funds to replace cardio & 

weight exercise equipment at Community Center.
50,000$             50,000$             

28RECR02 FACILITY Improvement Aquatic - Enhancements One-Time Replace aging equipment, as determined. 100,000$           100,000$           

28RECR03 FLEET Replacement BASP - Van
Phased 

Project

Fleet 

Management
Phase 4 of 4 Replace BASP van per fleet management. 73,000$             73,000$             

28STOR01 CREEK/POND Maintenance/Cleaning Goose Lake Flood Control - Alexander
Phased 

Project

Goose Lake 

Restoration
Section 6

Remove silted-in debris & vegetation under-and-

around Alexander Way Bridge.
37,000$             37,000$             

28STOR02 CREEK/POND Maintenance/Cleaning Muddy Creek Flood Control - Cherry
Phased 

Project

Muddy Creek 

Restoration
Section 5

Remove silted-in debris & vegetation under-and-

around West Cherry Street Bridge.
20,000$             20,000$             

28STOR03 CREEK/POND Maintenance/Cleaning Muddy Creek Flood Control - Penn
Phased 

Project

Muddy Creek 

Restoration
Section 7

Remove silted-in debris & vegetation under-and-

around Penn Street Bridge.
16,000$             16,000$             

28STOR04 CREEK/POND Maintenance/Cleaning Muddy Creek Flood Control - Rachael
Phased 

Project

Muddy Creek 

Restoration
Section 3

Remove silted-in debris & vegetation under-and-

around Rachael Street Bridge.
41,000$             41,000$             

28STOR05 CREEK/POND Maintenance/Cleaning Muddy Creek Flood Control - Zeller
Phased 

Project

Muddy Creek 

Restoration
Section 4

Remove silted-in debris & vegetation under-and-

around West Zeller Street Bridge.
20,000$             20,000$             

28STOR06 CREEK/POND Improvement West Lake Wetland Restoration One-Time Restore stream & vegetative buffer. 29,000$             29,000$             

28STOR07 PARK Improvement Penn Meadows Park - South Parking Lot One-Time
Add asphalt overlay to the failed pervious concrete 

on parking lot.
-$                  

28STOR08 SYSTEM Improvement Sunset Street Drainage One-Time Install storm pipe to increase drainage capacity. 86,000$             86,000$             

28STRE01 EQUIPMENT New Purchase Flatbed Equipment Trailer One-Time Add new trailer to haul JLG lift. 80,000$             80,000$             

28STRE02 FLEET Replacement Backhoe
Lifecycle 

Schedule

Fleet 

Management
Replace 2013 backhoe. 130,000$           130,000$           

28STRE03 FLEET Replacement Street Sweeper
Lifecycle 

Schedule

Fleet 

Management

Replace 2014 street sweeper with double-sided 

gutter broom model.
318,000$           159,000$           159,000$           

28STRE04 STREET Improvement Rachael Street - Bridge One-Time
Repair both street and sidewalk approaches to 

bridge over Muddy Creek. 
176,000$           176,000$           

28STRE05 STREET Improvement South Dubuque Street
Phased 

Project

Dubuque 

Street Project

Phase 2A and 

2B

Reconstruct South Dubuque Street from Zeller 

Street to North Liberty Road, including roundabout 

at Juniper Street.

3,310,000$        2,410,000$        900,000$           

Police

Streets

City of North Liberty, Iowa

Five-Year Capital Improvements Plan FY25-FY29 (July 1, 2024 - June 30, 2029)

PROJECT SCHEDULE FOR FY28:  JULY 1, 2027 - JUNE 30, 2028

Parks

Recreation & 

Aquatics

Storm Water



Department CIP Project ID# Category Project Type Project Name

Phase or 

Frequency

Referenced 

Plan

Priority or 

Phase Project Description  TOTALS General Fund Sewer Fund

Storm Sewer 

Fund Water Fund

General 

Obligation (GO) 

Bond

Tax Increment 

Financing (TIF) 

Bond Revenue Bond Hotel/Motel Fund

Road Use Tax 

Fund Franchise Fees

Street Repair 

Program Fund Federal Funds

Fundraising & 

Grants Other Sources

7,885,500$        401,250$           424,500$           544,750$           205,000$           2,145,000$        2,410,000$        -$                  100,000$           369,000$           210,000$           176,000$           900,000$           -$                  -$                  

PROJECT SCHEDULE FOR FY28:  JULY 1, 2027 - JUNE 30, 2028

28WAST01 EQUIPMENT Replacement Sewer Pipe Inspection Unit One-Time
Fleet 

Management

Retrofit current pipe inspection trailer with up to date 

electronics and equipment.
135,000$           67,500$             67,500$             

28WAST02 FACILITY Improvement 230th Street Lift Station One-Time Replace piping and valves as necessary. 47,000$             47,000$             

28WAST03 FACILITY Replacement Air Conditioner -  Control Building
Lifecycle 

Schedule

Replace 2008 mini split air conditioner for Control 

Building electrical room.
15,000$             15,000$             

28WAST04 FACILITY Replacement Air Conditioner -  Motor Control Center
Lifecycle 

Schedule

Replace 2008 mini split air conditioner for 

membrane bioreactor original Motor Control Center 

room.

15,000$             15,000$             

28WAST05 FACILITY Replacement Membrane Train Cassettes
Lifecycle 

Schedule

Savings set aside for future membrane 

cassette/module replacements
220,000$           220,000$           

28WAST06 FLEET Replacement F-150 Crew Cab Truck
Lifecycle 

Schedule

Fleet 

Management
Replace 2008 F-150 crew cab truck. 60,000$             60,000$             

28WATR01 FACILITY Replacement Membrane Train Modules
Lifecycle 

Schedule

Water 

Membrane 

Replacement 

Schedule

Annual designation of funds to replace the Harn 

membrane train modules in the water plant.
80,000$             80,000$             

28WATR02 FLEET Replacement Service Truck
Lifecycle 

Schedule

Fleet 

Management
Replace 2015 1-ton service truck. 125,000$           125,000$           

Water

Waste Water



Department CIP Project ID# Category Project Type Project Name

Phase or 

Frequency

Referenced 

Plan

Priority or 

Phase Project Description  TOTALS General Fund Sewer Fund

Storm Sewer 

Fund Water Fund

General 

Obligation (GO) 

Bond

Tax Increment 

Financing (TIF) 

Bond Revenue Bond Hotel/Motel Fund

Road Use Tax 

Fund Franchise Fees

Street Repair 

Program Fund Federal Funds

Fundraising & 

Grants Other Sources

2,408,000$        435,000$           460,000$           98,000$             256,000$           509,000$           -$                  -$                  -$                  400,000$           125,000$           -$                  -$                  125,000$           -$                  

29CCTR01 FACILITY Maintenance/Cleaning Acoustical Ceiling Tile Ongoing
Shive Facility 

Assessment
Priority 3 Replace tiles in the Gerdin Conference Center. 15,000$             15,000$             

29CCTR02 FACILITY Improvement Cabinets - Library One-Time
Shive Facility 

Assessment
Priority 2

Replace cabinets at the window projections in the 

Library workspace.
15,000$             15,000$             

29CCTR03 FACILITY Improvement Cabinets - Recreation One-Time
Shive Facility 

Assessment
Priority 3

Refurbish cabinets in the BASP room, kitchen, and 

other areas throughout facility.
60,000$             60,000$             

29CCTR04 FACILITY Maintenance/Cleaning Doors - Exterior Hollow Metal One-Time
Shive Facility 

Assessment
Priority 2

Refinish exterior hollow metal doors from 1997 and 

2003 to prevent onset of rust.
8,000$               8,000$               

29CCTR05 FACILITY Maintenance/Cleaning Doors & Door Frames - Interior Hollow Metal One-Time
Shive Facility 

Assessment
Priority 2

Repaint hollow metal doors and door frames of 

interior building. 
18,000$             18,000$             

29CCTR06 FACILITY Maintenance/Cleaning Doors & Windows - Exterior Aluminum One-Time
Shive Facility 

Assessment
Priority 2

Refinish aluminum doors and windows from 1997 

and 2003, which have lost their finish coat.
40,000$             40,000$             

29CCTR07 FACILITY Maintenance/Cleaning Track - Painting One-Time
Shive Facility 

Assessment
Priority 2

Prep and paint underside of metal track deck, 

because the paint is peeling.
25,000$             25,000$             

29CCTR08 FACILITY Maintenance/Cleaning Window Lintels One-Time
Shive Facility 

Assessment
Priority 2 Prepare and paint all exterior steel window lintels. 8,000$               8,000$               

29FIRE01 FLEET Replacement Staff Vehicle - Fire Chief
Lifecycle 

Schedule

Fleet 

Management

Replace one (1) staff vehicle (Fire Chief), including 

related equipment.
75,000$             75,000$             

29FIRE02 FLEET Replacement Staff Vehicle - Fire Marshal
Lifecycle 

Schedule

Fleet 

Management

Replace one (1) staff vehicle (Fire Marshal), 

including related equipment.
75,000$             75,000$             

29PARK01 PARK New Construction Ranshaw House - Fitness Equipment One-Time Install senior outdoor fitness equipment. 120,000$           60,000$             60,000$             

29PARK02 PARK New Construction Red Fern Dog Park - Agility Equipment One-Time
Install dog equipment & obstacles in northeastern 

yard.
130,000$           65,000$             65,000$             

29PARK03 TRAIL Improvement Widen Segment - Scales Bend Road One-Time

Widen trail segment to 8' on east side of Scales 

Bend Road from Fox Run Neighborhood Park to 

Fox Run Drive.

320,000$           320,000$           

29POLC01 EQUIPMENT Replacement
Body Worn Cameras (working on an ongoing 5-

year contract)

Lifecycle 

Schedule

This represents the total payment over 5 years; 

budget for at least this amount. (In FY24, Axon 

added $2,000 to our annual payment moving 

forward for 5 years if we stay with them).

88,000$             88,000$             

29POLC02 EQUIPMENT Replacement In-Car Camera Systems
Lifecycle 

Schedule
Replace hardware for in-car camera systems. 12,000$             12,000$             

29POLC03 EQUIPMENT Replacement JFACT Computer
Lifecycle 

Schedule
Replace JFACT computer; done every 5 years. 15,000$             15,000$             

29POLC04 FLEET Replacement Patrol Car (1) Admin Vehicle (1)
Lifecycle 

Schedule

Fleet 

Management

Replace patrol car (215) and admin vehicle (212), 

including related equipment.
90,000$             90,000$             

29RECR01 EQUIPMENT Replacement Recreation - Exercise Ongoing
Annual designation of funds to replace cardio & 

weight exercise equipment at Community Center.
50,000$             50,000$             

29RECR02 FLEET Replacement Truck/Jeep
Lifecycle 

Schedule

Fleet 

Management

Replace department truck/Jeep per fleet 

management.
30,000$             30,000$             

29STRE01 EQUIPMENT Replacement Tree Chipper Trailer
Lifecycle 

Schedule

Fleet 

Management
Replace 2007 woodchipper trailer machine. 80,000$             80,000$             

29STRE02 FLEET Replacement Dump Truck and Snow Equipment
Lifecycle 

Schedule

Fleet 

Management

Replace 2016 single axle dump truck (525) and 

snow equipment.
320,000$           320,000$           

29WAST01 FACILITY Improvement Progress Park Lift Station
Phased 

Project
2 of 2

Replace piping and valving in wet well and valve 

vault as needed. Install new pump base elbows.
70,000$             70,000$             

29WAST02 FLEET Replacement Jet/Vac Truck
Lifecycle 

Schedule

Fleet 

Management

Replace 2016 Jet/Vac truck with new tandem axel 

truck with hydraulic snorkel outfitted on Vac 

system.

488,000$           390,000$           98,000$             

29WATR01 EQUIPMENT New Purchase Light Tower & Portable Generator One-Time
Purchase light tower and power supply for use at 

excavation sites.
16,000$             16,000$             

29WATR02 EQUIPMENT Replacement Replace 2017 JD 75G Excavator One-Time Replacement of 2017 JD 75G Excavator 160,000$           160,000$           

29WATR03 FACILITY Replacement Membrane Train Modules
Lifecycle 

Schedule

Water 

Membrane 

Replacement 

Schedule

Annual designation of funds to replace the Harn 

membrane train modules in the water plant.
80,000$             80,000$             

Water

City of North Liberty, Iowa

Five-Year Capital Improvements Plan FY25-FY29 (July 1, 2024 - June 30, 2029)

PROJECT SCHEDULE FOR FY29:  JULY 1, 2028 - JUNE 30, 2029

Police

Recreation & 

Aquatics

Waste Water

Streets

Fire

Parks

Community Center



Total Project Cost General Fund Sewer Fund
Storm Sewer 

Fund Water Fund

General 
Obligation 
(GO) Bond

Tax Increment 
Financing (TIF) 

Bond Revenue Bond
Hotel/Motel 

Fund
Road Use Tax 

Fund Franchise Fees
Street Repair 

Program Fund Federal Funds
Fundraising & 

Grants Other Sources
FY25 2,097,550$                217,000$             368,000$           54,050$              110,000$              265,000$           -$                     -$                     100,000$            124,000$             315,000$             70,000$              -$                     -$                     474,500$           
FY26 32,320,000$            414,500$             628,500$            100,000$            375,000$           8,432,000$       14,163,000$       -$                     50,000$              352,000$           405,000$           1,825,000$         2,500,000$       -$                     3,075,000$       
FY27 19,705,000$             368,500$           220,000$           40,000$             390,000$           2,778,500$        3,750,000$       5,220,000$        50,000$              233,000$           205,000$           200,000$           2,500,000$       -$                     3,750,000$       
FY28 7,885,500$                401,250$             424,500$            544,750$            205,000$           2,145,000$         2,410,000$         -$                     100,000$            369,000$           210,000$            176,000$             900,000$          -$                     -$                     
FY29 2,408,000$               435,000$           460,000$           98,000$              256,000$           509,000$           -$                     -$                     -$                     400,000$          125,000$             -$                     -$                     125,000$             -$                     
Five Year Total 64,416,050$             1,836,250$         2,101,000$          836,800$           1,336,000$        14,129,500$       20,323,000$    5,220,000$       300,000$          1,478,000$        1,260,000$        2,271,000$         5,900,000$      125,000$            7,299,500$        

SUMMARY TOTALS

Five-Year Capital Improvements Plan FY25-FY29 (July 1, 2024 - June 30, 2029)

City of North Liberty, Iowa



North Liberty – 2024  Resolution Number 2024-46 
Page 1 

Resolution No. 2024-46 
 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE ANNUAL BUDGET AND 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 
ENDING JUNE 30, 2025 FOR THE CITY OF NORTH 
LIBERTY, IOWA 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, 

IOWA: 
 
WHEREAS, the North Liberty City Council has reviewed the proposed budget for 

the fiscal year ending June 30, 2025, as set forth in the Resources Detail and 
Requirements schedules and the detailed worksheets in support of those documents;  
 

WHEREAS, the North Liberty City Council has reviewed the proposed Capital 
Improvements Plan for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2025;   
 

WHEREAS, the proposed Budget Estimate was published in The Gazette on April 
24, 2024, along with a Notice of Public Hearing;   

 
WHEREAS, a Public Hearing was held on the proposed budget and Capital 

Improvements Plan on May 14, 2024;  
 
WHEREAS, the City Clerk is hereby authorized to transfer the following funds as 

provided for in the certified budget:  
 

From Fund To Fund Description Amount 
General Computer Revolving Computer Purchases 22,600 

General  Equipment Revolving 
Park Maintenance 
Equipment 

110,000 

General   Equipment Revolving BASP Van  55,000 
General  Recreation Capital Cardio Equipment 20,000 
General  Recreation Capital Window Replacement 32,000 

Hotel/Motel Tax Recreation Capital 
Community Center 
Parking Lots & 
Sidewalks Design  

50,000 

Hotel/Motel Tax Recreation Capital 
Aquatics 
enhancements 

50,000 

ARPA Park Capital 
Liberty Center Pond 
Repairs 

132,000 

ARPA Equipment Revolving Leaf Vac Trailer 142,500 



North Liberty – 2024  Resolution Number 2024-46 
Page 2 

Utility Franchise 
Fees 

Park Capital Park Projects 815,000 

Road Use Tax General  
General Fund 
employee wage 
reimbursement  

94,152 

Road Use Tax Equipment Revolving 
Equipment 
Purchases 

124,000 

Road Use Tax Debt Service Bond Payments 147,690 

Road Use Tax Capital Projects 
Set aside for street 
projects 

456,067 

Road Use Tax Computer Revolving Computer Purchases 2,300 

Trust & Agency General  
Employee benefits 
and fringe levy 

2,721,385 

TIF  Debt Service TIF Bond payments 4,406,343 

Water Operating General Fund 
General Fund 
employee wage 
reimbursement  

290,022 

Water Operating Equipment Revolving 
Equipment 
Purchases 

30,000 

Water Operating Water Capital  
Reserve for 
membranes 

80,000 

Water Operating Water Sinking Debt service 1,917,903 
Water Operating Computer Revolving Computer Purchases 1,500 

Water Sinking Debt Service 
Water debt paid from 
general debt fund 

291,853 

Wastewater 
Operating 

General  
General Fund 
employee wage 
reimbursement 

290,022 

Wastewater 
Operating 

Equipment Revolving 
Equipment 
Purchases 

50,000 

Wastewater 
Operating 

Wastewater Capital 
Reserve for 
membranes and 
capital projects 

318,000 

Wastewater 
Operating 

Wastewater Sinking Debt service 2,725,255 

Wastewater 
Operating 

Computer Revolving Computer Purchases 4,300 

Wastewater Sinking Debt Service 
Wastewater debt 
paid from general 
debt fund 

950,528 

Stormwater Utility General 
General Fund 
employee wage 
reimbursement 

30,529 



North Liberty – 2024  Resolution Number 2024-46 
Page 3 

Stormwater Utility Equipment Revolving 
Equipment 
Purchases 

27,500 

Stormwater Utility Capital Projects 
Storm water practice 
maintenance 

54,050 

 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of North Liberty, Iowa, 
that the budget as set forth in the Notice of Public Hearing and Adopted Budget Summary 
and the Capital Improvements Plan is hereby adopted. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk is hereby directed to file the 
adopted budget with the Johnson County Auditor and the Iowa Department of 
Management. 
 
 APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of May, 2024. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
CHRIS HOFFMAN, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting 
of the City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the 
above was adopted. 
 
 
________________________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK  
 



 

Lot 1, Water Tower Place 
Site Plan   



 

 

 

 



 

 





 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 



• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 





Mike
Line

Mike
Text Box
Brick / Stone

Mike
Line

Mike
Text Box
Brick / Stone

Mike
Line

Mike
Line

Mike
Line

Mike
Line

Mike
Text Box
      Siding



Mike
Line

Mike
Line

Mike
Line

Mike
Line

Mike
Text Box
 Siding

Mike
Line

Mike
Text Box
Stone / Brick

Mike
Line

Mike
Text Box
  Shake



North Liberty – 2024  Resolution Number 2024-47 
Page 1 

Resolution No. 2024-47 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PRELIMINARY SITE 
PLAN FOR LOT 1 WATER TOWER PLACE, NORTH 
LIBERTY, IOWA 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, 

IOWA: 
  
 WHEREAS, the owner and applicant, Dahnovan Land Development, LLC, has filed 
with the City Clerk a preliminary site plan;  
 
 WHEREAS, the property is described as:  

 
Lot 1 Water Tower Place, North Liberty, Iowa, said tract of land contains 5.45 acres;  

    
 WHEREAS, said preliminary site plan has one finding: 

 
1. The preliminary site plan would achieve consistency with the approval 
standards enumerated in Section 165.05(2)(E) of the Zoning Code.  

 
 WHEREAS, said preliminary site plan has been examined by the North Liberty 
Planning and Zoning Commission, which recommended that the preliminary site plan be 
approved with no conditions.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of North Liberty, 
Iowa, does hereby approve the preliminary site plan for Lot 1, Water Tower Place, North 
Liberty, Iowa.  
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of May, 2024. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
CHRIS HOFFMAN, MAYOR 
 
 
 
 



North Liberty – 2024  Resolution Number 2024-47 
Page 2 

 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting 
of the City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the 
above was adopted. 
 
 
________________________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



 

Solomon’s Landing – Part 
Five Preliminary Plat    



 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 





 



 

 

 



SOLOMON'S LANDING

- P
ART ONE

SOLOMONS LANDING
- PART TWO

N
. JO

N
E

S
 B

O
U

L
E

V
A

R
DSOLOMON'S LANDING

- PART ONE

OUTLOT "C"

OUTLOT "A
"

OUTLOT "B"

(319) 351-8282
IOWA CITY, IOWA 52240

www.mmsconsultants.net

1917 S. GILBERT ST.

04-24-24

NORTH LIBERTY
JOHNSON COUNTY
IOWA

03/28/2024
KJB 52/1385

HEH

KJB

11728-003 1

11.28 AC

1
1"=40'

PRELIMINARY PLAT
SOLOMONS LANDING - PART FIVE

NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA
(NORTH BEND VILLAS)

PLAT PREPARED BY:
MMS CONSULTANTS INC.
1917 S. GILBERT STREET
IOWA CITY, IA  52240

APPLICANT/OWNER:
LION DEVELOPMENT GROUP
75 COMMERCIAL DR #916
NORTH LIBERTY, IA 52317

APPLICANT ATTORNEY:
RYAN J. PRAHM
425 E. OAKDALE BLVD, SUITE 201
CORALVILLE, IA 52241

DRAFT

O C SM

IOW

NOT TO SCALE
LOCATION MAP

NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA

SOLOMONS LANDING - PART FIVE
(NORTH BEND VILLAS)

LOTS ZONING SETBACKS *(VARIES PER USE)         
LOT 1 THRU 49    RS-9 FRONT -25 FEET

 REAR   -25 FEET
SIDE -5   FEET
SIDE (STREET CORNER) -25 FEET

NOTES:
1. LOTS 1, 30, 31 AND 49  SHALL NOT HAVE DRIVEWAY ACCESS ONTO JONES BOULEVARD AND

SHALL NOT HAVE DRIVEWAY EDGES LOCATED CLOSER THAN 25 FEET FROM THE END OF RADIUS
OF THE JONES BOULEVARD INTERSECTION.  (MEASURED AT THE FRONT PROPERTY LINE).

LEGAL DESCRIPTION                                                                                                    

DESCRIPTION 
EASEMENT IDENTIFICATION TABLE

LABEL

15.0 FOOT WIDE PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT3

20.0 FOOT SANITARY SEWER AND DRAINAGE EASEMENT5

2

8

1
1

1

2

2

2

3

3

3

3

8

4

4

5

5

1

20.0 FOOT STORM SEWER AND DRAINAGE EASEMENT6

3

3

3

3

6

6

5.0 FOOT STORM SEWER EASEMENT7

4

7

7

8



North Liberty – 2024  Resolution Number 2024-48 
Page 1 

Resolution No. 2024-48 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PRELIMINARY PLAT FOR 
SOLOMONS LANDING – PART FIVE, NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA: 
 
WHEREAS, the owner and applicant, Pratt Real Estate Management, Inc., has filed with the 

City Clerk a preliminary plat described in Exhibit A which is attached hereto;  
 
WHEREAS, the property is legally described as:  
 
BEGINNING at the Northeast Corner of Outlot "C" of Solomon's Landing - Part One, to 
North Liberty, Iowa, in accordance with the Plat thereof Recorded in Plat Book 66 at Page 
88 of the Records of the Johnson County Recorder's Office; Thence S01°14'54"E, along 
the East Line of said Outlot "C", 679.99 feet, to the Southeast Corner thereof; Thence 
S88°45'06"W, along the South Line of said Outlot "C", 475.00 feet, to the Southwest 
Corner thereof; Thence N82°08'32"W, along the West Line of said Outlot "C", 101.47 feet; 
Thence N69°21'23"W, along said West Line, 103.51 feet; Thence N40°08'58"W, along said 
West Line, 103.49 feet; Thence N32°53'56"W, along said West Line, 103.56 feet; Thence 
N03°57'33"W, along said West Line, and the West Line of Auditor's Parcel 2024016, in 
accordance with the Recorded Plat thereof, 105.40 feet, to the Northwest Corner of said 
Auditor's Parcel 2024016; Thence N86°06'31"E, along the North Line of said Auditor's 
Parcel 2024016, a distance of 139.40 feet, to the Northeast Corner thereof, and a Point on 
the West Line of said Outlot "C"; Thence Northwesterly, 20.00 feet, along said West Line, 
and the East Line of Auditor's Parcel 2024017, in accordance with the Recorded Plat 
thereof, on a 258.86 foot radius curve, concave Northeasterly, whose 19.99 foot chord 
bears N01°40'41"W, to the Northeast Corner of said Auditor's Parcel 2024017; Thence 
N89°27'52"W, along the North Line of said Auditor's Parcel 2024017, a distance of 137.20 
feet, to the Northwest Corner thereof, and a Point on the West Line of said Outlot "C"; 
Thence N07°35'31"E, along said West Line, 90.19 feet; Thence N15°56'22"E, along said 
West Line, 106.46 feet; Thence N55°23'20"E, along said West Line, 125.71 feet; Thence 
N62°26'38"E, along said West Line, 46.72 feet; Thence N67°50'16"E, along said West Line, 
95.12 feet; Thence N80°57'47"E, along said West Line, 44.98 feet, to the Northwest Corner 
of said Outlot "C"; Thence N88°45'29"E, along the North Line of said Outlot "C", 467.96 
feet, to the POINT OF BEGINNING. Said Tract of Land contains 11.28 Acres, and is subject 
to easements and restrictions of record.  
 
WHEREAS, said real estate is owned by the above-named party and the subdivision is 

being made with free consent and in accordance with the desires of the owner; 
 

WHEREAS, said preliminary plat has been examined by the North Liberty Planning and 
Zoning Commission which found: 

 



North Liberty – 2024  Resolution Number 2024-48 
Page 2 

1. The Preliminary Subdivision Plat, which proposes residential would achieve consistency 
with the Comprehensive Future Land Use Map designation of Urban Medium Intensity. 

2. The Preliminary Subdivision Plat would achieve consistency with Section 180.11(3)(A) 
and 180.12 of the North Liberty Code of Ordinances, which sets forth the preliminary 
subdivision plat submittal requirements and design standards, respectively. 
 

and did recommend that the preliminary plat described as Solomons Entertainment District – Part 
Five be approved with no conditions;  
 
 WHEREAS, said preliminary plat is found to conform with Chapter 354 of the Code of Iowa 
and ordinances of the City of North Liberty. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Preliminary Plat for Solomons 
Entertainment District – Part Two is approved.  

 
 APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of May, 2024. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY:  
 
 
_____________________________________________ 
CHRIS HOFFMAN, MAYOR  
 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting of the 
City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above was 
adopted.  
 
 
_______________________________________  
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 
 



 

North Liberty Community 
Pantry    



 1 

 
COMMUNITY PANTRY FUNDING AGREEMENT 

       
This Community Pantry Funding Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into by and 

between the North Liberty Community Pantry, an Iowa non-profit corporation 
(hereinafter referred to as “NLCP” which expression shall include its agents, successors or 
assigns) and the City of North Liberty, Iowa (hereinafter “the City”). NLCP and the City 
are collectively referred to as “the Parties.” 
 

I. RECITALS 
 

A. The City of North Liberty, Iowa is committed to protecting and preserving 
the health, safety and welfare of its residents.  

 
B. The City finds that providing funding for certain charitable and not-for-

profit enterprises which directly serve and benefit the residents of North Liberty is an 
effective and efficient means to those ends, particularly in regard to underserved portions 
of the population. 

 
C. NLCP provides food and clothing, free of charge, to hundreds of needy 

residents of North Liberty every year. NLCP depends on charitable donations to provide 
said services. 

 
D. The City finds that NLCP’s operations serve a public purpose and a critical 

need for residents of North Liberty, such that providing food and clothing benefits not 
only the individuals directly receiving those necessary goods, but the general public as well 
by helping those individuals to work, learn, and contribute within the community. 
  

E. NLCP has proposed the construction of and relocation to a new and 
expanded facility located at 350 W. Penn Street to accommodate the growing needs of 
the community. The City finds that the proposed construction is reasonable and 
appropriate to serve its growing population. 

 
F. The City wishes NLCP to continue to provide its services to residents of 

North Liberty, and wishes to contribute to the construction of the new NLCP facility to 
ensure the effective delivery of said services. 

 
G. In June of 2012, the City provided a monetary contribution to NLCP for the 

purpose of purchasing a walk-in freezer at its existing location, with the understanding that 
if the food pantry were to relocate or close, the freezer would be relocated or returned to 



 2 

the City. The freezer has nearly reached the end of its lifespan, and the City no longer 
wishes for the return of the existing freezer. 

 
II. TERMS 

 
 1. Recitals.  By this reference, the Recitals set forth above are incorporated 
into and made part of this Agreement. 
 
 2. Consideration.  Upon execution of this Agreement by all Parties and upon 
approval of the Agreement by the City’s council, the City shall pay NLCP the sum of One 
Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000.00). 
 
 In return, NLCP agrees to continue to provide services to residents of North 
Liberty as part of its ongoing operations.  
 

In addition, NLCP shall make reasonable efforts to sell the walk-in freezer located 
at the existing facility at 89 N. Jones Blvd., and will apply any proceeds therefrom toward 
the purchase of the new facility. If sale of the freezer is not possible, NLCP shall be 
responsible for the proper disposal of the freezer and the costs therefor. 
 
 3. Accounting.  NLCP agrees to allocate said funds toward the construction 
of a new facility to be located at 350 W. Penn Street, and to provide an accounting 
showing that the funds were so applied. 
 
 4. Interpretation.  The language of all parts of this Agreement shall in all cases 
by construed as a whole, according to its fair meaning, and not strictly for or against any 
of the Parties.  This Agreement is made and entered into, and shall be subject to, governed 
by, and interpreted in accordance with, the laws of the State of Iowa. 
 
 5. Severability.  Should any provision of this Agreement be declared or be 
determined by any court to be illegal or invalid, the validity of the remaining parts, terms, 
or provisions shall not be affected thereby and said illegal or invalid part, term, or provision 
shall be deemed not to be a part of this Agreement. 
 
 6. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement sets forth the entire agreement 
between the Parties hereto and fully supersedes any and all prior agreements or 
understanding between the Parties hereto pertaining to the subject matter hereof. 
 
 7. Counterparts.  This Agreement shall be executed in one or more 
counterparts and by facsimile or other electronic means, each counterpart shall, for all 



 3 

purposes, be deemed an original, and all counterparts shall constitute the same 
instrument. 
 
 8. Authority to Sign.  The undersigned individuals represent and warrant that 
they have authority to execute the Agreement on behalf of their respective parties.  The 
undersigned individuals represent and warrant that all necessary corporate actions or 
resolutions have been taken to authorize the execution of this Agreement. 
 
 9. Drafting.  This Agreement was negotiated at arm’s-length and entered into 
freely by the Parties, who have had opportunity to seek the advice of counsel.  In the event 
an ambiguity exists in any provision of this Agreement, such ambiguity is not to be 
construed by reference to any doctrine or statute calling for ambiguities to be construed 
against the drafter of the document. 
 
 10. Captions.  The captions or headings of the sections in this Agreement are 
for the convenience of reference only and in no way define, limit, or affect the scope or 
substance of any section of this Agreement. 
 
 11. Scope of Promises, Representations, and Inducements.  Parties 
acknowledge, warrant and represent that no promises, representation or inducements, 
except as herein set forth, have been offered or made by a party hereto or to any other 
party hereto to secure the execution of any provision of this Agreement.  
 
 12. Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure 
to the benefit of each Party’s successors and assigns. 
 
 13. Modifications.  No part or provision of this Agreement may be changed, 
modified, waived, discharged or terminated except by an instrument in writing signed by 
the Party against whom enforcement of such change, modification, waiver, discharge or 
termination is sought.  The failure of a party to seek redress for violation of, or to insist 
upon strict performance of, any provision of this Agreement shall not be a waiver of that 
provision by the party to estop that party from asserting fully any and all of its rights under 
this Agreement. 
 
 14. Further Assurances.  Each party shall execute such other and further 
documents, and take such other and further actions as may be reasonably requested by a 
Party hereto for the purpose effectuating the agreements herein. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Community Pantry 
Funding Agreement effective on the last date set forth below. 



 4 

 
NORTH LIBERTY COMMUNITY PANTRY 
 
 
By: ______________________________   
  
 
Date of Signature: __________________  
 
 
THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA 
 
 
By: ______________________________ 
 Chris Hoffman, Mayor  
 
Date of Signature: __________________ 



North Liberty – 2024  Resolution Number 2024-49 
Page 1 

Resolution No. 2024-49 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY AND THE NORTH LIBERTY 
COMMUNITY PANTRY 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA:  
 

WHEREAS, the North Liberty Community Pantry (NLCP) provides food, clothing, and 
other assistance in the City of North Liberty;  

 
WHEREAS, the City of North Liberty finds that this participation directly benefits the 

citizens of North Liberty;  
 
 WHEREAS, the City of North Liberty has offered to provide $100,000.00 in support of 

the construction of a new Pantry Facility at 350 W. Penn Street; and  
 
WHEREAS, it is the parties’ desire to agree and establish, in writing, their 

understanding regarding said contribution as in the attached agreement.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Agreement between the City of North 

Liberty and the North Liberty Community Pantry is approved. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to 

execute said agreement.  
  
APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of May, 2024. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
CHRIS HOFFMAN, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting of the 
City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above was 
adopted. 
 
________________________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



 

Recreation Fees    



 
 

To: City Council, Park & Recreation Board, and City Administration 
From: Shelly Simpson, Recreation Department 
Re: Fees and Charges Increase Proposal 
Date: April 10, 2024 
 
The Recreation/Aquatic Department recommends an increase proposal based on the following. 

• Recreation & Aquatic budgets have seen a concerning shift in the balance of user fees versus tax 
subsidy to cover operational costs. Revenue from user fees is not keeping pace with increasing 
expenses and taxes are being used to cover this gap. Traditionally, we have had a goal of funding 
the facility with 60% taxes, 40% user fees. The last two fiscal years, 2022 and 2023, have been 
closer to a 70/30 split. 

• Recreation/Aquatics continues to increase levels of service, make upgrades to an aging facility, 
and keeps expanding programs and equipment to meet community demand. 

• No significant fee changes have occurred since 2018 and best practices suggest an analysis of user 
fees on a reoccurring basis. 

 
Daily Fees 
This is the area of biggest change, and our recommendation is based on data that shows most of our daily 
fees occur during the summer months, impacting our outdoor pool operations and capacity limits. Last 
summer, the highest number of drop-in users to the outdoor pool were youth/seniors at 65%. Many 
patrons often come without identification, so we would like to simplify the current four price structure 
down to one category: 
 

 
 
This recommendation is based on recent conversation and information gathered from local 
outdoor pools with current rates of $6.00 per day. Daily fees will need to be separated in 
correlation to our two budgets - Rec or Pool. Patrons paying for use of weight & exercise area, 
gymnasiums, track use falls into Rec fees while patrons paying for either indoor or outdoor pool 
use falls into Pool fees. 

Free & Discounted Opportunities 

Patrons concerned with not being able to afford daily fee rates or have no interest in obtaining 
memberships may look to free gymnasium nights on the First & Third Tuesdays, and Second & 
Fourth Fridays of each month. Discounted swim times will be offered as well, and staff will 
continue to research our less busy times to promote expanded free use opportunities.  

 

Daily Fees: Current (Res/Non-res.) New Proposal
Adults $ 4.00 / $ 5.00 Rec Daily Fee - $6.00 per person
Children / Seniors $ 3.00 / $4.00 Pool Daily Fee - $6.00 per person
Children ( 2 years & under) Free Free

City Slate Events - various
Seasonal Events - various
Discount Swims - determined weekends, twilight, late night offerings.
Free Gym Nights - 6-9pm on First & Third Tuesdays, Second & Fourth Fridays each month



 
We would like this new daily fee proposal to begin May 25, 2024, prior to the start of our outdoor 
pool season.  
Memberships 
We strive to accommodate the community by providing membership choices based on what area of the 
facility is of primary interest and we offer monthly or annual options. Memberships are a better value for 
the more avid user. All membership users must obtain and scan ID card upon entry.  
Track Memberships: This membership is for track use only. It is free for residents, with non-residents 
being charged monthly or annual rates; a bargain compared to daily rates.  
Facility Memberships: This membership is for children (completion of Fifth grade - without supervision) 
and adults taking part in open gym activities such as basketball, pickleball and volleyball only.  
Gold Memberships: This membership is for access to the weight & exercise area only. Children must be 
in high school to utilize equipment without supervision. 
Silver Memberships: This membership is for access to either the indoor or outdoor pool. Children 
(completion of Fifth grade – without supervision) and adults using pool facilities.  
Black & Gold Memberships: This membership is for access to the weight & exercise area, pools, track, 
open gyms; considered our “All-Inclusive”.  
 
Staff will educate individuals on the benefits of our memberships. For example, Gold & Silver 
memberships has adults paying $36 a month ($1.20 per day) or $216 annually ($.60 per day).  Children 
or Seniors Citizens paying $30 a month ($1.00 per day) or $180 annually ($.50 per day).  
Non-resident rates are +125% of resident rates.  
Black & Gold dollars are split 50/50 between our two budgets – Rec & Pool. 
Gold, Facility & Track dollars go into Rec Budget. Silver dollars go into Pool Budget. 
 

 
 
Financial aid: Financial aid will continue to be an option for residents that meet requirements. Income 
verification is administered through Hawkeye Area Community Action Program (HACAP) Low Income 
Energy Assistance Program and cross referenced with a chart used by Iowa City School District reduced 
lunch guidelines. For those that have taken advantage of our financial aid, most memberships are free, 
once approved. 
 

Black & Gold Gold or Silver Facility Only Track Only
Monthly: Resident Non. Res Resident Non. Res Resident Non. Res Resident Non. Res
Adult Indiv idual age 19-59 54$       68$       36$     45$     10$     13$     Free 13$     
Discounted Under 19, over 60, retired or active 45$       56$       30$     38$     5$       6$       Free 6$       

military  or full-time student
Couple Two adults sharing a residence 93$       116$     62$     78$     15$     19$     Free 19$     
Family Entire Household 180$    225$     120$   150$   20$     25$     Free 25$     
Annual:
Adult Indiv idual age 19-59 324$    405$     216$   270$   60$     75$     Free 75$     
Discounted Under 19, over 60, retired or active 270$    338$     180$   225$   30$     38$     Free 38$     

military  or full-time student
Couple Two adults sharing a residence 558$    698$     372$   465$   90$     113$   Free 113$   
Family Entire Household 1,080$ 1,350$ 720$   900$   120$   150$   Free 150$   



 
We are not recommending any changes to our membership rates. Staff will look to educate the value of 
our existing memberships. We will continue to listen to public demands, simplify options, and research 
payment plans or auto-pay opportunities for future implementation.    
 
Rental Rates 
The Recreation Department handles numerous rental opportunities such as meeting rooms, 
gymnasiums, pools, shelters, and fields. Facility reservations are made on a first-come, first-serve basis. 
All Recreation Center programs take precedent. As our population grows so does our reservation 
demands to utilize such areas.  
 
Pool Rentals 
Pool reservations are at specified times; Saturday & Sunday, 6:00-7:30pm or 7:45-9:15pm. Indoor Pool 
has a capacity of 175 individuals and Outdoor Pool has capacity of 480 individuals.  
 

 
 
Rental Descriptions 
Many of our spaces are rented based on size and capacity needs. We categorize spaces as half or full 
and charge at a per hour rate to residents, non-residents, and non-profit organizations. 
 

 
 
Park Shelter & Field Rentals 
Most park shelters are used on a first come, first serve basis but some reservations are made to secure 
shelter space. Most ball fields are utilized by NLCBS, but more & more requests are coming from local 
traveling teams. The Recreation Department handles reservations for two fields during the week and all 
fields on weekends. 
 

 
 

Pool Descriptions: Current Price New Proposal
Sat & Sun 6-7:30pm; 7:45 -9:15pm Resident Non-Res. Resident Non-Res.
Indoor Pool - year round 125$        same 130$        165$        
Outdoor Pool - seasonal 250$        same 255$        320$        

Rental Descriptions: Current Price (per hour) New Proposal (per hour)
Resident Non-Res. Non Profit Resident Non-Res. Non Profit Renamed

Half Room - up to 20 10$           15$           5$             15$           20$           10$           
Full Room - up to 40 20$           25$           10$           25$           35$           20$           Single Room
Full  Room - up to 40 20$           25$           10$           25$           32$           20$           
Large Room - up to 70 25$           30$           13$           30$           38$           26$           
Double Room - up to 140 40$           50$           20$           45$           60$           40$           Double Room
Half Gymnasium 30$           35$           na 35$           45$           na
Full Gymnasium 50$           55$           na 55$           70$           na
Gerdin CC - up to 200 50$           65$           na Gerdin CC- half
Gerdin CC - up to 400 70$           85$           na 75$           95$           na Gerdin CC - full
Kids Campsite - up to 49 25$           na 30$           40$           na

Park/Field Descriptions: Current Price New Proposal
Resident Non-Res. Resident Non-Res.

Park Shelter or Gazebo - per hour 10$           same No changes
Ball Field - per hour, per field 20$           same Review annually
Green Space - per hour 20$           same
Chalk - per bag 10$           same
Diamond Dry - per bag 15$           same



 
We recommend that proposes rental fees begin August 1, 2024.  Recommendation is for rental fees to 
be reviewed annually and set at the start of each program or season without needing Council approval. 
 
Program Fees 
New programs may be added at any time and fees may change as we promote our various programs 
from one activity guide to another. Most program fees are reviewed & potentially changed on an annual 
basis by recreation staff. Program classifications include: 
In-house Programs: Programs in which all revenues and expenses are determined by the Recreation 
Department. Fees determined by staff as well. Free community programs fall into this category. 
Contract Programs: Contracted instructors/personnel, fees agreed upon at start of program, 70% 
revenue to instructor, 30% revenue to Recreation Department. 
Tri-City Programs: Large programs shared between cities, fees determined and agreed upon prior to the 
start of each program annually by all cities involved. 
 
We recommend that program fees are reviewed annually by staff and set at the start of each program or 
season without needing Council approval. Examples of some of larger fees are listed below as reference. 
 
Swim Lessons 
Ashley reviews fees in conjunction with American Red Cross and other local agencies that offer swim 
lessons. Our swim lessons are offered year-round, registration is three times per year in conjunction 
with seasonal activity guides and are in high demand. 
 

 
 
In summary, group lessons are based on $5 per lesson, private lessons are $15 per lesson and non-
residents rates are $10 higher. Program expenses continue to rise, which will impact how user fees are 
determined.  
 
BASP – Recsters & Summer Camp 
Annually Matt Fielder, adjusts our BASP and Summer Camp fees making sure to stay competitive with 
local programs, staying reasonable while trying to cover increasing program expenses. 
 

 
 
Program expenses continue to rise, which will impact how user fees are determined.  
 
 
 

Swim Lessons: Current Price New Proposal
Group (8), Private (4) lessons Resident Non-Res. Resident Non-Res.
Group Mornings - per session 40$           50$           Review annually
Group Evenings - per session 40$           50$           Review annually
Private Evenings - per session 60$           70$           60$           75$           

BASP / Summer Camp: Current Price New Proposal
Resident Non.Res. Resident Non-Res.

Before School - per month 75$           same 85$           same
After School - per month 220$        same 240$        same
Before & After Combo - per month 250$        same 275$        same
All-Days - per day 60$           same 60$           same
Summer Camp - per week 260$        same 260$        same



 
 
 
Program Fees- continued 
 
Sports: 
Many of our sport programs are tri-city run programs or have been created as contracted programs. 
Fees are determined by the main instructor or collectively by all cities involved. Brian reviews expenses 
such as officials pay and what other leagues are charging to offset expenses. 
 

 
 
Program expenses continue to rise, which will impact how user fees are determined for programs led by 
part-time staff or contractual positions. 
 
Other Programs/ Classes 
Many of our fitness classes and new programs are led by contracted instructors. Fees are discussed with 
each instructor whenever we are approached with interest in offering such new classes. Revenue is split 
70% to instructor, 30% to NLCC. 
 
Proposal Summary: 
Daily fees proposed to begin May 25, 2024. 
Membership pricing remains the same and promoted as the best value. 
Rental pricing proposed to begin August 1, 2024. 
Program fees will be staff reviewed and potentially changed on an annual basis.  
 
The North Liberty Recreation Center remains community-service-oriented by providing reasonably 
priced programs & activities, free community special events, and family-oriented areas of the facility. 
 
Submitted by Shelly Simpson, Recreation Director. 
 

Sports: Current Price New Proposal
Resident Non-Res. Resident Non-Res.

Pee Wee Sports - per session 25$           30$           30$           35$           
Supreme Volleyball - per player 50$           same 50$           same
Supreme Flag Football  - per player 70$           same 75$           same
Supreme Basketball - per player 50$           same 55$           same
Rookie Baketball - per session 30$           same 35$           same
Tennis Lessons - per session 30$           same 35$           same
Soccer - recreation, per session 60$           same 60$           same
Soccer - hybrid, per session 90$           same 90$           same
Wrestling - per session 75$           same 75$           same
Yth Competitive League - per team 375$        same 375$        same
Adult Co-ed Volleyball - per team 95$           same 100$        same
Men's Basketball - per team 400$        same 400$        same



Membership Descriptions Facility Use Areas
Pools Weights & Gymnasiums Track

Exercise Equip
Black & Gold - considered our all-inclusive access. √ √ √ √
Gold - access to weight & exercise equipment. √ √ √
Silver - access to indoor & outdoor pools. √ √ √
Facility - access to open gym activities (pickleball, bb, vb). √ √
Track - access to track only. √

Annual Memberships: Monthly Memberships:
Black & Gold:
Adult - R $324 / NR $405 pays for itself in 54 / 67 visits per year. R $54/ NR $68 pays for itself in 9 / 11 visits per month. 
Discounted - R $270 / NR $338 pays for itself in 45 / 56 visits per year. R $45 / NR $ 56 pays for itslef in 7 / 9 visits per month.
Couple - R $558 / NR $698 pays for itself in 46 / 58 visits per year. R $93 / NR $116 pays for itself in 8 / 9 visits per month.
Family - R $1,080 / NR $1,350 pays for itself in 45 / 56 visits per year. R $180 / NR $225 pays for itself in 7 / 9 visits per month.
Gold or Silver:
Adult - R $216 / NR $270 pays for itself in 36 / 45 visits per year. R $ 36 / NR $ 45 pays for itself in 6 / 7 visits per month.
Discounted - R $180 / NR $225 pays for itself in 30 / 38 visits per year. R $ 30 / NR $ 38 pays for itself in 5 / 6 visits per month.
Couple - R $372 / NR $465 pays for itself in 31 / 39 visits per year. R $ 62 / NR $ 78 pays for itself in 5 / 7 visits per month.
Family - R $720 / NR $900 pays for itself in 30 / 38 visits per year. R $ 120 / NR $ 150 pays for itself in 5 / 6 visits per month.
Facility:
Adult - R $60 / NR $75 pays for itself in 10 / 12 visits per year. R $ 10 / NR $13 pays for itself in 1 / 2 visits per month.
Discounted - R $30 / NR $38 pays fr itself in 5 / 6 visits per year. R $ 5 / NR $6 pays for itself immediately per month.
Couple - R $90 / NR $113 pays for itself in 7/ 9 visits per year. R $ 15 / NR $19 pays for itself in 1 / 2 visits per month.
Family - R $120 / NR $150 pays for itself in 30 / 38 visits per year. R $ 20 / NR $25 pays for itself immediately / 1 visit per month.
Track:
Adult - R incur no fees, NR $75 pays for itself in 12 visits per year. R incur no fees, NR $13 pays for itself in 2 visits per month.
Discounted - R incur no fees, NR $38 pays for itself in 6 visits per year. R incur no fees, NR $6 pays for itself immediately.
Couple - R incur no fees, NR $113 pays for itself in 9 visits per year. R incur no fees, NR $19 pays for itself in 2 visits per month.
Family - R incur no fees, NR $150 pays for itself in 6 visits per year. R incur no fees, NR $25 pays for itself in 1 visit per month.



North Liberty Recreation Department 
Financial Assistance Information 
 
For City of North Liberty Residents Only: 
This is an application form for financial aid for programs and packages of 
the North Liberty Recreation Department for city of North Liberty residents only.  
North Liberty residents are individuals that reside within North Liberty’s city limits.  

Updated 2022.09 
 

Financial Assistance Policy: 

It is the policy of the North Liberty Parks and Recreation Commission to provide services to all city of North 
Liberty residents who need it regardless of their ability to pay the established fees. Those unable to pay a fee 
may be awarded assistance. The amount of assistance provided to an individual or family will be based on 
their documented ability to pay the amount requested.  

Eligibility:  

Assistance will be granted on the basis of financial need. Eligibility criteria is based on the Low Income Home 
Energy Assistance Program. HACAP has agreed to act as a certifying agency in determining qualification for 
this program. 

Application Process: 

1. Financial Assistance Forms are available at the North Liberty Recreation Center, 520 W. Cherry Street. 
2. Forms must be completed thoroughly and accurately and income information must be provided. 
3. Completed forms and necessary income information may be turned in to the North Liberty Recreation 

Department, any HACAP office or drop box, or emailed to info@hacap.org. All request forms will be 
kept confidential.  

4. HACAP staff will determine eligibility for North Liberty Recreation Department Financial Assistance and 
additional HACAP assistance. HACAP staff will contact the applicant directly with if additional 
information is needed and/or if the applicant is eligible for assistance. 

5. The City of North Liberty Scholarship Program has a predetermined amount of money set aside each 
year. Once this amount is reached, additional financial assistance is not guaranteed.  

Eligibility and percent of fee to be paid is based on Federal Poverty Guidelines and families are eligible at 
200% and less. 

Gross Annual 
Income 

Family Size  
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

0-$27,180 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

PE
RC

EN
T 

O
F 

FE
E 

TO
 

BE
 P

AI
D 

BY
 F

AM
IL

Y $27,181-$36,620 25% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 
$36,621-$46,060 50% 25% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 
$46,061-$55,500 75% 50% 25% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 
$55,501-$64,940 100% 75% 50% 25% 0% 0% 0% 0% 
$64,941-$74,380 100% 100% 75% 50% 25% 0% 0% 0% 
$74,381-$83,820 100% 100% 100% 75% 50% 25% 0% 0% 
$83,821-$93,260 100% 100% 100% 100% 75% 50% 25% 0% 

 PERCENT OF FEE TO BE PAID BY FAMILY  
 

 

 

 



North Liberty Recreation Department 
Financial Assistance Information 
 
For City of North Liberty Residents Only: 
This is an application form for financial aid for programs and packages of 
the North Liberty Recreation Department for city of North Liberty residents only.  
North Liberty residents are individuals that reside within North Liberty’s city limits.  

Updated 2022.09 
 

Name of Applicant: _____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Street Address:_________________________________________________________________________ City: North Liberty  State: Iowa 
Primary Phone: ______________________________________ Home Cell E-mail Address: ______________________________________  
I agree to receive information from HACAP via (check all that apply): Phone Call Text Message Mail Email 
Preferred language for communication (if other than English): _________________________________________________________________ 
Family Type: Single Adult     2 Adults w/child(ren)    2 Adults-no children  Total # of Household Members: ____________ 
  

Household Members (including applicant)  
 First and Last Name Date of Birth  First and Last Name Date of Birth 

1   5   

2   6   

3   7   

4   8   
 

I’d like to receive more information about 
HACAP Programs: 
 Health and Nutrition (Food Resources, WIC) 
 Energy Conservation (Weatherization, Utilities) 
 Early Head Start/Head Start (for children 0-5) 
 Affordable Housing 
 Veteran Services 
 

I give permission to HACAP and North Liberty Recreation to share necessary information to process this application. This sharing of information is to be conducted with maximum respect 
for the confidentiality of the information contained in this application. I consent to receiving additional information about HACAP programs. 
 
Applicant Signature: ________________________________________________________________________________ Date: _________________________ 
*Applicant MUST provide proof of income (for all household members age 18 and over). Depending upon your household income type, 
income documentation from the past 30 days, the last 12 months, or last calendar year, whichever is easier or more beneficial to you.  
Wage Earners: provide copies of your check stubs for the 30-day period preceding the date of application, or a copy of your most recent federal 
income tax return. 
Fixed Income: this income may include Social Security Benefits, Supplemental Security Income, Veteran’s Assistance, Unemployment Insurance, 
and pensions. Provide copies of your check stubs from the previous 30 days.  
Self-Employed/Farmers: provide a copy of your most recent federal income tax return.  

HACAP Certification: I certify that the above household is at or below the established income guidelines. 
Known Annual Income: 
 
 

Known Monthly Income: 

HACAP Employee: 
 
 

HACAP Employee Title: 

HACAP Employee Signature: 
 
 

Date Certified: 

 

First Name Income Sources* How Often Paid 
    

   

   

   



Recreation Center Fee Structure 
Adopted May 14, 2024 

 

Daily Entrance Fee   $6   

    
Monthly Memberships    

  Black & Gold 
Gold or 

Silver Facility Only Track Only 

  Res
Non 
Res Res

Non 
Res Res 

Non 
Res Res

Non 
Res

Adult Individual age 19-59 $54 $68 $36 $45 $10 $13 Free $13

Discounted 
Under 19, over 60, retired 
or active military or full-
time student 

$45 $56 $30 $38 $5 $6 Free $6

Couple Two adults sharing a 
residence 

$93 $116 $62 $78 $15 $19 Free $19

Family Entire Household $180 $225 $120 $150 $20 $25 Free $25
 

 
  

Annual Memberships  
  

Adult Individual age 19-59 $324 $405 $216 $270 $60 $75 Free $75

Discounted 
Under 19, over 60, retired 
or active military or full-
time student 

$270 $338 $180 $225 $30 $38 Free $38

Couple Two adults sharing a 
residence 

$558 $698 $372 $465 $90 $113 Free $113

Family Entire Household $1,080 $1,350 $720 $900 $120 $150 Free $150

    

Room Rentals Res
Non 
Res

Non 
Profit   

Single Room $25 $35 $20    
Double Room $45 $60 $40    
Half Gymnasium $35 $45 na    
Full Gymnasium $55 $70 na    
Gerdin Conference 
Center - Half 

$50 $65 na
   

Gerdin Conference 
Center - Full 

$75 $95 na
   

Kids Campsite - up to 49 $30 $40 na
   



 
   

Pool Rentals                     
Saturdays & Sundays; 6pm-
7:30pm or 7:45pm to 9:15pm Res

Non 
Res

      

Indoor Pool - year round 
$130 $165

  

Outdoor Pool - seasonal 
$388 $485

  

    
Park & Field Rentals    
Park Shelter or Gazebo - 
per hour 

$10
  

Ball Field - per hour, per 
field 

$20
  

Green Space - per hour $20   
Chalk - per bag $10   
Diamond Dry - per bag $15   

    

Recreation Programs      
Swimming lessons, BASP, sports, 
etc. 

   
All programming fees will be evaluated annually and may be adjusted by staff based on actual expenses of programs. 

 



North Liberty – 2024  Resolution Number 2024-50 
Page 1 

Resolution No. 2024-50 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE RECREATION FEE 
STRUCTURE 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, 

IOWA: 
 
WHEREAS, Recreation fees were last updated in 2018;  
 
WHEREAS, staff has reviewed the cost of operations to propose an updated fee 

structure; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Parks and Recreation Board has reviewed the proposed fee 

structure and recommends approval for implementation.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that following Recreation Fee Structure is 
approved and will go into effect May 25, 2024 for daily entrance fees and August 1, 2024 
for rentals.  
 
 APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of May, 2024. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY:  
 
 
_____________________________________________ 
CHRIS HOFFMAN, MAYOR  
 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting 
of the City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the 
above was adopted.  
 
_______________________________________  
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 



 

Easement Agreement    









North Liberty – 2024  Resolution Number 2024-51 
Page 1 

Resolution No. 2024-51 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE ACQUISITION OF A 
PERMANENT UTILITY EASEMENT FOR THE 
FOREVERGREEN ROAD SIGNALIZATION PROJECT 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH 

LIBERTY, IOWA:  
 
WHEREAS, the City of North Liberty has approved the Forevergreen Road 

Signalization Project (the “Project”) over and across a portion of certain property owned 
by T L & L, Inc. (the “Property Owner”); and 

 
WHEREAS, a portion of the right-of-way acquired for the Project is subject to an 

existing easement held by Linn County Rural Electric Cooperative (“LC REC”); and 
 
WHEREAS, to allow the City the full use of the right-of-way acquired, that portion 

of LC REC easement overlapping the right-of-way must be vacated, and to make LC REC 
whole, an alternative public utility easement adjacent to the acquisition has been 
negotiated with the Property Owner and reduced to writing (the “Easement Agreement”) 
which is attached hereto; and 

 
WHEREAS, LC REC has agreed to the easement as satisfactory and has executed 

documentation vacating that portion of their existing easement which conflicts with the 
City’s right-of-way; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of North Liberty agrees to provide compensation to the 

Property Owner for the public utility easement in the total amount of Eight Hundred Thirty 
Dollars ($830.00). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that that the attached Easement 

Agreement for the establishment of a public utility easement property owned by T L & L, 
Inc. is authorized and approved. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



North Liberty – 2024  Resolution Number 2024-51 
Page 2 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of May, 2024. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
CHRIS HOFFMAN, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting 
of the City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the 
above was adopted. 
 
________________________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



 

Saratoga Place     



North Liberty – 2024 Resolution Number 2024-52 
Page 1 

Resolution No. 2024-52 
 

RESOLUTION ACCEPTING PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS FOR AND 
DEDICATION OF SARATOGA PLACE, IN SOLOMON’S LANDING PART 
ONE IN NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA  

  
 

IOWA: 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, 

WHEREAS, on October 25, 2022, the City Council of North Liberty approved the final 
plat for the Solomon’s Landing Part One Subdivision contingent upon the owner and developer of 
the property, Pratt Real Estate Management, Inc., having provided for the installation of public 
improvements thereon in accordance with the provisions of City Code Section 180.11(8)(A)(2) and 
the public dedication of the roadway itself; and 

 
WHEREAS, the installation of public improvements has been substantially completed in 

accordance with the requirements of Chapter 180.11 of the City Code.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the land and public improvements specific to 

Saratoga Place for Solomon’s Landing Part One Subdivision and the Owner’s Certificate and 
Dedication for said land and improvements are hereby approved and accepted. 

 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of May, 2024. 

CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY:    
 
 
_______________________________________   
CHRIS HOFFMAN, MAYOR   
 
ATTEST: 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting of the 
City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above was adopted.  
 
 
_______________________________________  
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 



 

Assessment Resolution    



North Liberty – 2024  Resolution Number 2024-53 
Page 1 

Resolution No. 2024-53 
 
RESOLUTION ASSESSING AMOUNTS OWED TO THE CITY OF 
NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA TO INDIVIDUAL PROPERTY TAXES 

 
WHEREAS, the City has issued a municipal infraction citation to the owner of real 

property within the corporate boundaries of the City of North Liberty, and alleging one or more 
violations of Chapter 50 of the City Code of Ordinances prohibiting the creation or maintenance 
of nuisances; and 

 
WHEREAS, the District Court of Johnson County entered judgment in favor of the City, 

sustaining the citation, ordering the property owner to abate the nuisance within a time certain, 
and authorizing the City to perform such abatement activity and to assess the costs for 
abatement in the same manner as property tax if not promptly completed by the property 
owner; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City was required to perform the abatement activity, incurring costs as 

follows: 
 

Name Property Parcel Amount Description 
Eric J. Cameron 210 W Penn St 0612176006 $1,738.00 Nuisance 

Abatement 
 
WHEREAS, under the terms of the City Code of North Liberty, Iowa and Iowa Code §§ 

364.12 and 364.22, this amount should be certified and assessed to the property. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT that the City Clerk is hereby authorized 

and directed to certify to the Johnson County Treasurer the above amount to the appropriate 
real property in North Liberty, Johnson County, Iowa, as hereinbefore described. 

 
 APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of May, 2024. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY:  
 
_____________________________________________ 
CHRIS HOFFMAN, MAYOR  
 
ATTEST: 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting of the 
City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above was 
adopted.  
 
_______________________________________  
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



 

2024A Bond Sale    



North Liberty / 421033-94 / Set Hrg (part rr) GO LAs   

North Liberty – 2024  Resolution Number 2024-54 
Page 1 
 

MINUTES TO SET DATE FOR HEARINGS 
ON LOAN AGREEMENTS 

421033-94 

North Liberty, Iowa 

May 14, 2024 

The City Council of the City of North Liberty, Iowa, met on May 14, 2024, at ______ o’clock 
__.m. at __________________________________________________, North Liberty, Iowa.   

The Mayor presided and the roll was called showing the following members of the City 
Council present and absent: 

Present:  
  

Absent:       . 

Council Member _____________________________ introduced the resolution hereinafter 
next set out and moved its adoption, seconded by Council Member _________________________; 
and after due consideration thereof by the City Council, the Mayor put the question upon the 
adoption of the said resolution and the roll being called, the following named Council Members 
voted: 

Ayes:  
  

Nays:     . 

Whereupon, the Mayor declared the resolution duly adopted as hereinafter set out. 

• • • • 

At the conclusion of the meeting and upon motion and vote, the City Council adjourned. 

  
Mayor 

Attest: 

       
City Clerk 



North Liberty / 421033-94 / Set Hrg (part rr) GO LAs   

North Liberty – 2024  Resolution Number 2024-54 
Page 2 
 

Resolution No. 2024-54 

RESOLUTION SETTING THE DATE FOR PUBLIC HEARINGS ON PROPOSALS TO 
ENTER INTO GENERAL OBLIGATION LOAN AGREEMENTS 

WHEREAS, the City of North Liberty (the “City”), in Johnson County, proposes to enter 
into a General Obligation Loan Agreement (the “Essential Purpose Loan Agreement”) and to 
borrow money thereunder in a principal amount not to exceed $2,100,000 pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 384.24A of the Code of Iowa for the purpose of paying the costs, to that 
extent, of undertaking parking lot improvements at Penn Meadows Municipal Park (the “Essential 
Purpose Project”), and it is necessary to fix a date of meeting of the City Council at which it is 
proposed to take action to enter into the Essential Purpose Loan Agreement and to give notice 
thereof as required by such law; and 

WHEREAS, the City also proposes to enter into a General Obligation Urban Renewal Loan 
Agreement (the “Urban Renewal Loan Agreement” and together with the Essential Purpose Loan 
Agreement, the “Loan Agreements”) and to borrow money thereunder in a principal amount not 
to exceed $2,700,000 pursuant to the provisions of Sections 384.24A and 384.24.3(q) of the 
Code of Iowa for the purpose of paying the costs, to that extent, of undertaking the Northside 
Community Park Land Acquisition Project, an urban renewal project of the City authorized by 
action of the City Council on June 27, 2023, as amended on May 14, 2024 (the “Urban Renewal 
Project” and together with the Essential Purpose Project, the “Projects”), and in lieu of calling an 
election thereon, the City desires to institute proceedings to enter into the Urban Renewal Loan 
Agreement by causing a notice of such proposal to be published, including notice of the right to 
petition for an election, under the provisions of Sections 384.24.3(q) and 384.26 of the Code of 
Iowa, and it is now necessary to fix a date of meeting of the City Council at which it is proposed to 
take action to enter into the Urban Renewal Loan Agreement and to give notice thereof as 
required by such law; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of North Liberty, 
Iowa, as follows: 

Section 1. This City Council shall meet on May 28, 2024, at the Council Chambers, in 
the City, at 6:30 p.m., at which time and place hearings will be held and proceedings will be 
instituted and action taken to enter into the Loan Agreements. 

Section 2. The City Clerk is hereby directed to give notice of the proposed action on 
the Essential Purpose Loan Agreement setting forth the amount and purpose thereof, the time 
when and place where the said meeting will be held by publication at least once, not less than four 
(4) and not more than twenty (20) days before the date of said meeting, in a legal newspaper 
which has a general circulation in the City.  The notice shall be in substantially the following form: 

 



North Liberty / 421033-94 / Set Hrg (part rr) GO LAs   

North Liberty – 2024  Resolution Number 2024-54 
Page 3 
 

NOTICE OF PROPOSED ACTION TO INSTITUTE PROCEEDINGS TO ENTER 
INTO A LOAN AGREEMENT AND TO BORROW MONEY THEREUNDER IN A 
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $2,100,000 

(GENERAL OBLIGATION) 

The City Council of the City of North Liberty, Iowa, will meet on May 28, 2024, at 6:30 p.m. 
at Council Chambers, 360 N. Main Street, North Liberty, Iowa, for the purpose of instituting 
proceedings and taking action to enter into a loan agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) and to 
borrow money thereunder in a principal amount not to exceed $2,100,000 for the purpose of 
paying the costs, to that extent, of undertaking parking lot improvements at Penn Meadows 
Municipal Park. 

The Loan Agreement is proposed to be entered into pursuant to authority contained in 
Section 384.24A of the Code of Iowa and will constitute a general obligation of the City. 

At that time and place, oral or written objections may be filed or made to the proposal to 
enter into the Loan Agreement. After receiving objections, the City may determine to enter into 
the Loan Agreement, in which case, the decision will be final unless appealed to the District Court 
within fifteen (15) days thereafter. 

By order of the City Council of the City of North Liberty, Iowa. 

Tracey Mulcahey 
City Clerk 

 

 

 



North Liberty / 421033-94 / Set Hrg (part rr) GO LAs   

North Liberty – 2024  Resolution Number 2024-54 
Page 4 
 

Section 3. The City Clerk is hereby directed to give notice of the proposed action on 
the Urban Renewal Loan Agreement setting forth the amount and purpose thereof, the time when 
and place where the said meeting will be held by publication at least once, not less than ten (10) 
and not more than twenty (20) days before the date of said meeting, in a legal newspaper which 
has a general circulation in the City.  The notice shall be in substantially the following form: 

 

 

 



North Liberty / 421033-94 / Set Hrg (part rr) GO LAs   

North Liberty – 2024  Resolution Number 2024-54 
Page 5 
 

NOTICE OF PROPOSED ACTION TO INSTITUTE PROCEEDINGS TO ENTER 
INTO A LOAN AGREEMENT AND TO BORROW MONEY THEREUNDER IN A 
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $2,700,000 

(GENERAL OBLIGATION) 

The City Council of the City of North Liberty, Iowa, will meet on May 28, 2024, at 6:30 p.m. 
at Council Chambers, 360 N. Main Street, North Liberty, Iowa, for the purpose of instituting 
proceedings and taking action to enter into a loan agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) and to 
borrow money thereunder in a principal amount not to exceed $2,700,000 for the purpose of 
paying the cost, to that extent, of undertaking the Northside Community Park Land Acquisition 
Project, an urban renewal project of the City authorized by action of the City Council on June 27, 
2023, as amended on May 14, 2024. 

The Loan Agreement is proposed to be entered into pursuant to authority contained in 
Section 384.24A and Section 384.24.3(q) of the Code of Iowa and will constitute a general 
obligation of the City. 

At any time before the date fixed for taking action to enter into the Loan Agreement, a 
petition may be filed with the City Clerk of the City asking that the question of entering into the 
Loan Agreement be submitted to the registered voters of the City, pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 384.26 of the Code of Iowa.  If no such petition is filed, at the aforementioned time and 
place, oral or written objections may be filed or made to the proposal to enter into the Loan 
Agreement.  After receiving objections, the City may determine to enter into the Loan Agreement, 
in which case, the decision will be final unless appealed to the District Court within fifteen (15) days 
thereafter. 

By order of the City Council of the City of North Liberty, Iowa. 

Tracey Mulcahey 
City Clerk 



North Liberty / 421033-94 / Set Hrg (part rr) GO LAs   

North Liberty – 2024  Resolution Number 2024-54 
Page 6 
 

Section 4. Pursuant to Section 1.150-2 of the Income Tax Regulations (the 
“Regulations”) of the Internal Revenue Service, the City declares (a) that it intends to undertake 
the Projects, which are reasonably estimated to cost approximately $4,800,000, (b) that other 
than (i) expenditures to be paid or reimbursed from sources other than the issuance of bonds, 
notes or other obligations (the “Bonds”), or (ii) expenditures made not earlier than 60 days prior 
to the date of this Resolution or a previous intent resolution of the City, or (iii) expenditures 
amounting to the lesser of $100,000 or 5% of the proceeds of the Bonds, or (iv) expenditures 
constituting preliminary expenditures as defined in Section 1.150-2(f)(2) of the Regulations, no 
expenditures for the Projects have heretofore been made by the City and no expenditures will be 
made by the City until after the date of this Resolution or a prior intent resolution of the City, and 
(c) that the City reasonably expects to reimburse the expenditures made for costs of the City out 
of the proceeds of the Bonds.  This declaration is a declaration of official intent adopted pursuant 
to Section 1.150-2 of the Regulations. 

Section 5. All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

Section 6. This resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its 
adoption and approval, as provided by law. 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of May, 2024. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
CHRIS HOFFMAN, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting 
of the City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the 
above was adopted. 
 
________________________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



North Liberty / 421033-94 / Set Hrg (part rr) GO LAs   

North Liberty – 2024  Resolution Number 2024-54 
Page 7 
 

ATTESTATION CERTIFICATE 

STATE OF IOWA 
JOHNSON COUNTY SS: 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY 

I, the undersigned, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, do hereby certify that attached 
hereto is a true and correct copy of the proceedings of the City Council relating to fixing a date 
for hearings on the City’s proposal to take action in connection with certain loan agreements, as 
referred to therein. 

WITNESS MY HAND this _____ day of __________________, 2024. 

  
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



North Liberty / 421033-94 / Set Hrg (part rr) GO LAs   

North Liberty – 2024  Resolution Number 2024-54 
Page 8 
 

ORGANIZATION CERTIFICATE 
 
 
 
STATE OF IOWA 
JOHNSON COUNTY   SS: 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY 
 
 
 I, the undersigned City Clerk, do hereby certify that the City of North Liberty is organized 
and operating under the provisions of Title IX of the Code of Iowa and not under any special 
charter and that the City is operating under the Mayor-Council form of government and that there 
is not pending or threatened any question or litigation whatsoever touching the incorporation of 
the City, the inclusion of any territory within its limits or the incumbency in office of any of the 
officials hereinafter named. 
 
 And I do further certify that the following named parties are officials of the City as 
indicated: 
 Chris Hoffman, Mayor 
 
 Ryan Heiar, City Administrator 
  
 Tracey Mulcahey, Assistant City Administrator / City Clerk 
  
 Debra Hilton, City Treasurer 
 
 Brian Wayson, Council Member/Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 Brian Leibold, Council Member 
 
  Paul Park, Council Member 
 
  Erek Sittig, Council Member 

  Brent Smith, Council Member 

 
 WITNESS MY HAND this ____ day of ___________________, 2024. 
 
 
             
       TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK  
 
 



North Liberty / 421033-94 / UR Amend  

North Liberty – 2024  Resolution Number 2024-55 
Page 1 
 

APPROVE MAY, 2024 AMENDMENT TO 
THE NORTH LIBERTY URBAN RENEWAL 
AREA  

421033-94 

North Liberty, Iowa 

May 14, 2024 

The City Council of the City of North Liberty, Iowa, met on May 14, 2024, at ______  p.m. 
at the ___________________________ in the City pursuant to the rules of the Council.   

The Mayor presided and the roll was called, showing members present and absent as 
follows: 

Present:    

Absent:   . 

Council Member ______________________ moved the adoption of a resolution entitled 
“Resolution to Approve Urban Renewal Plan Amendment for the North Liberty Urban Renewal 
Area,” seconded by Council Member ______________________.  After due consideration, the 
Mayor put the question on the motion and the roll being called, the following named Council 
Members voted: 

Ayes:    

Nays:   . 

Whereupon, the Mayor declared the resolution duly adopted, as follows: 



North Liberty / 421033-94 / UR Amend  

North Liberty – 2024  Resolution Number 2024-55 
Page 2 
 

 

Resolution No. 2024-55 

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE URBAN RENEWAL PLAN AMENDMENT FOR 
THE NORTH LIBERTY URBAN RENEWAL AREA 

WHEREAS, as a preliminary step to exercising the authority conferred upon Iowa cities 
by Chapter 403 of the Code of Iowa (the “Urban Renewal Law”), a municipality must adopt a 
resolution finding that one or more slums, blighted or economic development areas exist in the 
municipality and that the rehabilitation, conservation, redevelopment, development or a 
combination thereof, of such area or areas is necessary in the interest of the public health, safety 
or welfare of the residents of the municipality; and 

WHEREAS, this City Council of the City of North Liberty, Iowa (the “City”), by prior 
resolution established the North Liberty Urban Renewal Area (the “Urban Renewal Area”) and 
adopted an urban renewal plan (the “Plan”) for the governance of projects and initiatives therein; 
and 

WHEREAS, an amendment (the “Amendment”) to the Plan has been prepared which 
updates the description of the City’s Westside Community Park Land Acquisition Project 
previously approved by the City Council in the June, 2023 Amendment to the Plan to rename 
said project the “Northside Community Park Land Acquisition Project”; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of North Liberty, 
Iowa, as follows: 

Section 1. The Amendment, attached hereto and made a part hereof, is hereby in all 
respects approved. 

Section 2. It is hereby determined and reaffirmed by this City Council as follows: 

 A. The Northside Community Park Land Acquisition Project proposed under 
the Amendment conforms to the general plan for the development of the City; 

 B. The Northside Community Park Land Acquisition Project proposed under 
the Amendment is necessary and appropriate to facilitate the proper growth and development 
of the City in accordance with sound planning standards and local community objectives. 

C. It is not intended that families will be displaced as a result of the City’s 
undertaking under the Amendment.  Should such issues arise with future projects, then the City 
will ensure that a feasible method exists to carry out any relocations without undue hardship to 
the displaced and into safe, decent, affordable and sanitary housing. 



North Liberty / 421033-94 / UR Amend  

North Liberty – 2024  Resolution Number 2024-55 
Page 3 
 

 Section 3. All resolutions or parts thereof in conflict herewith are hereby repealed, to 
the extent of such conflict. 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of May, 2024. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
CHRIS HOFFMAN, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a 
meeting of the City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other 
proceedings, the above was adopted. 
 
________________________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 

(Attach copy of the urban renewal plan amendment to this resolution.) 

• • • • 

Upon motion and vote, the meeting adjourned. 

  
CHRIS HOFFMAN, MAYOR 

Attest: 

  
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



North Liberty / 421033-94 / UR Amend  

North Liberty – 2024  Resolution Number 2024-55 
Page 4 
 

STATE OF IOWA 
JOHNSON COUNTY SS: 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY 

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that I am the duly appointed, qualified and acting 
City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, and that as such I have in my possession or have access to 
the complete corporate records of the City and of its officers; and that I have carefully 
compared the transcript hereto attached with the aforesaid records and that the attached is a 
true, correct and complete copy of the corporate records relating to the action taken by the City 
Council preliminary to and in connection with approving the urban renewal plan amendment for 
the North Liberty Urban Renewal Area in the City of North Liberty, Iowa. 

WITNESS MY HAND this ____ day of ______________________, 2024. 

  
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK  

 



North Liberty/421033-90/UR Plan Amend 

- 1 - 
 

CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA 
 

URBAN RENEWAL PLAN AMENDMENT 
NORTH LIBERTY URBAN RENEWAL AREA 

 
May, 2024 

The Urban Renewal Plan (the “Plan”) for the North Liberty Urban Renewal Area 
(the “Urban Renewal Area”) of the City of North Liberty, Iowa (the “City”) is being 
amended for the purpose of updating the description of the City’s Westside Community 
Park Land Acquisition Project. 

1) Update Description of the City’s Westside Community Park Land 
Acquisition Project.  The City approved the Westside Community Park Land Acquisition 
Project in the June, 2023 Amendment to the Plan. It is now necessary to rename the 
Project and to reaffirm the description, as follows: 

Name of Project: Northside Community Park Land Acquisition Project  

Date of Council Approval of the Project: June 27, 2023, and updated on 
May 14, 2024 

Description of Project and Project Site: The Northside Community Park Land 
Acquisition Project (the “Park Land Acquisition Project”) will consist of the 
acquisition of certain real property by the City (the “Park Property”) situated in 
the Urban Renewal Area and more particularly described as follows: 

That part of the Northwest Quarter of Section 12, Township 80 North, Range 7 
West of the 5th P.M., North Liberty, Johnson County, Iowa, described as follows: 
 Beginning at the southwest corner of Lot 108, Inter-City Industrial Park, Part Two 
(Final Plat recorded in Plat Book 32, Plage 64 at the Johnson County Recorder’s 
Office); thence North 89º51’43” East 1712.06 feet along the south line of said 
Inter-City Industrial Park, Part Two (assumed bearing for this description only) to 
a point of curvature; thence 182.34 feet along the arc of a 410.28 foot radius 
curve concave northwesterly (chord bearing North 77º07’46” East 180.84 feet), 
said arc being along Lot 103 of said Inter-City Industrial Park, Part Two; thence 
South 0º06’26” East 619.57 feet; thence South 89º51’43” West 2122.33 feet to a 
point of intersection with the west line of said Northwest Quarter; thence North 
0º02’28” West 843.30 feet along said west line; Area:  40.64 acres. 



North Liberty/419440-83/UR Plan Amend 
 

- 2 - 
 

A new park will be developed on the Park Property in the future to serve the 
North Liberty community.    

It is anticipated that the completed Park Land Acquisition Project will have a 
positive impact on commerce, tourism and economic development in the Urban 
Renewal Area through the provision of enhanced recreational amenities. 

Description of Use of TIF for the Project: It is anticipated that the City will 
pay for the Park Land Acquisition Project with either borrowed funds and/or the 
proceeds of an internal advance of City funds on-hand.  In any case, the City’s 
obligations (the “Obligations”) will be repaid with incremental property tax 
revenues derived from the Urban Renewal Area.  It is anticipated that the City’s 
use of incremental property tax revenues for the Park Land Acquisition Project 
will not exceed $3,000,000, plus any interest expense incurred by the City on the 
Obligations. 

  
 2) Required Financial Information. The following information is provided in 
accordance with the requirements of Section 403.17 of the Code of Iowa: 

Constitutional debt limit of the City:    $127,683,552  
Outstanding general obligation debt of the City:  $   
Proposed debt to be incurred in area to be added 
in connection with this June, 2023 Amendment*:  $  3,000,000  

    
*It is anticipated that some or all of the debt incurred hereunder will be subject to 
annual appropriation by the City Council.  



 

North Ridge Part Four 
Rezoning    



 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 



 



 

 



 

 

 



North Liberty – 2024  Ordinance Number 2024-03 
Page 1 

 

Ordinance No. 2024-03 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING MAP DISTRICT 
DESIGNATION FOR CERTAIN PROPERTY LOCATED IN 
NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA FROM ID INTERIM DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT TO RS-4 SINGLE-UNIT RESIDENCE DISTRICT  
 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA: 
 
SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT.  The Official Zoning Map incorporated in Chapter 168.01(2) of the 
North Liberty Code of Ordinances is hereby amended by designating the zoning district for 5.36 
acres, more or less, as RS-4 Single-Unit Residence District for property particularly described as 
follows: 

Auditor’s Parcel No. 2023083 as recorded in Book 67, Page 134 in the Office of the 
Johnson County, Iowa Recorder. Described parcel contains 5.36 acres 
 

SECTION 2.  CONDITIONS IMPOSED.  At the April 2, 2024, meeting the Planning Commission 
accepted the listed finding and forwarded the request for a zoning map amendment to the City 
Council with a recommendation for approval with no conditions. 
 
SECTION 3.  ZONING MAP.  It is hereby authorized and directed that the Zoning Map of the City 
of North Liberty, Iowa, be changed to conform to this amendment upon final passage, approval 
and publication of this ordinance as provided by law. 
 
SECTION 4.  RECORDATION.  The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to record this 
ordinance at the Johnson County Recorder’s office upon final passage and approval. 
 
SECTION 5.  REPEALER.  All Ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions 
of this Ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 6.  SCRIVENER’S ERROR.  The correction of typographical errors which do not affect 
the intent of the ordinance may be authorized by the City Clerk or the Clerk’s designee without 
further public hearing. 
 
SECTION 7.  SEVERABILITY.  If any section, provision or part of this Ordinance shall be adjudged 
invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the Ordinance as a 
whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional. 
 
SECTION 8. WHEN EFFECTIVE. This ordinance shall be in effect from and after its final passage, 
approval and publication as provided by law.  
 
First reading on April 23, 2024.  
Second reading on _______________.   
Third and final reading on ________________. 



North Liberty – 2024  Ordinance Number 2024-03 
Page 2 

 

 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
CHRIS HOFFMAN, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting of the 
City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above was 
adopted. 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 
 
 
I certify that the forgoing was published as Ordinance No. 2024-03 in The Gazette on the ____ of 
___________, _____.   
 
 
_______________________________________       
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



 

Additional Information     



To Mayor and City Council 
CC City Administrator 
From Tom Palmer, Building Official 
Date 5/1/2024 
Re Monthly Report 

April Permits: 
Ninety-seven permits were issued in the month of April with an estimated construction 
value of 5.3 million dollars. Sixteen applications for new homes with an estimated 
construction value of 3.7 million dollars. Staff completed 319 inspections in the month of 
April.   

Rental/Code Compliance Cases: 

Three rental permit applications were received in April. Eleven code compliance cases were 
processed in April. 

Retail Projects: 

Crews are nearing completion of Aldi Food Store            Kwik Star building shell and canopies installation completed 
Grand opening is scheduled for May 2 



Description Construction Value Permits
Building  $5,113,686.21 48
Demolition $0.00 1
Development $0.00 1
Fire $132,586.90 10
FOG $100.00 4
Residential Rental $0.00 3
Right of Way $24,798.00 3
Stormwater $0.00 3
Zoning $71,832.00 24
Total $5,343,003.11 97

Fees Breakdown

$150.00
$650.00

$56,915.44

$150.00
$2,165.00

$0.00
$300.00
$47.00

    Permit Type Report
Permit Date

04/01/2024 to 04/30/2024

Fees
$53,428.44

$25.00

  



    Permit Summary Report Inspection Type    
    Schedule Date01/01/2024 TO 04/30/2024    

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Row Total

Inspection request 19 42 46 39 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 146
Re-inspection 33 20 36 46 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 135

1st SWPPP 0 4 6 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 17
Above Suspended Ceiling 1 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3

Backflow Preventer 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Building Sewer 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Commercial Final 2 0 1 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 7
Commercial Rough-In 0 1 4 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 7

Commercial Water Service 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
Deck, Porch, Sunroom Footings 4 4 7 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 21

Final 11 14 12 11 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 48
Fire - Automatic Sprinkler System 1 5 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 11

Fire - Automatic Sprinkler System - Preconcealment 2 0 1 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 7
Fire - Final Inspection 1 1 0 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 10

Fire - Fire Alarm Installation 1 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3
Fire - Fire Alarm Installation (Rough-In) 3 0 1 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 7

Fire - Kitchen Hood Suppression System Installation 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Fire - Mobile Food Unit 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2

Footings/Slabs 0 8 11 9 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 28
Foundation Dampproofing 0 3 9 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 15

Foundation Wall 1 6 10 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 25
Framing 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2

Furnace/AC Replacement 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5
Gas service release 16 3 6 9 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 34

Grading 1 13 2 9 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 25
Meeting 1 0 2 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6

Notice of Termination CSR 1 3 10 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 22
Other 0 1 2 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8

Permanent Electric Service Release 9 7 1 22 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 39
Plumbing below slab 1 6 15 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 28

Rental 31 41 12 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 90
Residential final (New Construction) 8 8 25 13 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 54

Residential Photovolatic (PV) Solar System 2 2 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 7
Residential Rough-in (New Construction) 12 7 0 17 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 36

Residential Sewer Service 0 7 20 10 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 37
Residential Water Service 0 8 16 10 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 34

Rough-in 3 1 1 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 10
Sanitary Sewers 1 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5

Sidewalk Release 2 3 12 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 24
Sump Pump Discharge Line 0 5 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 13

Temporary Electric Service 0 3 8 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 19
Water Heater 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Water Main and Appurtenance 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Witness air pressure test and piping inspection 12 14 4 20 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 50

Totals: 182 248 298 319 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1047



Case Date Case # Complaint Reporting 
Code 

4/2/2024 20240029 Vehicles parked on grass front yard. Zoning Code
4/4/2024 20240030 Past due backflow tests City Code
4/4/2024 20240031 Past due backflow tests City Code
4/4/2024 20240032 Past due backflow tests City Code
4/4/2024 20240033 Past due backflow tests City Code

4/15/2024 20240034 Many issues with rental unit that need to be corrected. See notes. Property 
Maintenance 
Code

4/24/2024 20240035 Past due backflow tests City Code
4/29/2024 20240036 Uncut yard. Nuisance 
4/29/2024 20240037 Uncut yard Nuisance 
4/29/2024 20240038 Uncut yard Nuisance 
4/29/2024 20240039 Uncut yard. Nuisance 

Code Compliance Report

04/01/2024 - 04/30/2024

Page: 1 of 1



Breakdown of Backflow Preventer Compliance

146

13

205

1

100

13

104

3

0

60

120

180

240

300

Domestic- (159) Fire- (206) Irrigation- (113) Misc- (107)

Non Compliant Compliant
Fire Protection / Fire Detector Bypass=Fire

Domestic / Domestic Bypass=Domestic

Lawn Irrigation=Irrigation

All Others=Isolation



 

 

To Mayor and City Council 
CC City Administrator Ryan Heiar 
From Community Relations Director Nick Bergus 
Date May 7, 2024 
Re April 2024 Community Relations Staff Report  

The Big Move 
On April 22, the Community Relations team relocated from the Community Center to 
City Hall. (And then spent time over the following week or so moving equipment and 
other supplies.) It’s definitely a change not having free weights slamming on the floor 
above our heads and the whine of the elevator. Eventually, after some repainting and 
reflooring, members of the Recreation Department will take over the old office. Space 
will then be available for Micah and other team members to have office space off the 
lobby of the Community Center and maintain a presence in that vibrant hub. In May we 
will dismantle the set up at old council chambers after the last meeting there. 

City Slate 
April’s City Slate had one event, Community Center Open House (April 3), and we 
prepared for summer events including, Playground Crawl (May 11), Remarkable Rigs (May 
18), Summer Reading Kick-Off Party (May 22), Let Love Fly (June 8) and the Ranshaw 
House Concert Series (Fridays in June and July) and a Street Dance (Aug. 17). 

Blues & BBQ 
We selected 15 food vendors, opened volunteer opportunities and prepared to announce 
our headline (The White Buffalo) in early May. We continued to meet with the planning 
committee, meetings will continue through the event on July 13.  

Building North Liberty’s Next Stage 
The project went out for bid with an award expected in May. Our fundraising total is 
$2,295,167.65, and work continues to identify and connect with potential naming 
partners. Meanwhile, staff is working to refine pricing, policies and marking to be ready to 
take bookings by the groundbreaking in July.  

Youth Council 
The group prepared for their May kickball tournament, met with Mayor Hoffman at new 
City Hall before its opening to discuss issues important to them and continues to work 
through the school year. We are currently accepting applications for the fall’s cohort. 



Other Items 
Staff represented the city at Greater Iowa City’s Community Development Innovation 
Council and Think Iowa City’s Herky on Parade streets committee in preparation for the 
May 1 unveiling. 

Staff volunteered with the Englert Theatre, Bike Iowa City, North Liberty Community 
Pantry, 100+ Women Who Care, Johnson County Successful Aging Policy Board, and 
worked with other local initiatives and non-profits. 

We produced the City Council meeting and submitted it to the Iowa City government 
channel and produced several podcasts for the library in addition to 52317 episodes. 

We posted news releases about City Slate events, utility bills, fire department responses, 
youth kickball tournament, City Halls’ move, youth council dog park reseeding, grant 
awards, projects and improvements and more.  

Completed Videos 
Title Requested By Completed Duration 
Planning & Zoning Commission Administration April 2 0:07 
Parks & Recreation Commission Administration April 4 1:40 
City Council Administration April 9 0:15 
City Council Administration April 9 0:50 
Tree & Stormwater Administration April 10 0:31 
Library Board of Trustees Administration April 15 0:49 
Eye on: Animal Control Community Relations April 18 0:03 
City Council Administration April 23 0:33 
Total completed productions: 8 Duration of new video: 4.8 hours 

  



52317 Podcast  
Episodes release every three weeks and can be found at northlibertyiowa.org/52317.  

 
Downloads is the number times the podcast file was downloaded to a player, including a podcast client, webpage-
embedded player or other device in its first 30 days and 90 days of publication. Numbers are as reported by service 
provider LibSyn as of the date of this report.  

North Liberty Bulletin Email Newsletters 
These emails offer news and updates in a friendly, approachable way on the first 
Thursday of each month. 

 
Recipients is the number of email addresses to which an issue of the Bulletin was sent and is represented by the top line. 
Opens is the number of unique recipients who opened the Bulletin and is represented by the bottom line; the standard 
open rate for government is 25.4%. Numbers are as reported by service provider Mailchimp.  

  

118
93

114

175

83 93 86 78 80 76

129

77
101

140
124

135

210

88 97 98 88 90 83

137

0

50

100

150

200

250

88 89 90 91 92 93 94 95 96 97 98 99 100

7,450 7,437 7,419 7,423 7,419 7,378 7,358 7,364
9,089 9,060

15,873 16,951 16,765

3,483 3,102 3,247 3,177 3,722 3,676 3,705 3,391
4,513 4,424

8,246
9,787 8,980

0
2,000
4,000
6,000
8,000

10,000
12,000
14,000
16,000
18,000

April May June July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan.
2024

Feb. March April



Know Before You Go Emails 
These emails focus on free, large-scale community and leverage the city’s email list. It is a 
key marketing channel for City Slate events. 

 
Recipients is the number of email addresses to which an issue of the Bulletin was sent and is represented by the top line. 
Opens is the number of unique recipients who opened the Bulletin and is represented by the bottom line; the standard 
open rate for government is 25.4%. Numbers are as reported by service provider Mailchimp. 

Social Media  
Month Facebook  Instagram  Nextdoor 
 New follows Reach Followers Members 
April 89 84,900 3,368 6,665 
March 130 56,333 3,341 6,579 
Feb 102 72,100 3,313 6,498 
Jan 2024 107 46,047 3,273 6,413 
Dec 69 43,961 3,235 6,339 
Nov 122 59,918 3,209 6,289 
Oct 105 63,718 3,182 6,206 
Sept  112 82,206 3,145 6,151 
Aug 78 94,400 3,129 6,087 
July 113 88,157 3,097 6,058 
June 208 220,786 3,063 6,026 
May 195 102,109 3,035 5,999 
April 144 118,294 2,994 5,945 

Facebook new likes is the net number of new users following the city’s Facebook page; it does not include new followers. 
Facebook reach is the number of unique users who saw any of the city’s Facebook content, reported on a 28-day period. 
Instagram followers is the number of users following the city’s Instagram account. Nextdoor members is the number of 
verified North Liberty residents who are users and able to receive our agency messages. 

8,4068,387 8,3728,488 8,457

10,60610,50010,451 10,244

16,69816,61216,384
15,40315,35015,296

4,2254,086 4,1924,336 4,250
5,367 5,1245,191 5,190

8,2328,5388,415
7,6227,6497,741

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

16,000

18,000

8/4/23 9/4/23 10/4/23 11/4/23 12/4/23 1/4/24 2/4/24 3/4/24



TO: Ryan Heiar, City Administrator, and City Council 
FROM: Jennie Garner, Library Director 
DATE: May 14, 2024 
SUBJECT: Monthly Library Report 

Library News 

So much of what we do as librarians is about connection, whether we’re assisting people in 
connecting to information or resources they need, connecting folks to job and career resources, 
or providing people an opportunity to meet others who share their interests and sometimes 
meeting others who are different from them. Libraries build bridges in communities and provide 
experiences for lifelong learning and growth. 

One of the new services we’ve started offering is Book Kits. The library is now offering Adult 
Book Boxes. There are subscription book boxes for adults that are similar to the Teen Lit 
Crates that have been very popular. Each box contains 2-3 books based on reading 
interests that the patron indicates paired with snacks and themed gifts. The Book Box is 
free, but space is limited, and registration is required. 

The second Community Center Open House event was held April 3 in the library 
meeting rooms. The public was able to meet members of city staff, tour the library, sign 
up for a library card, make a craft, and enter drawings during the open house. We had 
about 200 people attend this event that was hosted in collaboration with the recreation 
department and library teams. This event is also part of the 2024 City Slate 
programming offerings. 

The Good Neighbor Book Club launched in April. The meetings were led by the North 
Liberty Neighborhood Ambassadors and our Adult Services Librarian, Nick Shimmin, 
helped moderate the discussion. We are thrilled to be part of this discussion as the 
library works to provide opportunities for civic engagement and civil discourse in our 
community. Participants were invited to explore books centered on belonging, inclusion, 
community building and good neighborship and the first title was I Never Thought of It 
That Way: How to Have Fearlessly Curious Conversations in Dangerously Divided 
Times by Mónica Guzmán.  The program drew a lot of interest and attendance. The 
concept of the book club is focused on learning to discuss hard topics in a civil, 
community-based manner and Nick reported great success for the discussions. At the 
second meeting, the group talked productively for about two hours on a tough, hot 
button topic.  Even with under 20 people in the group, we found that there were 
probably 7-8 different viewpoints on the issues based on various life experiences which 
was fascinating.   

The library staff participated in a Staff Training Day on April 19 so the library was closed for the 
day to give all of our staff the opportunity to spend a day on professional development. Two of 
our staff presented to the rest of the team on Working with Neurodivergent Individuals and 
People in Mental Health Crisis and then United Action for Youth came in to give staff a 
refresher on Building and Keeping Relationships with Teens & Youth, which is always 

https://northlibertyiowa.org/residents/community-events/city-slate/
https://www.moniguzman.com/


 
 

The Library’s annual flocking fundraiser for the North 
Liberty Library Endowment Fund is underway for the 
month of May. For every donation $20 and over a paper 
flamingo will be added to our window flock. Donations can 
be made in the library with cash/check or via Venmo 
@FriendsNLLibrary and for every $100 raised a pink 
plastic flamingo will flock to the library. We’ve already 
received $200 in donations from this fundraiser. 
 

eye-opening and actually helpful in working with all ages. Finally, we showed a 
recording of a conversation about access to information, intellectual freedom, and 
advocacy between me and our Iowa City Colleague, Sam Helmick. Sam is the current 
chair of the Governmental Affairs Committee for the Iowa Library Association and I am a 
member of that committee. The two of us have spent quite a bit of time doing advocacy 
work in Iowa and nationally over the last few years. We were fortunate to be selected to 
present with another librarian, Bill Carroll, director of Marion, at the Iowa League of 
Cities Conference in the fall.  
 
We recently received a grant from the Network of National Libraries of Medicine (NNLM) 
through the All of Us Program Center (NACP) that allowed us to purchase some new 
audio/visual equipment for our meeting rooms. So many acronyms! The new equipment 
has been helpful for accessibility with our 55+ Connections, including 55+ Lunch and 
Learn that the library helps coordinate with recreation staff. Corrie, our assistant Adult 
Services Librarian plans the presentations and programs offered at the lunch. I’ve had 
several seniors tell me how much they appreciate Corrie. The grant also allowed us to 
cover the cost of meals for the 55+ lunch attendees for the whole month of April which 
was great and boosted attendance. I had the pleasure of talking to the group last month 
about library services and all that libraries offer as essential public institutions. You can 
see the new A/V equipment in action below. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 



The library hosted a Bridgerton Gala in April 

that was very popular. An instructor taught his-

torical dances and attendees shared an evening 

of community. More photos and fun available 

here.  

Movement, engagement, and literacy are regular components of the family programming offered 

each week at the library at story times and with our community programming partners.  It’s wonder-

ful to see the joy reflected in the faces of our patrons.  

ABOVE: Library staff—

those offering the pro-

gram and those attend-

ing as patrons had fun 

with this event.  

https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fi/xmwkresbwad5a86hjfwnk/Bridgerton-Gala.pdf?rlkey=arb21z1tdni3ll18xx6am1gnv&st=fs8hcnze&dl=0


The second Community Center 

Open House was a success. 

City staff collaborated across 

several  departments to show-

case just a few of the services 

and events our fantastic city 

team offers.   

Good Neighbor Book Club meeting at the 

Ranshaw House 



 

 

To Mayor and City Council  
Parks and Recreation Commission  
City Administrator 

From Guy Goldsmith, Director of Parks, Building and Grounds 
Date April 30, 2024 
Re Monthly Report 

We performed various building maintenance tasks as needed this month. We assisted in moving 
City Hall and Legal Department to its new location. 

We maintained equipment as needed this month. We continue to prepare for the upcoming 
growing season by performing preventative maintenance and repairing of ball field 
maintenance, mowing, trimming, landscaping, and forestry equipment.  

We continue to pick up park/trail trash receptacles and pet waste stations as needed this 
month. Usage has picked up due to residents getting out and utilizing our parks system now that 
spring has arrived. 

We have begun mowing and trimming for the season. 

We performed ground and landscape maintenance. We trimmed and pruned trees. We finished 
spring turf aeration and applying fertilizer & seed to turf grass areas. We have been very busy 
with round-a-bout and streetscape maintenance. We applied Emerald Ash Borer (EAB) 
insecticide treatment to our ash trees.    

Ball season is here, and the fields have been busy during the week with NLCBS and on weekends 
with scheduled tournaments. Our sports field maintenance team continues to provide weekly 
field maintenance as well as soccer field maintenance and line painting. 

Park staff tilled and prepared the Community Gardens site located at the northeast corner of Penn 
Meadows Park next to the barn in preparation for the May 1st Garden plot renters. This program 
remains a great success. All garden plots have been rented for the season. 

The Muddy Creek clean-up was held on April 8th.  A huge thank you goes out to the Boy Scouts, 
Cub Scouts, Green Castle 4-H Club, Tree & Storm Water Board, City Council, residents, and City 
Staff who participated in this effort. We hauled away three truckloads of collected trash. Much 
appreciated. 

I attended multiple meetings with Shive Hattery this past month. City Admin building 
construction progress, and the Centennial Park “Next Stage” building design planning. 0n April 
19th we attended the Fox Run Park/Pond trail project pre-construction meeting on site.  The Fox 
Run Park/Pond improvements project will begin June 17th.  

I attended many new City Hall meetings this past month. Mechanical cooling and heating, 
generator start up and testing, interior punch list, security, locks, and camera training.  



The Community Center tuckpointing and painting project has been awarded to TNT 
Tuckpointing out of Stockton, Iowa. They plan on starting the project in September and 
completion by October.   

The Tree & Storm Water Board met on April 10th.  We discussed tree grants, Tree City USA 
status, recapped the Muddy Creek and Trail Clean-up Day on April 6th as well as other storm 
water related items.  

We assisted residents from Cedar Springs by pick up trash bags and garbage collected by them 
during their clean-up efforts. Thank you to all that helped.  

LRS, the Streets & Parks Department along with other City Staff participated in the annual City-
Wide Clean-up effort at the Public Works facility on Saturday April 27th. Many residents were 
able to utilize the clean-up program. 

We donated derecho mulch to the Squire Point wood chip trail project. (Yes, we still have mulch 
from derecho). This project will help stabilize and improve the trail system at Squire Point. We 
were happy to provide our excess mulch for this local trail improvement project. 

On April 16th we traveled to Kalona and picked up 10 concrete bases that will be used to install the 
2024 Herky on Parade statues at various locations in North Liberty. 

We replaced the irrigation pump at Liberty Centre Pond in preparation of the upcoming season.  

We conducted seasonal employee interviews. I’m happy to say we finished hiring Seasonal Park 
Maintenance Worker employees for the upcoming season.  

 

                  

City Hall moving week. 

           
                                 Landscape maintenance.                                              Ash tree EAB treatment. 



 

           
Muddy Creek Clean-up on April 8th. 

 

           
Herky on Parade concrete base pickup in Kalona and placement in North Liberty. 

             

Irrigation pump replacement        City cleanup day on April 27th.      City Hall Mechanical training. 
at Liberty Centre Pond.          
                                                              

     



 
 

North Liberty Police 
Monthly Report 

April 2024 
 
Training: 
 
• The CSO attended a weeklong Community Intervention 

Techniques (CIT) that was designed specifically for 
Johnson County and our services. (40 hours) 

• One officer attended negotiator training (8 hours) 
• The K9 handler participated in monthly training (8 

hours) 
• Officers completed bi-annual firearm/range and annual 

Defensive Tactic training at the CR Police Range.  
• An investigator attended a two-week International 

Association of Computer Investigative Specialists 
(IACIS) training for forensics software and certification 

• One officer attended the state offered salvage vehicle 
inspection class 

 
Public Relations: 
 
• The PIO continues contacting local businesses to verify 

emergency contact information and to see if there are 
unmet needs from the police department. This is an 
ongoing project, and we plan to speak to every 
business in town by summer. 

• One officer worked the Liberty post prom. Their overtime will be reimbursed by the post prom 
committee. 

• The Admin Lieutenant attended a reverse job fair at the University of Iowa 
• The PIO and Admin Lieutenant attended a career day at Kirkwood Community college 
• The Admin Lieutenant gave a presentation on avoiding scams to a local group 
 
Equipment:       
                                                                                                 
• Shelf dividers were ordered for the evidence room. These metal panels will divide the rolling 

shelves in half so items cannot be pushed through to other shelf locations.  
• A partial order of spare vehicle tires was placed. The remainder will be ordered prior to the 

end of this fiscal year 
 

Enforcement/Crime: 
 

• To review any criminal complaints for the month List of Criminal Complaints | Johnson 
County Iowa or see North Liberty Calls for service go to Joint Emergency Communications 
Center (jecc-ema.org)  or you can visit the crime map at LexisNexis® Community Crime 
Map and type in North Liberty.   

• The department deployed speed trailers in the 700 block of North Front Street and the 1000 
block of Centro Way  

• Agencies throughout the county responded to vehicle burglaries where windows were 
smashed, and items stolen. We would like to remind the public to remove or hide any 
valuables from your vehicle. 

 
 
 
 

  
Traffic Contacts 188 

Parking Contacts 46 
Vehicle Inspections 1 

Vehicle Unlocks 20 
Crash Investigations 20 

Public Assists 299 
Assist other Agency 133 

    Crimes Against Persons Report 15 
      Crimes Against Property Report 15 
                                   Other Reports 25 
                                              Arrests 21 
                                           Warrants  2 

Alcohol/Narcotics Charges 7 
Crimes Against Persons Charges 7 
Crimes Against Property Charges 0 

Other Charges 18 
Animal Calls 50 

Total Calls for Service 1596 
*Total Calls for Service for the year 7088 



 
 
 
North Liberty Police Monthly Report Continuation --- January 2024 

 
Department Admin:   
   
• After turning in their notices, Officers Bryan Davis and Justin Jacobi worked their last days 

for the department this month. While we are sad to see them go, we wish them all the best 
in their new careers. 

• The officer application packet is still posted online. We are keeping the application process 
open for the year and interviewing when necessary. Our first interview session consisted of 
three applicants and held was on April 30th. Others will be conducted in the first week of 
May. 

• Patrol Lieutenant attended meetings for the GranGable event, ABD law updates and the 
Chief’s meeting. 

• Conducted tours to vendors for janitorial and window cleaning bids.  
• Patrol Lieutenant attended a meeting on scenario training at Clear Creek High School 
 
 
Submitted on 5/4/2024 
 



 

 

To Park & Recreation Commission Board Members 
CC Mayor, City Council, City Administrator 
From Shelly Simpson 
Date May 1, 2024 
Re Monthly Report – April 2024 
 
This April we got a shot of very warm weather which got everyone anxious for summer. Ashley 
was able to receive more applications early to start the summer staff process and registration 
for summer programs kicked off this month, this can be seen in our revenue reports. Several 
special events took place this month including our own NLCC Open House. Staff trainings this 
month included Drug & Alcohol Suspicion and Self Defense. Community Relations Department 
made their move to new City Hall and we are making some changes to Rec offices within the 
building. 
 
Upcoming Events:  May 11 – Playground Crawl 
   May 18 – Remarkable Rigs 
   May 25-27 – Outdoor Pool Opening - TBD 
   
Recdesk Database:  
Reviewing our Recdesk database; we have 14,342 residents (60%) and 9,770 non-residents 
(40%) totaling 24,112 individuals. Increase of 323 from last month. 
 
Aqua Programs: 
Aqua classes continued this month. Aqua Toning (6), Aqua Boot Camp (5), Aqua Zumba (17), 
Arthritis MWF (15), Arthritis T TH (15), Easy Does It (10), Water Resistance (3), totaling 71 
registered, plus drop-ins. Aqua Program/Class revenue totaled $6,255.00.  
 
Swim Lessons: 
Private lessons had another session with (41) participants. 
Summer Swim lessons will resume in June, and spots filled up quickly as usual.  
Revenues totaled $45,978.75. 
 
Leagues/Sports: 
Adult Leagues: Coed VB and Men’s BB session has ended. 
Pickleball: Beginner 2.0 lessons had (4) participants.  
Spring Outdoor Soccer: Hybrid Division Gr 1-3 had (81) participants; Gr 4-6 had (28) participants. 
  Recreation Division Gr 1-3 had (35) participants; Gr 4-6 had (5) participants.  
Sport/Leagues revenues totaled $6,655. 
 
Recsters BASP Program:  
BASP AM – 15 participants, PM – 47 participants. 
All days: April 10 had (20) participants, April 12 had 17 participants. 
BASP/Summer Camp revenues this month totaled $21,700. 
 
 



 
Classes/Programs: 
Body Blast (3), Hapkido Jujitsu (3), Total Body Sculpt (6), Zumba (6), totaling 18 registered, plus 
drop-ins.  
Tippi Toes Dance classes continues with Baby Ballet (20), Ballet/Tap Jazz/ (17), Hip Hop (6) Tippi 
Pro (5) and Toddler & Me (13) totaling 61 participants.  
Connection Luncheons served (151) meals this month; averaging 37 per date. 
Veggie 101 with Forevergreen had (46) participants. 
Kayaking trip was canceled. 
Classes/Programs revenue totaled $24,544.    
 
Pools: This month, Season Pool Pass revenues totaled $5,605.50; Daily Pool Fees totaled $1,702; 
Pool Rentals totaled $2,973.96, and Concessions revenues totaled $-0-  
 
Weight & Exercise Area / Track: 
Weight fee revenues totaled $12,306.75; Split membership revenues totaled $10,191.25. 
We had 3,116 active memberships for the month. 
We had 1,382 point of sale transactions for the month. 
 
Rentals:  
Gymnasium Rental revenues totaled $2,175; Community Center Rental revenues totaled 
$3,696.04; Shelter rental revenues totaled $127.50; Field Rental/Tennis Courts revenues totaled 
$2,430. 
 
Revenues: 
Revenues for the month totaled $146,570.25. 
 
Additional Reports: Recdesk Monthly Revenue, Dashboard Summary, Membership Summary 
and Organizational Activity.  



 
 

To: City Council, Park & Recreation Board, and City Administration 
From: Shelly Simpson, Recreation Department 
Re: Fees and Charges Increase Proposal 
Date: April 10, 2024 
 
The Recreation/Aquatic Department recommends an increase proposal based on the following. 

• Recreation & Aquatic budgets have seen a concerning shift in the balance of user fees versus tax 
subsidy to cover operational costs. Revenue from user fees is not keeping pace with increasing 
expenses and taxes are being used to cover this gap. Our current balance averages 60% from 
taxes, 40% from user fees. 

• Recreation/Aquatics continues to increase levels of service, make upgrades to an aging facility, 
and keeps expanding programs and equipment to meet community demand. 

• No significant fee changes have occurred since 2018 and best practices suggest an analysis of user 
fees on a reoccurring basis. 

 
Daily Fees 
This is the area of biggest change, and our recommendation is based on data that shows most of our daily 
fees occur during the summer months, impacting our outdoor pool operations and capacity limits. Last 
summer, the highest number of drop-in users to the outdoor pool were youth/seniors at 65%. Many 
patrons often come without identification, so we would like to simplify the current four price structure 
down to one category: 
 

 
 
This recommendation is based on recent conversation and information gathered from local outdoor 
pools with current rates of $6.00 per day. Daily fees will need to be separated in correlation to our two 
budgets - Rec or Pool. Patrons paying for use of weight & exercise area, gymnasiums, track use falls into 
Rec fees while patrons paying for either indoor or outdoor pool use falls into Pool fees. 

Free & Discounted Opportunities 

Patrons concerned with not being able to afford daily fee rates or have no interest in obtaining 
memberships may look to free gymnasium nights on the First & Third Tuesdays, and Second & Fourth 
Fridays of each month. Discounted swim times will be offered as well, and staff will continue to research 
our less busy times to promote expanded free use opportunities.  

 

We would like this new daily fee proposal to begin May 25, 2024, prior to the start of our outdoor 
pool season.  

Daily Fees: Current (Res/Non-res.) New Proposal
Adults $ 4.00 / $ 5.00 Rec Daily Fee - $6.00 per person
Children / Seniors $ 3.00 / $4.00 Pool Daily Fee - $6.00 per person
Children ( 2 years & under) Free Free

City Slate Events - various
Seasonal Events - various
Discount Swims - determined weekends, twilight, late night offerings.
Free Gym Nights - 6-9pm on First & Third Tuesdays, Second & Fourth Fridays each month



 
Memberships 
We strive to accommodate the community by providing membership choices based on what area of the 
facility is of primary interest and we offer monthly or annual options. Memberships are a better value for 
the more avid user. All membership users must obtain and scan ID card upon entry.  
Track Memberships: This membership is for track use only. It is free for residents, with non-residents 
being charged monthly or annual rates; a bargain compared to daily rates.  
Facility Memberships: This membership is for children (completion of Fifth grade - without supervision) 
and adults taking part in open gym activities such as basketball, pickleball and volleyball only.  
Gold Memberships: This membership is for access to the weight & exercise area only. Children must be 
in high school to utilize equipment without supervision. 
Silver Memberships: This membership is for access to either the indoor or outdoor pool. Children 
(completion of Fifth grade – without supervision) and adults using pool facilities.  
Black & Gold Memberships: This membership is for access to the weight & exercise area, pools, track, 
open gyms; considered our “All-Inclusive”.  
 
Staff will educate individuals on the benefits of our memberships. For example, Gold & Silver 
memberships has adults paying $36 a month ($1.20 per day) or $216 annually ($.60 per day).  Children 
or Seniors Citizens paying $30 a month ($1.00 per day) or $180 annually ($.50 per day).  
Non-resident rates are +125% of resident rates.  
Black & Gold dollars are split 50/50 between our two budgets – Rec & Pool. 
Gold, Facility & Track dollars go into Rec Budget. Silver dollars go into Pool Budget. 
 

 
 
Financial aid: Financial aid will continue to be an option for residents that meet requirements. Income 
verification is administered through Hawkeye Area Community Action Program (HACAP) Low Income 
Energy Assistance Program and cross referenced with a chart used by Iowa City School District reduced 
lunch guidelines. For those that have taken advantage of our financial aid, most memberships are free, 
once approved. 
 
We are not recommending any changes to our membership rates. Staff will look to educate the value of 
our existing memberships. We will continue to listen to public demands, simplify options, and research 
payment plans or auto-pay opportunities for future implementation.    

Black & Gold Gold or Silver Facility Only Track Only
Monthly: Resident Non. Res Resident Non. Res Resident Non. Res Resident Non. Res
Adult Indiv idual age 19-59 54$       68$       36$     45$     10$     13$     Free 13$     
Discounted Under 19, over 60, retired or active 45$       56$       30$     38$     5$       6$       Free 6$       

military  or full-time student
Couple Two adults sharing a residence 93$       116$     62$     78$     15$     19$     Free 19$     
Family Entire Household 180$    225$     120$   150$   20$     25$     Free 25$     
Annual:
Adult Indiv idual age 19-59 324$    405$     216$   270$   60$     75$     Free 75$     
Discounted Under 19, over 60, retired or active 270$    338$     180$   225$   30$     38$     Free 38$     

military  or full-time student
Couple Two adults sharing a residence 558$    698$     372$   465$   90$     113$   Free 113$   
Family Entire Household 1,080$ 1,350$ 720$   900$   120$   150$   Free 150$   



 
 
Rental Rates 
The Recreation Department handles numerous rental opportunities such as meeting rooms, 
gymnasiums, pools, shelters, and fields. Facility reservations are made on a first-come, first-serve basis. 
All Recreation Center programs take precedent. As our population grows so does our reservation 
demands to utilize such areas.  
 
Pool Rentals 
Pool reservations are at specified times; Saturday & Sunday, 6:00-7:30pm or 7:45-9:15pm. Indoor Pool 
has a capacity of 175 individuals and Outdoor Pool has capacity of 480 individuals.  
 

 
 
Rental Descriptions 
Many of our spaces are rented based on size and capacity needs. We categorize spaces as half or full 
and charge at a per hour rate to residents, non-residents, and non-profit organizations. 
 

 
 
Park Shelter & Field Rentals 
Most park shelters are used on a first come, first serve basis but some reservations are made to secure 
shelter space. Most ball fields are utilized by NLCBS, but more & more requests are coming from local 
traveling teams. The Recreation Department handles reservations for two fields during the week and all 
fields on weekends. 
 

 
 
We recommend that proposes rental fees begin August 1, 2024.  Recommendation is for rental fees to 
be reviewed annually and set at the start of each program or season without needing Council approval. 
 

Pool Descriptions: Current Price New Proposal
Sat & Sun 6-7:30pm; 7:45 -9:15pm Resident Non-Res. Resident Non-Res.
Indoor Pool - year round 125$        same 130$        165$        
Outdoor Pool - seasonal 250$        same 255$        320$        

Rental Descriptions: Current Price (per hour) New Proposal (per hour)
Resident Non-Res. Non Profit Resident Non-Res. Non Profit Renamed

Half Room - up to 20 10$           15$           5$             15$           20$           10$           
Full Room - up to 40 20$           25$           10$           25$           35$           20$           Single Room
Full  Room - up to 40 20$           25$           10$           25$           32$           20$           
Large Room - up to 70 25$           30$           13$           30$           38$           26$           
Double Room - up to 140 40$           50$           20$           45$           60$           40$           Double Room
Half Gymnasium 30$           35$           na 35$           45$           na
Full Gymnasium 50$           55$           na 55$           70$           na
Gerdin CC - up to 200 50$           65$           na Gerdin CC- half
Gerdin CC - up to 400 70$           85$           na 75$           95$           na Gerdin CC - full
Kids Campsite - up to 49 25$           na 30$           40$           na

Park/Field Descriptions: Current Price New Proposal
Resident Non-Res. Resident Non-Res.

Park Shelter or Gazebo - per hour 10$           same No changes
Ball Field - per hour, per field 20$           same Review annually
Green Space - per hour 20$           same
Chalk - per bag 10$           same
Diamond Dry - per bag 15$           same



 
Program Fees 
New programs may be added at any time and fees may change as we promote our various programs 
from one activity guide to another. Most program fees are reviewed & potentially changed on an annual 
basis by recreation staff. Program classifications include: 
In-house Programs: Programs in which all revenues and expenses are determined by the Recreation 
Department. Fees determined by staff as well. Free community programs fall into this category. 
Contract Programs: Contracted instructors/personnel, fees agreed upon at start of program, 70% 
revenue to instructor, 30% revenue to Recreation Department. 
Tri-City Programs: Large programs shared between cities, fees determined and agreed upon prior to the 
start of each program annually by all cities involved. 
 
We recommend that program fees are reviewed annually by staff and set at the start of each program or 
season without needing Council approval. Examples of some of larger fees are listed below as reference. 
 
Swim Lessons 
Ashley reviews fees in conjunction with American Red Cross and other local agencies that offer swim 
lessons. Our swim lessons are offered year-round, registration is three times per year in conjunction 
with seasonal activity guides and are in high demand. 
 

 
 
In summary, group lessons are based on $5 per lesson, private lessons are $15 per lesson and non-
residents rates are $10 higher. Program expenses continue to rise, which will impact how user fees are 
determined.  
 
BASP – Recsters & Summer Camp 
Annually Matt Fielder, adjusts our BASP and Summer Camp fees making sure to stay competitive with 
local programs, staying reasonable while trying to cover increasing program expenses. 
 

 
 
Program expenses continue to rise, which will impact how user fees are determined.  
 
 
 
 
 

Swim Lessons: Current Price New Proposal
Group (8), Private (4) lessons Resident Non-Res. Resident Non-Res.
Group Mornings - per session 40$           50$           Review annually
Group Evenings - per session 40$           50$           Review annually
Private Evenings - per session 60$           70$           60$           75$           

BASP / Summer Camp: Current Price New Proposal
Resident Non.Res. Resident Non-Res.

Before School - per month 75$           same 85$           same
After School - per month 220$        same 240$        same
Before & After Combo - per month 250$        same 275$        same
All-Days - per day 60$           same 60$           same
Summer Camp - per week 260$        same 260$        same



 
Program Fees- continued 
 
Sports: 
Many of our sport programs are tri-city run programs or have been created as contracted programs. 
Fees are determined by the main instructor or collectively by all cities involved. Brian reviews expenses 
such as officials pay and what other leagues are charging to offset expenses. 
 

 
 
Program expenses continue to rise, which will impact how user fees are determined for programs led by 
part-time staff or contractual positions. 
 
Other Programs/ Classes 
Many of our fitness classes and new programs are led by contracted instructors. Fees are discussed with 
each instructor whenever we are approached with interest in offering such new classes. Revenue is split 
70% to instructor, 30% to NLCC. 
 
Proposal Summary: 
Daily fees proposed to begin May 25, 2024. 
Membership pricing remains the same and promoted as the best value. 
Rental pricing proposed to begin August 1, 2024. 
Program fees will be staff reviewed and potentially changed on an annual basis.  
 
The North Liberty Recreation Center remains community-service-oriented by providing reasonably 
priced programs & activities, free community special events, and family-oriented areas of the facility. 
 
Submitted by Shelly Simpson, Recreation Director. 
 

Sports: Current Price New Proposal
Resident Non-Res. Resident Non-Res.

Pee Wee Sports - per session 25$           30$           30$           35$           
Supreme Volleyball - per player 50$           same 50$           same
Supreme Flag Football  - per player 70$           same 75$           same
Supreme Basketball - per player 50$           same 55$           same
Rookie Baketball - per session 30$           same 35$           same
Tennis Lessons - per session 30$           same 35$           same
Soccer - recreation, per session 60$           same 60$           same
Soccer - hybrid, per session 90$           same 90$           same
Wrestling - per session 75$           same 75$           same
Yth Competitive League - per team 375$        same 375$        same
Adult Co-ed Volleyball - per team 95$           same 100$        same
Men's Basketball - per team 400$        same 400$        same



 

 

To Mayor and City Council 
CC City Administrator Ryan Heiar 
From Street Superintendent Michael Pentecost 
Date May 1, 2024 
Re Street Department Staff Monthly Report for April 

The following items took place in the month of April that involved the Street Department. 

• Locating of City Utilities (294 job tickets) ongoing  

a. This is a decrease of 17% from April 2023 

• Continued animal control services (5 responses to animal issues) 

• Cemetery plot locates (15 in total) 

• Projects/Meetings 

a. Street Department Building Project 

i. Bi-monthly progress meetings continue 

ii. Studding, plumbing, electric, and upper concrete deck poured 

b. Coralville led sanitary sewer project 

i. Pre-construction meeting held 

c. Saratoga traffic signal punch list items identified 

d. IDOT/Penn St bridge meeting with Shive, IDOT, and City staff on future lighting 

and traffic signals 

e. Aldi project punch list items identified 

f. W Penn St Road Project 

i. Contractor mobilized on April 15th closing the road 

ii. 14.2% of project complete 

• Training 

a. Flagger Safety and PPE training by IAMU 

b. Supervisor Drug and Alcohol training by Vector Solutions 

• Sanitary Sewer 

a. Inspection of various manhole locations  

• Storm Sewer 

a. Plugged storm sewer in Fox Run subdivision jetted and debris removed 

b. Spring leave collection was completed 

i. Residential leaves were picked up for 5 weeks from March 25th to 

April 26th  

ii. Equipment cleaned and placed into storage 

• Street Sweeping operations continue this month 

i. Quantity of debris hauled to landfill so far is 37.56 ton costing $1878 

ii. Operations expected to be completed in May 

• Street Repairs 



a. Pothole patch repairs in various locations 

b. Gravel roads and shoulder grading 

• Streetlights maintained by the City 

a. Various trouble shooting and repairs 

b. Ranshaw Way lightning strike damaged a number of streetlights and traffic 

signal equipment 

i. All systems were restored and we will be working with insurance 

company on claim 

• Construction plan review of proposed subdivisions and site plans 

• Assisted City Hall staff with location move 

• Spring Clean Up 2024 

a. Site preparation and organization  

b. Many residents were able to make multiple trips through to utilize this service 

c. Breakdown, hauling, and cleaning up Public Works Campus after the event 

• Staff conducted monthly safety inspections for all street equipment and buildings 

a. Required annual inspection completed by vendor on all vehicle and building fire 

extinguishers 

• Cancellation of monthly warning siren testing in all 8 locations because of questionable 

weather 

a. Normal testing will resume in May 

• Sign print, repairs, and installation 

• Service work performed on equipment 

• Snow Operations 

a. All snow equipment was removed off of machinery and placed in cold storage 

for the season 

b. Restoration and repair work on damaged curbs, mailboxes, and yards from 

winter season 

c. Ordering, delivering, and stacking of salt inventory continues this month  

 

 West Penn St road project storm pipe installed 



 

 

 

 



 

City Clean Up Day  

 

 

  Lightning damage on Ranshaw Way striking streetlight 



 

 

To City Council, Mayor, and City Administrator 
From Drew Lammers 
Date May 1, 2024  
Re         April 2024 Water Pollution Control Plant (WPCP) Report 

1. All scheduled preventative maintenance at the plant and lift stations was completed. 
108 work orders were completed throughout April. Maintenace staff repaired a 
plumbing leak inside an exterior block wall.  One contractor estimated $4000 for this 
repair using a slip lining method.  The in-house repair should also mitigate future 
freezing issues in this area. 

 
2. This month’s staff safety meeting topic was Respiratory Protection. Staff completed 

target solutions training online and reviewed PPE as a group. Training covered different 
types of respirators and accessories used within WPCP and specific areas of use. 

   
3. Operations and Lab completed all monthly sample results and reports. Monthly Influent 

Flow Avg. was 2.27 MGD.  0.98 MG of solids were wasted from biological tanks to 
digesters during April. WPCP staff continues to transport biosolids from our storage 
building to a stockpile in a farm field south of Tiffin.  Field application equipment is 
onsite and waiting for appropriate ground conditions to land apply.  City staff hauled 
approximately 393 Wet Tons of biosolids to the farm field.  The additional hauling has 
allowed WPCP additional storage capacity during the summer months as well as saved 
about $8,000 in contract transportation costs. 
 

4. Staff repainted several areas of the Pretreatment Bld.  Main lift pumps, piping, Grit 
System equipment and piping, bypass grinder, structural I-beams, and exterior doors 
were prepped and recoated with new paint. 
 

Three rooms within the MBR had an epoxy floor coating fail and start to bubble.  Staff 
chemically removed as much of the coating as possible and followed up with a surface 
grinder to re-prep all the surface for a new product application.  This was extremely 
labor intensive and took several weeks to complete within the areas needed to maintain 
operational access. 

 
5. Early April precipitation caused several areas of water ponding and increased treatment 

flows by roughly 2 MG for a couple of days.  The plant was able to maintain incoming 
flow treatment with very little flow sent to the equalization basin. 

During heavy rainfall staff notice runoff water infiltrating our EQ building through 
underground electrical conduits routed into the building.  A submersible pump was used 
to temporarily resolve the infiltration and later staff removed the entire underground 
handhole box to dig out and install drainage rock and tile to direct water away from the 
conduits.    



 
 

Drew Lammers - WPCP Superintendent 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Pretreatment Paint Projects  



 

Main Lift Pumps and Piping Repainted 

 



 



 

MBR Floor Coating Removal and Surface Prep 



 

EQ Conduit Handhole filled with water 



 

EQ Handhole removed and dug out  



 

 



 

Drainage rock installed with tile to direct water away from electrical conduit 



 

 

To North Liberty Mayor and City Council Members 
CC City Administrator Ryan Heiar 
From Water Superintendent Greg Metternich 
Date May 3, 2024 
Re Monthly Report – April 2024 

 
 
In the month of April, we treated a total of 39,026,000 gallons of water, our average daily flow 
was 1,301,000 gallons, and our maximum daily flow was 1,510,000 gallons. The total amount of 
water used in the distribution system was 10.56% higher than in April 2023. Our maintenance 
staff flushed hydrants throughout the entire month of April.  
 
We have had a busy month with 9,328 accounts read, 54 re-reads, 71 service orders, 3 new 
meter set inspections, 4-meter change outs, 20 MIU change outs, assisted 15 customers with 
data logging information, 39 calls for service, and 13 after hour or emergency calls. Our monthly 
total service work averaged 10 service orders per day. The decision was made not to enforce our 
shutoff policy again last month while there were still some issues with the new billing software. 
We will resume issuing shutoffs in May.  
   
The 2023 Consumer Confidence Report has been completed and added to the City’s website, it 
will be posted in the newspaper, and mailed to residents in the next few weeks. The EPA 
requires us to post this report every year by July 1st.  
 
Maintenance staff spent 4 days performing several flow tests throughout the distribution 
system. This information has been sent to Fox Engineering and will be used to create an updated 
hydraulic model of our system.   
 
After working in the water department for the last 28 years Mike Keating will be retiring on May 
24th.  Twenty-three applications were turned in for the Water Operator position, we have 
offered the position to Kendall Smith, he has accepted, and will start on Monday May 13th.  
      
Staff have continued to work on our Lead and Copper inventory list for the EPA. The inventory is 
due by October 16th,2024. Currently we have collected data on 8,434 properties and have 845 
unknowns. We were able to identify 513 services in the month of April. As of the date of this 
report, I am not aware of any Lead service lines, and we have not found any connected to our 
distribution system.  
 
 
 
 
Water Superintendent 
Greg Metternich 



1 
 

 
Parks & Recreation Commission Meeting Minutes 

April 4, 2024, 7:00pm 
 
Present:  Shelly Simpson, Brian Motley, Guy Goldsmith, Tim Hamer, Richard Grugin, Shannon Greene, Amy Chen, 
Nicholas Arnold, Gwen Johnson, Jeremy Parrish 
 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Approval of Minutes:  Motion to approve March 7, 2024 minutes: Johnson; Second: Chen. Approved via unanimous 
consent. 
 
3. Reports 
Parks Report—Guy Goldsmith 

• Parks staff conducted snow removal, turf aeration, seeding, and composted the turf at the dog park. 
• Staff started spring landscaping and gravel/rock removal. 
• Field maintenance crew has begun daily maintenance at athletic fields. 
• Baseball clean up day was March 28 and fields were cleaned of leaves and winter waste. 
• Park bathrooms have been opened for the season. 
• DNR has stocked the city ponds with trout for the season. Fish are permanent fish and are replenished every 

year as needed. 
• Little Free Library has been reinstalled at Penn Meadows Park and work is almost complete on that renovation. 
• Centennial Park Next Stage is close to being sent for bid. Project on pace to begin after Blues & BBQ this 

summer. 
• Looking to hire a tuck pointer for masonry and painting work on the Community Center. Previous contractor 

went out of business. Seeking at least three bids. 
• Parks staff assisted with proscribed burns at local parks to control invasive plants. 
• City received the Tree City USA designation again this year for the 28th year in a row. This will help with other 

grants including one for $1000.00 provided by MidAmerican Energy this month. The grant will assist in 
purchasing about 12 trees for use in City parks. 

• Parks is still seeking season help for the summer season. Applicants must be 18 years old. 
• City Clean Up Day is the last Saturday in April. Residents can bring large items for disposal that day.  

 
Recreation/Pool Report—Shelly Simpson 

• Summer programs are being finalized and seasonal activity guide has been released with registration open now. 
• Community Center is busy with spring break levels of use. 
• Open House was held at the Community Center along with Communications and Library staff. Offered 25% off 

memberships. More than 200 people attended. 
• Several upcoming events this month: kayak trip, shed hunt. 
• Aquatic programs continue to be strong. 360 participants in March. 
• Youth athletic leagues close this month. 
• Current Recsters registration opened for summer camp which leads to large increase in revenue this month. 

Open to K-6 students. 
• Target to open pool on Memorial Day weekend which will depend on staffing levels available and weather. 

Simpson stated that pay starts at $13.84. 
 



2 
 

4.  NLCC Fees Proposal 
• Information on fee proposal was provided in the meeting information packet. 
• Fees were last updated in 2018. About 60% of operating costs generated from tax dollars, 40% from user fees. 
• Daily fees being recommended to be simplified, removing the difference between resident/non-resident rates to 

have one fee of $6.00 for rec center and pool use. Memberships will still have different rates based on 
residency. 

• Johnson asked whether $6.00 was too high. Simpson stated that it is in line with surrounding communities. Chen 
pointed out that compared to other options for entertainment this is a good deal. Johnson asked what happens 
if someone truly cannot afford the fee. Simpson stated they would first look to memberships and financial 
assistance is available to residents for the membership, which can be zero or close to it. Arnold asked whether 
there was a way to identify slow periods at the facility and offer discounted pricing at those times to drive 
revenue and help meet the needs of those seeking to save money. Parrish drew the comparison to Coralville 
which offers a similar program for discounted use of their pool. 

• Arnold asked whether it was possible to allow for purchase of an annual membership that can be paid over time. 
Where a family could purchase the membership but break payments up into monthly installments with a twelve 
month commitment. Motley stated staff is planning to address memberships and this could be a possibility to 
explore. 

• Johnson challenged staff to look at how they define families to see if it can include grandparents who may be 
caring for their grandchildren. 

• Arnold asked whether there was a revenue goal attached to the increased daily fee. Simpson stated that she is 
having conversations with City staff to that end but currently there is no goal. The primary purpose is simplicity 
and a one price point without policing everyone’s address who comes in on a daily basis. 

• Parrish asked whether there was a potential to increase the age of children who currently have free access. It is 
currently set at two years old and under. Could that age be raised? 

• Simpson stated that pool rental fees would also be changed under the proposed fee restructure. It would be a 
$5 increase for residents and non-resident rates would be 125% of whatever cost residents pay. Greene and 
Parrish asked whether that was enough of an increase. Arnold asked whether given staffing levels whether the 
rental cost covers the labor and other hard and soft costs incurred by the City. Johnson pointed out that costs 
have increased across the board for families this year and to be cautious in raising prices too much. Parrish 
pointed out other communities charge based on how many people are attending the event and how much labor 
cost is involved in supporting the event. 

• Simpson stated that it is recommended membership rates stay the same for the time being with staff to further 
explore how to potentially simplify the memberships and re-examine the fees at a later date. Commission 
members suggested again to simplify the pricing so it’s based on a monthly cost for either a month to month 
cost or an annual subscription and presented in a clear, concise manner. Chen pointed out the naming 
conventions are confusion for the membership packages and should be examined. She also asked what defines a 
“household” for memberships. Simpson stated that it means any people living at one single address. 

• Simpson stated that with room rental rates the goal is to simplify. Johnson stated she thought those rates 
seemed very inexpensive. Grugin stated the reasonable costs allow for family use of the facility for birthday 
parties and events. Arnold inquired whether fees attached to rental cover the hard costs incurred by the City. 
Motley stated there are not really any hard costs incurred and renters are required to clean the space when 
they’re done. 

• Simpson stated the field and shelter rental fees would be implemented in the fall. Concession stand will no 
longer be rented out. Ballfield rental is currently $20 per hour and covers preparation but not staffing. 
Goldsmith stated that auxiliary costs for quick-dry and chalk, etc. is based on use and passed along to the team 
that rents the field. Motley stated renters tend to be the same people year over year and have been good to 
work with and care for the fields. They get first right to schedule for the following year and value the 
relationship with the City.  

• Program fees are determined on a case by case basis depending on the program and associated costs. In house 
programs incur all expenses and income. Contracted programs split revenue 70/30 with the instructor with City 
receiving 30%. Tri-City programs base revenue off number of participants from the community paying an 



3 
 

equitable share. Arnold inquired whether residents get earlier access to programs, specifically before and after 
school programs. Motley stated the schools that participate in the program are all local schools so it’s likely all 
students are residents. Scholarships are also available to residents. He stated residents have two-day priority 
access to swim lessons before non-residents can register. 

• Grugin recapped the line items discussed above, starting with daily fees. Simpson stated daily fees were the 
most urgent and hopes to implement that change on May 1. Commission members supported the $6.00 daily 
fee with the suggestion to explore special hours during the week for reduced admission to help boost facility use 
during slow times. Staff will revisit pool rental costs and bring back to the Commission. Memberships will also be 
examined and streamlined. 

 
5.  Questions, Concerns, Updates 

• Parrish inquired how the Recsters schedule allows for CCA students to be accommodated on days off. Simpson 
stated that currently there is not a demand on those days. Motley pointed out that staffing is also a concern 
because most of the staff is ICCSD and UI students. Simpson stated that most often students go to the in-school 
program first before the City program which may explain the lack of demand. 

• Johnson asked when the dog park would re-open. Goldsmith said the cold weather isn’t helping but May/June is 
reasonable. 

• Parrish inquired about the new park at Fox Run. Goldsmith stated this is on track for August with trail work on 
new equipment. He also stated the Penn Meadows park splashpad will undergo renovation late summer, after 
kids have gone back to school. 

• Arnold asked what the City Hall open date is. Goldsmith stated the week of April 21 is slated for move in. 
Commission meetings may be held there in April. 

 
5. Community Input / Ideas to Share  
6. Upcoming Events 

a. Annual Muddy Creek Trail clean up is this Saturday. 
7. New Business 
8. Old Business 
9. Next Meeting 

a. Thursday, April 4, 2024, at 7:00 p.m. 
10. Adjourn   Motion:  Johnson; Second: Chen    None opposed. 

 


	Legal Name of Applicant: Mexico Lindo III, Inc
	Name of Business DBA: Mexico Lindo III
	Addresss of Business: 40 Sugar Creek Ln #5 & 6 North Liberty, IA 52317
	Business Phone: 319-331-4645
	Email: rociomata10@gmail.com
	State of Iowa ABD License: App-199220
	Name: Rob Thul
	Title: EHM
	Date: 4/24/24


